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Audit Highlights

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Bradley County, Tennessee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Scope

We have audited the basic financial statements of Bradley County as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2010.

Results
Our report on Bradley County’s financial statements is unqualified.
Our audit resulted in six findings and recommendations, which we have reviewed with
Bradley County management. Detailed findings, recommendations, and management’s
responses are included in the Single Audit section of this report.
Findings and Best Practice
The following are summaries of the audit findings and best practice:

OFFICE OF COUNTY MAYOR

¢ A capital outlay note was not issued in compliance with state statutes.
¢ The software used by the Probation Office did not have adequate application controls.

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

¢ American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Grant funds were used to purchase an oven
based on an expired bid.

OFFICE OF SHERIFF

¢ The office did not deposit some funds within three days of collection.
¢ Arrestee files did not include fingerprint acknowledgments from Tennessee Bureau of
Investigation.




OTHER FINDING

¢ Duties were not segregated adequately at the Ambulance Service, Probation Service,
School Food Service Department, and in the Offices of Road Superintendent, Clerk and
Master, Register, and Sheriff.

BEST PRACTICE

Bradley County does not have a central system of accounting, budgeting, and purchasing.
The Division of County Audit strongly believes that a central system of accounting,
budgeting, and purchasing is a best practice that should be adopted by the governing body
as a means of significantly improving accountability and the quality of services provided to
the citizens of Bradley County.
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Office of the

Bradley County Mayor
D. Gary Davis

Phone  423-728-7141 P. O. Box 1167
Facsimile 423-476-0696 Cleveland, TN 37364

October 28, 2010

To the Members of the County Commission and
the Citizens of Bradley County, Tennessee

To obtain a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, the
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) requires that all general-purpose local
governments publish, within six months of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of
financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Pursuant
to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of Bradley
County, Tennessee, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of Bradley
County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis
for making these representations, the management of Bradley County has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of Bradley County’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, Bradley
County’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

Bradley County’s financial statements have been audited by the State of Tennessee,
Comptroller of the Treasury, Department of Audit. The goal of the independent audit was
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Bradley County for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
rendering an unqualified opinion that Bradley County’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.
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The independent audit of the financial statements of Bradley County was part of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent
auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on
the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with
special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration
of federal awards. These reports are available in the Single Audit section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. Bradley County’s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Bradley County, incorporated in 1836, is located in the southeast portion of the State of
Tennessee. The county lies in a valley between the Cumberland and Great Smoky
Mountains and has an approximate land area of 216,230 acres or 338 square miles and
serves a population of approximately 97,000. Bradley County is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries.

Bradley County’s form of government is one with a popularly elected county mayor who is
the administrative head of the county and a popularly elected board of county
commissioners, which is the legislative branch of the county. Bradley County’s legislative
body is composed of 14 members with two members being elected from each of the county’s
seven districts. The county legislative body assembled in session is authorized to act for the
county, including election of officials or confirmation of appointees, fixing salaries, and
appropriating money and any other business coming before the body. All funds to be used
in the operation of the county must be appropriated for that use by the county legislative
body, which can appropriate money only for expenditures sanctioned by state law. It is the
duty of the county legislative body to adopt a budget and to appropriate funds for the
ensuing fiscal year for all county departments and agencies.

Bradley County provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection;
schools; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure;
and recreational activities and cultural events.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it
is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which
Bradley County operates.

Local economy. Bradley County is a growing area of Tennessee despite the economic

downturn, which has affected many parts of our country. Business as well as individuals

recognize the tremendous value the county enjoys in its quality of life as demonstrated in

our strong position financially, and our future is bright due to the sound management

practices that have enabled the county to maintain solid fund balances and reserves.

Bradley County is known for its productive agriculture and for its stable diversified
11



industry. Approximately 80 percent of the county’s land area is devoted to farming, with
income derived primarily from dairy, cotton raising, poultry, tobacco, and various fruits and
vegetables. The county has three industrial parks. Northeast Industrial Park is fully
developed, and Cleveland-Bradley County Industrial Park has approximately 80 of its total
228 acres remaining for development. The Hiwassee River Industrial Park has
approximately 67 of its total 121 acres available for development. There are approximately
147 industrial concerns in the county. Major industries with headquarters or divisions
located within the government’s boundaries or in close proximity include household cooking
equipment, newspaper and pulp plant, distribution centers, alkaline batteries, hosiery,
candy, cakes, cookies, dairy products, photo finishing, and clothing manufacturing.

A diverse manufacturing and industrial base adds to the relative stability of the
employment rate. Bradley County has an employed labor force of approximately 47,000.
There are many exciting projects underway for the county. Some of which are as follows:

e  Whirlpool Corp., one of Bradley County’s largest tax payers and employers with
approximately 1,500 employees. We have recently reached an agreement with
Whirlpool Corp. to build a new 1.4 million square foot facility. This will allow
Bradley County to retain the current 1,500 jobs, while adding an additional 130
positions.

e Volkswagen has begun its commitment to invest up to $1 billion for a manufacturing
plant in nearby Hamilton County. Bradley County, as well as other counties in the
area, will benefit from the approximately 2,000 jobs created by direct employment at
the Volkswagen facility, as well as the estimated additional 9,500 jobs that will be
created in the region through construction and supplier activity.

e Wacker Chemie AG, a Munich, Germany-based company, plans to construct a new
facility in Bradley County with an estimated capital investment of $1 billion and
initial employment of approximately 500 highly skilled workers. The new facility
will produce hyper pure polycrystalline silicon, a key component in photovoltaic for
solar energy and semiconductors for the electronics industry.

e The Industrial Development Board continues to recruit new industries as well as
continuing to promote job growth within existing industries.

Several major tourist attractions are located in the county: Red Clay State Historical Area,
primitive Indian settlements, Church of God of Prophecy World Headquarters, and the
Church of God general offices, which house one of the largest mosaic murals in the southern
United States. The Cherokee National Forest and Ocoee River whitewater rafting facilities
are located within a few minutes drive.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

Accounting system and internal control. The county’s accounting system is organized

on a “fund” basis. Each fund is a distinct self-balancing accounting entity. The county’s

day-to-day accounting records are maintained on a cash basis. For financial reporting

purposes, the accounting records are converted to the modified and full accrual basis for all

applicable funds. On the modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized when measurable

and available, and expenditures are recognized when goods or services are received. On the
12



accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned; expenses are recognized when
incurred.

In developing the county’s accounting system, much consideration was given to the
adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance regarding (1) the safeguarding of assets
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and (2) the reliability of financial records
for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

Budget control policy. The annual budget serves as the foundation for Bradley County’s
financial planning and control. All departments of the county are required to submit
requests for appropriation to the county mayor on or before the third Wednesday in April of
each year. The county mayor then presents the budget requests to the full County
Commission for review prior to the fourth Monday in April. The county mayor uses these
requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. The Finance Committee is
required to hold public hearings on the budget requests. The County Commission adopts a
final budget by late June or early July each year. The appropriated budget is prepared by
fund, function (e.g.,, public safety), and department (e.g., police). Transfers of
appropriations require special approval of the County Commission. Budget-to-actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an
appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General and Highway/Public Works
funds, these comparisons are presented as required supplementary information. For other
governmental funds with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is present in the
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules section of this report.

Reserve fund policy. It is the objective of the County Commission to maintain a
managed budgeted reserve in the various operating funds at a level sufficient for temporary
financing of unforeseen emergency needs and to permit orderly adjustment to changes
resulting from termination of revenue sources through actions of other governmental
bodies. Sufficient levels of reserves can ensure continued orderly operations and tax
structure stability. The percentage is calculated by taking undesignated fund balance or
working capital as a percent of expenditures or operating expenses and transfers to other
funds. These reserves are reviewed annually by the county mayor, director of finance,
School Board, and road superintendent.

Revenue policy. The county will charge fees for services where such an approach is
permissible by state and federal law and where a group of beneficiaries who can pay such
fees 1s identifiable. New and expanded unrestricted revenue sources should be applied first
to support existing programs prior to funding new programs. The county will pursue
federal, state, and private grants but will strictly limit financial support of these programs
to avoid commitments that continue beyond available funding. The county will
continuously seek new revenues and pursue a diverse revenue base to limit the dependence
on one or only a few revenue sources. This revenue diversity will shelter the county from
short-time fluctuations in any one revenue source.

13



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND LONG-TERM PLANNING

The purpose of the capital improvements plan is to systematically plan, schedule, and
finance capital projects to ensure cost-effectiveness as well as conformance with established
policies. Proposed capital projects will be reviewed regarding accurate costing and overall
consistency with the county’s goals and objectives. Financing sources will then be identified
for the highest ranking projects.

Bradley County has several long-term goals. Some of those include:

¢ Continuing to replace some of the older bridges in the county
through the Road Department bridge program

¢ Continuing better working relationships with city government
¢ Reducing debt for the county
Increasing per-pupil expenditures and/or addressing school needs

for both buildings and programs
Developing a five-year plan for schools, other agencies, and county funds
Continuing to improve efficiency in county departments
Recruiting businesses
Extending water lines in the rural areas of the county

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Bradley County for its comprehensive
annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This is the
fifth year that Bradley County has received this prestigious award.

The financial information is designed to provide a general overview of the county’s finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. The person primarily
responsible for preparing this document is Lynn Burns, Accounting and Budgeting Director
for Bradley County. Especially important is to recognize the people of the Department of
Accounts and Budgets and Human Resources who helped make this report possible: Rena’
Samples, Sharon Sandidge, and Renee’ Linton. Each contributed to the many daily efforts
required to operate our office. For questions concerning any of the information provided,
please contact the Accounting and Budgeting Office at 155 Broad Street, Cleveland,
Tennessee 37311.

Respectfully submitted,

Lynn Burns
Accounting and Budgeting Director

D. Gary Davis
County Mayor

14
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Achievement
tor Excellence
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Bradley County
Tennessee

For its Comprehensive Annual
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for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2009

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
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systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting
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Bradley County Officials
June 30, 2010

Officials

County Mayor

Road Superintendent

Director of Schools

Trustee

Assessor of Property

County Clerk

Circuit and General Sessions Courts Clerk
Clerk and Master

Register

Sheriff

Accounting and Budgeting Director
Agricultural Extension Director
Ambulance Service Director

County Attorney

Emergency Management

Engineering, Planning and Building Inspection
Fire Chief

GIS

Health Department

Human Resources Administrator
Information Systems

Juvenile Services

Parks and Recreation Director

Probation Services/Courts Community Service
Veteran Affairs

Board of County Commissioners

District 1
District 1
District 2
District 2
District 3
District 3
District 4
District 4
District 5
District 5

17

D. Gary Davis
Tom Collins
Johnny McDaniel

Mike Smith
Stanley Thompson

Donna Alley Simpson

Gayla Miller
Carl Shrewsbury
Raymond Swafford
Tim Gobble
Lynn Burns

Kim Frady
Danny Lawson
Joseph Byrd
Troy Spence
Sandra Knight
Dewey Woody
Wayne Owenby
Eloise Waters
Rena Samples
Michael Sullivan
Terry Gallaher
Paul Wyrick
Rich Kienlen
Larry McDaris

Ben Atchley
Ed Elkins

Louie Alford, Chairman

Connie Wilson
Brian Smith
Lisa Stanbery
Jim Smith
Howard Thompson
Bill Ledford
Jeff Yarber



Board of County Commissioners (Cont.)

District 6
District 6
District 7
District 7

Audit Committee

District 1
District 2
District 3
District 4
District 5
District 6
District 7

Board of Education

David Kelley, Chairman
Richard Baker

Christy Critchfield
Mark Grissom

18

Mel Griffith
Willodyne Smith
Mark Hall
Michael Plumley

Daniel Peterson

Roger Fuller

Clint Taylor

Troy Weathers

Terry McGuire

Curt Duncan

Alvin Word, Chairman

Terry McGuire

Charlie Rose
Troy Weathers
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF COUNTY AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMESK. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

October 28, 2010

Bradley County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Bradley County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Bradley County, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise Bradley County’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Bradley
County’s management. Our responsibility i1s to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely
presented Bradley Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center, which represent six percent and
12 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units as of June 30, 2010, and for the year then ended. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Bradley Healthcare
and Rehabilitation Center, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the auditing standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Bradley County, Tennessee,
as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2010, on our consideration of Bradley County’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

As described in Note V.B., Bradley County has adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Intangible Assets; and Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments, which became effective for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison, pension, and other
postemployment benefits information on pages 23 through 33 and 96 through 104 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise Bradley County’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary
comparison schedules of nonmajor governmental funds and the General Debt Service Fund,
combining and individual fund financial statements of the Bradley County School
Department (a discretely presented component unit), miscellaneous schedules, and
statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules of nonmajor governmental funds and
the General Debt Service Fund, combining and individual fund financial statements of the
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Bradley County School Department (a discretely presented component unit), and the
miscellaneous schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit, are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Very truly yours,
%,4/ oLl

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury

JPW/yu

22



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Bradley County, we offer readers of the Bradley County financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the county for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our
letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of Bradley County’s Primary Governmental Activities exceeded its liabilities
at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $21,031,322 (net assets).

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Bradley County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $48,830,086. Approximately 60 percent of this
amount ($29,355,917 - unreserved fund balance) is available for spending at the
government’s discretion - subject to fund restrictions.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was
$1,090,398 or 3.4 percent of total General Fund expenditures while total fund balance of
$3,661,891 represents 11 percent of that same amount. The reserve policy of the county
requires a minimum fund balance of at least ten percent, which is within the boundaries
of our policy.

o Bradley County’s total long-term debt increased by $15,366,459 during the current
fiscal year. This is primarily a result of the county borrowing $17,550,000 for schools
less the scheduled debt reduction payments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis 1s intended to serve as an introduction to Bradley County’s
basic financial statements. The county’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Bradley County’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of Bradley County’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases
or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the county is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing the changes in the government’s
net assets during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave).
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the county that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the county include general government, public safety, highways and streets,
sanitation, economic development, and culture and recreation. The county has no business-
type activities to report.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Bradley County itself (known
as the primary government), but also a legally separate school district and a nursing home
for which Bradley County is financially accountable. Financial information for these
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the
primary government itself.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. Bradley County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of Bradley County can be divided into three fund categories: governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Bradley County maintains a multitude of individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General,
Highway/Public Works, General Debt Service, Education Capital Projects, and the
Endowment funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Bradley County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance
with this budget.
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Proprietary funds. Bradley County and the Bradley County School Department do not
have any proprietary funds. The discretely presented Bradley Healthcare and
Rehabilitation Center uses an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for revenues held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support
Bradley County’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
used for proprietary funds (economic resources measurement) except agency funds, which
have no measurement focus.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of Bradley County, assets exceeded liabilities by $21,031,322
at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The Constitution for the State of Tennessee only allows the local legislative body
authorization to issue debt. Therefore, whenever the Bradley County Board of Education
requires additional money to fund school construction and equipment, the related debt
must be issued by Bradley County Government.

As of June 30, 2010, Bradley County had outstanding debt totaling $65,856,331 for capital
purposes of education ($44,830,937 for county schools and $21,025,394 for city schools). The
capital assets are reported in the financial statements of the Bradley County Board of
Education and the Board of Education of the City of Cleveland, respectively. Bradley
County has incurred the related liability, significantly decreasing its unrestricted net assets
without a corresponding increase in the county’s capital assets.

A large portion of Bradley County’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. Bradley County uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although Bradley County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Table 1a

Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Long-term Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Table 1b

Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Long-term Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

BRADLEY COUNTY'S NET ASSETS

Bradley County Government

Bradley County
School Department

2010 2009 2010 2009
77,649,625 $ 175,582,120 30,719,099 25,028,890
50,563,175 49,195,284 64,891,283 58,229,146
128,212,800 $ 124,777,404 95,610,382 83,258,036
79,484,926 $ 65,371,153 2,985,563 2,231,324
27,696,552 23,660,100 18,263,050 17,861,793
107,181,478 $ 89,031,253 21,248,613 20,093,117
35,563,376 $ 33,908,244 64,367,319 57,653,540
47,311,720 47,257,104 5,330,628 2,562,295
(61,843,774) (45,419,197) 4,663,822 3,019,084
21,031,322 $ 35,746,151 74,361,769 63,234,919

BRADLEY COUNTY'S NET ASSETS

Bradley Heathcare and

Rehabilitation

2010 2009
$ 3,071,737 $ 2,516,909
2,700,949 2,801,248
$ 5,772,686 $ 5,318,157
$ 0$ 0
879,529 984,264
$ 879,529 $ 984,264
$ 2,700,949 $ 2,801,248
129,049 139,503
2,063,159 1,393,142
$ 4,893,157 $ 4,333,893

An additional portion of Bradley County’s governmental activities assets ($47,311,720)
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, Bradley County is able to report positive balances in
all three categories of net assets.

Table 2a
BRADLEY COUNTY'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Bradley County
Bradley County Government School Department
2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 13,842,847 $ 14,226,436 $ 2,058,534 $ 2,193,408

Operating Grants and Contributions 4,499,218 5,112,467 11,014,788 10,608,929

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,094,037 1,514,697 11,897,449 9,200
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 20,820,980 20,344,942 11,555,769 11,451,060

Other Taxes 6,070,886 5,970,866 9,120,822 7,702,938

Grants and Contributions not

Restricted to Specific Programs 987,536 1,034,691 41,798,378 39,497,842

Other 938,104 1,292,285 70,281 152,174
Total Revenues $ 48,253,608 $ 49,496,384 $ 87,516,021 $§ 71,615,551
Expenses

General Government $ 2,669,472 $ 2,965,034 $ 09 0

Finance 2,649,529 2,694,642 0 0

Administration of Justice 3,363,566 3,263,202 0 0

Public Safety 19,113,784 19,093,684 0 0

Public Health and Welfare 9,364,256 7,343,966 0 0

Social, Cultural, and Rec. Services 1,940,553 1,879,865 0 0

Agriculture and Natural Resources 527,160 547,161 0 0

Other Operations 0 1,580,426 0 0

Highways/Public Works 4,570,149 4,474,498 0 0

Education 17,734,346 0 76,389,171 73,773,002

Interest on Long-term Debt 2,580,564 2,274,490 0 0

Other Debt Service 0 82,624 0 0
Total Expenses $ 64513379 $ 46,199,594 $ 76,389,171 $ 73,773,002
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ (16,259,771) $ 3,296,790 $ 11,126,850 $ (2,157,451)
Net Assets, July 1 35,746,151 32,449,361 63,234,919 65,392,370
Prior-period Adjustment 1,544,942 0 0 0
Net Assets, June 30 $ 21,031,322 $§ 35,746,151 $ 74,361,769 $ 63,234,919
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Table 2b

Revenues

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
General Revenues:
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses
Other Enterprises

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets, July 1

Net Assets, June 30

BRADLEY COUNTY'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Bradley Healthcare and
Rehabilitation Center

2010 2009
$ 12,169,506 $ 11,957,683
22,379 86,289
$ 12,191,885 $ 12,043,972
$ 11,632,621 $ 11,987,658
$ 11,632,621 $ 11,987,658
$ 559,264 $ 56,314
4,333,893 4,277,579
$ 4,893,157 $ 4,333,893

Program Revenues and Expenses - Governmental Activities

20,000,000
18,000,000
16,000,000
14,000,000
12,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
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13%

88,000,000
86,000,000
84,000,000
82,000,000
80,000,000
78,000,000
76,000,000
74,000,000
72,000,000

70,000,000

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

2%

Program Revenues and Expenses

2%

O Charges for Services

@ Operating Grants and Contributions
0O Capital Grants and Contributions
OProperty Taxes

@ Other Taxes

O Not Restricted to Specific Programs
@ Other

87,516,021

|
Schools
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Revenues by Source - Schools

48% O Charges for Services

B Operating Grants and Contributions
O Capital Grants and Contributions
OProperty Taxes

B Other Taxes

O Not Restricted to Specific Programs
BOther

10%

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Bradley County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-relegated legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Bradley County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing Bradley County’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Bradley County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $48,830,086. Approximately 60 percent of this amount
($29,355,917) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (subject to each fund’s restriction). The remainder of the fund
balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders ($1,241,728), 2) for a
variety of other restricted purposes ($2,585,788), or 3) for the Health, Wellness, and Quality
of Life Permanent Fund ($15,646,653).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Bradley County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $1,090,398 while total fund
balance reached $3,661,891. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful
to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 3.4 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while
total fund balance represents 11 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of Bradley County’s General Fund decreased by $1,801,043 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this were a 12.8 percent reduction in state funding, a
21.9 percent reduction in licenses and permits, a 10.5 percent reduction in fines, forfeitures
and penalties, and a 3.6 percent reduction in charges for services all a direct result of the
economic downturn.
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The fund balance of the Highway/Public Works Fund decreased by $286,047 during the
current fiscal year. This was mainly due to the three percent reduction in state funding as
a result of the economic situation.

The General Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $16,403,302 all of which is
allocated for the payment of debt service. The $153,065 net increase in fund balance during
the current year in the General Debt Service Fund was largely due to savings resulting
from low variable rates.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the original budget expenditures and the final amended budget
expenditures in the General Fund was $2,218,964 (increase in appropriations) and can be
briefly summarized as follows:

Increases allocated to General Government - $29,716

Increases allocated to Finance - $1,844

Increases allocated to Administration of Justice - $260,143
Increases allocated to Public Safety - $1,374,027

Increases allocated to Public Health and Welfare - $15,852
Increases allocated to Social, Cultural, and Recreational - $1,621
Decreases allocated to Agriculture and Natural Resources - $6,130
Increases allocated to Other Operations - $541,891

Of this increase, $1,523,125 was to be funded out of miscellaneous increases in various
charges for services, grant proceeds, and insurance recovery. The remaining $695,839 was
to be budgeted from available fund balances and reserves. During the year, however,
revenues exceeded budgetary estimates, and expenditures were less than budgetary
estimates, thus eliminating the need to draw upon existing fund balance.

The General Purpose School Fund had an increase in allocations totaling $2,823,591, which
consisted mostly of additional state and federal dollars received totaling $1.7 million and
transfers from fund balance of $1.1 million.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system
improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and bridges.
Bradley County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of
June 30, 2010, amounts to $50,563,175 (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt).
The Bradley County School Department’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
activities amounts to $64,891,013 (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt).
Related debt for schools is carried in governmental activities.

Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Purchasing 11 vehicles — Sheriff's Department at $245,158
o Purchasing two vehicles — Drug Fund at $40,727

31



Purchasing radio towers and land — Emergency Management Agency at $350,000
Purchasing three vehicles — Fire/Rescue at $47,580

Purchasing an ambulance and a remount — Ambulance at $135,466

Purchasing a fire truck — Fire/Rescue at $350,000

Purchasing a plat machine — Register of Deeds at $15,895

Purchasing a Toro 60” mower — Recreation at $7,999

Purchasing a transport ventilator — Ambulance at $8,700

Purchasing a hydraulic pump — Fire/Rescue at $6,000

For more detailed information on capital assets activity, please see the relevant disclosures
in the notes to the financial statements, Note IV.D.

Long-term Debt

Table 3
BRADLEY COUNTY
Total
Issued General County City Governmental
For County Schools Schools Activity

Notes $ 611,193 §$ 189,520 $ 0$ 800,713
Bonds 0 11,994,133 5,555,867 17,550,000
Other Loans 14,339,177 32,836,804 15,469,527 62,645,508
Compensated Absences 1,202,655 0 0 1,202,655
Other Postemployment Benefits 517,535 2,586,805 0 3,104,340
Capital Leases 176,583 334,444 0 511,027
Total Long-term Debt $ 16,847,143 $ 47,941,706 $ 21,025,394 $ 85,814,243

At the end of the current fiscal year, Bradley County and the discretely presented Bradley
County School Department had total long-term debt outstanding of $85,814,243. This
amount comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government. Bradley
County’s and the discretely presented Bradley County School Department’s total debt
increased by $15,366,459 (not including compensated absences and other postemployment
benefits) during the current fiscal year.

For more detailed information on long-term debt activity, please see the relevant
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements. Note IV.H. of this report provides
additional information regarding capital leases, and Note IV.I. provides additional
information regarding general obligation bonds, notes, and other loans.

Bradley County maintains an Aa2 rating from Moody’s and AA- from Standard & Poor’s for
general obligation debt.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The unemployment rate for the county as of June 30, 2010, is nine percent, which is down
from a year ago at 9.9 percent. The state’s average unemployment rate is 10.1 percent and
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the national average is 9.5 percent. Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to
national indices. All of these factors were considered in preparing the county’s budget for
the 2010-11 fiscal year.

At the end of the 2009-10 fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the General Fund
decreased to $1,090,398 (66.5 percent decrease from last year’s actual unreserved fund
balance). The county has budgeted $115,162 of this fund balance for spending during the
fiscal year 2010-11.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the county’s finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. For questions concerning any of the

information provided in this report, please contact the Accounting and Budgeting Office at
155 Broad Street, Cleveland, Tennessee 37311.
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2010

Cash

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments

Investments

Deferred Outflow - Interest Rate Swap

Accounts Receivable

ASSETS

Allowance for Uncollectibles
Due from Other Governments

Inventories

Property Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Property Taxes

Prepaid Items

Notes Receivable - Long-term

Deferred Charges - Debt Issuance Costs

Capital Assets:

Assets Not Depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress

Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Improvements

Infrastructure

Other Capital Assets

Total Assets

Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll

LIABILITIES

Payroll Deductions Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Derivative - Interest Rate Swap
Other Current Liabilities

Other Long-term Liabilities

Unearned Revenue - Current Property Taxes

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets

Restricted for:
General Purposes
Law Library
Public Library

Exhibit A

Component Units

Primary Bradley Bradley
Government County Healthcare and
Governmental School Rehabilitation
Activities Department Center

$ 323,088 $ 4,418 §$ 2,163,991
41,343,595 16,043,462 0
4,299,892 0 0
3,447,704 0 0
7,073,924 0 945,894
(3,458,312) 0 (76,440)
2,291,428 2,631,945 0

0 139,503 35,487

22,512,071 12,385,685 0
(966,442) (485,914) 0

0 0 2,805

34,004 0 0

748,673 0 0
5,948,505 1,294,715 1,250
258,230 6,872,528 0
20,185,268 56,417,181 2,267,994
20,636,978 0 0
3,534,194 306,859 431,705

$ 128,212,800 $ 95,610,382 $ 5,772,686
$ 0o $ 892,311 $ 214,945
0 5,773,266 465,753

151,379 0 0

188,558 4,013 0
3,447,704 0 0

0 0 104,863

0 0 93,968

20,577,903 11,468,254 0
3,331,008 125,206 0
79,484,926 2,985,563 0

$ 107,181,478 § 21,248,613 $ 879,529
$ 35,563,376 $§ 64,367,319 §$ 0
0 0 2,700,949

2,084,825 44,286 0

19,091 0 0

181,846 0 0
(Continued)

35



Exhibit A

Bradley County, Tennessee
Statement of Net Assets (Cont.)

Component Units

Primary Bradley Bradley
Government County Healthcare and
Governmental School Rehabilitation
Activities Department Center
NET ASSETS (Cont.)
Restricted for (Cont.):
Solid Waste/Sanitation $ 1,468,494 $ 0 0
Drug Control 402,423 0 0
Agri-Business 64,248 0 0
Special Purpose Fire Tax 1,276,586 0 0
Veterans Nursing Home 17,668 0
Highway/Public Works 2,207,426 0 0
Debt Service 16,356,538 0 0
Capital Projects 6,566,407 3,113,780 0
Health, Wellness, and Quality of Life:
Expendable 552,556 0 0
Nonexpendable 16,113,612 0 0
School Federal Projects 0 507,832 0
Central Cafeteria 0 1,664,730 0
Other Purposes 0 0 129,049
Unrestricted (61,843,774) 4,663,322 2,063,159
Total Net Assets $ 21,031,322 § 74,361,769 $ 4,893,157

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C-2

Bradley County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets (Exhibit A) are different because:

Total fund balances - balance sheet - governmental funds (Exhibit C-1)

(1) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:

land

construction in progress

buildings and improvements net of accumulated depreciation
other capital assets net of accumulated depreciation
infrastructure net of accumulated depreciation

(2) Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:
Add:

bonds payable

notes payable

other loans payable

capital leases payable

interest accrued on bonds, notes, other loans, and capital leases
other postemployment benefits liability

compensated absences payable

other deferred revenue - premium on debt

deferred charges - debt issuance costs

(3) Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds.

Net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit A)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 5,948,505
258,230
20,185,268
3,634,194

20,636,978

$ (17,550,000)
(611,193)
(62,645,000)
(176,583)
(188,558)
(517,535)
(1,202,655)
(112,968)

748,673

$ 48,830,086

50,563,175

(82,255,819)

3,893,880

$ 21,031,322
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Exhibit C-4

Bradley County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit B) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit C-3)

(1) Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated
over their useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The
difference between capital outlays and depreciation is itemized as
follows:
Add: capital assets purchased in the current period
Less: current year depreciation expense

(2) The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.
Add: assets donated and capitalized
Less: loss on disposal of capital assets
Less: decrease of revenue for the insurance recovery of disposed assets

(3) Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources

are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Less: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2009

Add:

deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2010

(4) The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes, other loans, leases) provides

current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal
of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement

of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment

of long-term debt and related items.

Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:

Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:

bond proceeds

note proceeds

capital lease proceeds

change in premium on debt issuance cost
principal payments on notes

principal payments on other loans
principal payments on capital leases
change in deferred debt issuance costs

(5) Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences payable
Change in other postemployment benefits liability (net of prior-period adjustment)
Change in accrued interest payable

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 4,258,203

(2,796,782)

$ 160,000
(238,650)

(14,880)

$  (3,605,713)

3,893,880

$ (17,550,000)
(240,000)
(193,736)

(12,338)
74,049
2,350,000
193,228
22,407

$ (14,933)
(497,430)
(136,492)

$  (1,910,584)

1,461,421

(93,530)

288,167

(15,356,390)

(648,855)

$ (16,259,771)



Exhibit D

Bradley County, Tennessee

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2010

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 4,892,584
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 4,769,482
Accounts Receivable 110
Due from Other Governments 2,373,395
Due from Other Funds 290
Property Taxes Receivable 8,076,248
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (421,026)
Total Assets $ 19,691,083
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft $ 7,393
Due to Other Funds 290
Due to Other Taxing Units 14,791,106
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others 4,892,294
Total Liabilities $ 19,691,083

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BRADLEY COUNTY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Bradley County’s financial statements are presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments.

The following are the more significant accounting policies of Bradley County:

A. Reporting Entity

Bradley County is a public municipal corporation governed by an elected
14-member board. As required by GAAP, these financial statements present
Bradley County (the primary government) and its component units. The
component units discussed below are included in the county's reporting entity
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with
the county.

Discretely Presented Component Units — The following entities meet the
criteria for discretely presented component units of the county. They are
reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the county.

The Bradley County School Department operates the public school system in
the county, and the voters of Bradley County elect its board. The School
Department is fiscally dependent on the county because it may not issue debt
without county approval, and its budget and property tax levy are subject to
the County Commission’s approval. The School Department’s taxes are
levied under the taxing authority of the county and are included as part of
the county’s total tax levy.

The Bradley Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center provides resident
healthcare to the citizens of Bradley County, and the County Commission
appoints its governing body. The County Commission must approve all
long-term debt of the Bradley Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center. Bradley
County is responsible for this debt in case of default by the Bradley
Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center.

The Bradley County School Department does not issue separate financial
statements from those of the county. Therefore, basic financial statements of
the Bradley County School Department are included in this report as listed in
the table of contents. Complete financial statements of the Bradley
Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center can be obtained from its
administrative office at the following address:
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Administrative Office:
Bradley Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center
2910 Peerless Road North West
Cleveland, TN 37312

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
However, when applicable, interfund services provided and used between
functions are not eliminated in the process of consolidation in the Statement
of Activities. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges, are required to be reported separately
from governmental activities in government-wide financial statements.
However, the primary government of Bradley County does not have any
business-type activities to report. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which
the primary government is financially accountable. The Bradley County
School Department component unit only reports governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Bradley County issues all debt for the discretely presented Bradley County
School Department. Net debt issues totaling $17,391,976 were contributed by
the county to the School Department ($11,836,109) and to the City of
Cleveland’s School Department ($5,555,867) during the year ended
June 30, 2010.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
fiduciary funds. The fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
fiduciary funds financial statements, except for agency funds, which have no
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Fund financial statements of Bradley County are organized into funds, each
of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.
Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. However, Bradley County has no proprietary funds to report.
An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental category.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. All other governmental
funds are aggregated into a single column on the fund financial statements.
The fiduciary funds in total are reported in a single column.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they become both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the county considers
revenues other than grants to be available if they are collected within 30 days
after year-end. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met and the
revenues are available. Bradley County considers grants and similar
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest
on long-term debt are recognized as fund liabilities when due or when
amounts have been accumulated in the General Debt Service Fund for
payments to be made early in the following year.

Property taxes for the period levied, in-lieu-of tax payments, sales taxes,
interest, and miscellaneous taxes are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current period.
Applicable business taxes, litigation taxes, state-shared excise taxes, fines,
forfeitures, and penalties are not susceptible to accrual since they are not
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measurable (reasonably estimable). All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when the county receives cash.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus (except for agency funds, which have no
measurement focus) and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Bradley County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the county’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Highway/Public Works Fund — This fund accounts for transactions
of the county’s Highway Department.

General Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Education Capital Projects Fund — This fund accounts for debt
issued by Bradley County that is subsequently contributed to the
discretely presented Bradley County School Department and the City
of Cleveland School System for construction and renovation projects.

Endowment Fund — This fund accounts for proceeds from the sale of
the Bradley County Memorial Hospital. @ The county received
$15,000,000 from the sale of the hospital and invested these proceeds.
The county can spend 85 percent of investment income for the health,
wellness, and quality of life for its citizens. The other 15 percent of
investment income, as well as the original principal ($15,000,000),
cannot be spent.

Additionally, Bradley County reports the following fund type:

Agency Funds — These funds account for amounts collected in an
agency capacity by the constitutional officers, local sales taxes
received by the state to be forwarded to the various cities in Bradley
County, the fire tax district, and the city school system’s share of
educational revenues. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets
equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of
operations. They do, however, use the accrual basis of accounting to
recognize receivables and payables.
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The discretely presented Bradley County School Department reports the
following major governmental funds:

General Purpose School Fund — This fund is the primary operating
fund for the School Department. It is used to account for general
operations of the School Department.

Education Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for
the receipt of debt issued by Bradley County and contributed to the
School Department for building construction and renovation.

Additionally, the Bradley County School Department reports the following
fund type:

Special Revenue Funds — These funds account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and
contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is
the government’s policy to use restricted revenues first, then unrestricted

resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

State statutes authorize the government to make direct investments
in bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the U.S. government and
obligations guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies;
deposit accounts at state and federal chartered banks and savings and
loan associations; repurchase agreements; the State Treasurer’s
Investment Pool; bonds of any state or political subdivision rated A or
higher by any nationally recognized rating service; nonconvertible
debt securities of certain federal government sponsored enterprises;
and the county’s own legally issued bonds or notes.

The county trustee maintains a cash and internal investment pool
that is used by all funds and the discretely presented Bradley County
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School Department. Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on the
balance sheets or statements of net assets as Equity in Pooled Cash
and Investments. Most income from these pooled investments was
assigned 50 percent to the General Fund and 50 percent to the
General Capital Projects Fund. In addition, investments are held
separately by the Endowment Fund. Bradley County and the School
Department have adopted a policy of reporting U.S. Treasury
obligations, U.S. agency obligations, and repurchase agreements with
maturities of one year or less when purchased on the balance sheet at
amortized cost. Certificates of deposit and investments in the State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool are reported at cost. The State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) as an investment company, but
nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner
consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. Rule 2a7 allows SEC-registered mutual funds to use amortized
cost rather than fair value to report net assets to compute share prices
if certain conditions are met. State statutes require the state treasurer
to administer the pool under the same terms and conditions, including
collateral requirements, as prescribed for other funds invested by the
state treasurer. All other investments are reported at fair value.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds for unremitted current collections at the end of
the fiscal year is referred to as either due to/from other funds.

All ambulance service and property taxes receivable are shown with
an allowance for uncollectibles. Ambulance receivables allowance for
uncollectibles is based on historical collection data. The allowance for
uncollectible property taxes is equal to 2.34 percent of total taxes
levied.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with
receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also
defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been
received, but not yet earned.

Property taxes receivable are recognized as of the date an enforceable
legal claim to the taxable property arises. This date is January 1 and
is referred to as the lien date. However, revenues from property taxes
are recognized in the period for which the taxes are levied, which is
the ensuing fiscal year. Since the receivable is recognized before the
period of revenue recognition, the entire amount of the receivable, less
an estimated allowance for uncollectible taxes, is reported as deferred
revenue as of June 30.
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Property taxes receivable are also reported as of June 30 for the taxes
that are levied, collected, and reported as revenue during the current
fiscal year. These property taxes receivable are presented on the
balance sheet with offsetting deferred revenue to reflect amounts not
available as of June 30. Property taxes collected within 30 days of
year-end are considered available and accrued. The allowance for
uncollectible taxes represents the estimated amount of the receivable
that will be filed in court for collection. Delinquent taxes filed in court
for collection are not included in taxes receivable since they are
neither measurable nor available.

Property taxes are levied as of the first Monday in October. Taxes
become delinquent and begin accumulating interest and penalty the
following March 1. Suit must be filed in Chancery Court between the
following February 1 to April 1 for any remaining unpaid taxes.
Additional costs attach to delinquent taxes after a court suit has been
filed.

Inventories

Inventories in governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held
for consumption and are valued at the lower of cost or market based
on the first-in, first-out method. Inventories of governmental funds
are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Capital Assets

Governmental funds do not capitalize the cost of capital outlays; these
funds report capital outlays as expenditures upon acquisition.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, and similar items), are
reported in the governmental column in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 for buildings and
$50,000 for infrastructure or more and an estimated useful life of more
than three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects are constructed.
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Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure of the primary
government and the discretely presented School Department are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Building and Improvements 25-40
Other Capital Assets 5-30
Infrastructure:
Roads 20-40
Bridges 40

Compensated Absences

It is the policy of Bradley County’s General and Highway/Public
Works funds to permit employees to accumulate up to 30 days of
earned but unused vacation leave that will be paid upon retirement,
resignation, or termination. Any accumulated unused vacation leave
exceeding 30 days is transferred to the employee’s sick leave balance.
All vacation leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide
statements for the General and Highway/Public Works funds. The
granting of sick leave has no guaranteed payment attached and
therefore is not required to be accrued or recorded.

It is the policy of the discretely presented Bradley County School
Department to permit its 12-month employees to accumulate up to ten
days earned but unused vacation leave, which will be paid upon
retirement, resignation, or termination. However, the policy of the
School Department does not allow for ten-month or 12-month
employees to accumulate vacation days beyond June 30. The granting
of sick leave has no guaranteed payment attached and therefore is not
required to be accrued or recorded.

A liability for vacation leave is reported in governmental funds only if
amounts have matured, for example, as a result of employee

resignations and retirements.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities Statement of Net Assets. Debt premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over
the life of the debt using the straight-line method. Debt issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt. In refunding transactions, the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is
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netted against the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of
the refunded debt or the life of the new debt issued, whichever is
shorter.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize debt
premiums and discounts, as well as debt issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Only the matured portion (the portion that has come due for
payment) of long-term indebtedness, including bonds payable, is
recognized as a liability and expenditure in the governmental fund
financial statements. Liabilities and expenditures for other long-term
obligations, including compensated absences and other postemployment
benefits, are recognized to the extent that the liabilities have matured
(come due for payment) each period.

Net Assets and Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements equity is classified as net
assets and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints
placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the
definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related
debt.

As of June 30, 2010, Bradley County had $65,856,331 in outstanding
debt for capital purposes for the discretely presented Bradley County
School Department and the City of Cleveland’s School System. In
accordance with state statutes, certain county school debt proceeds
must be shared with other public school systems in the county (City of
Cleveland School System) based on an average daily attendance
proration. This debt is a liability of Bradley County, but the capital
assets acquired are reported in the financial statements of the county
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School Department and the City of Cleveland School System.
Therefore, Bradley County has incurred a liability significantly
decreasing its unrestricted net assets with no corresponding increase
in the county’s capital assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose.

8. Prior-period Adjustments

Net assets of Bradley County were restated $1,544,942 from the
prior-year because the liability for other postemployment benefits as
of July 1, 2009, was overstated.

IL. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

A.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
balance sheet and the government-wide Statement of Net Assets

Primary Government

Exhibit C-2 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the balance sheet of governmental funds with the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

Exhibit I-3 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the balance sheet of governmental funds with the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balances and the government-wide Statement of Activities

Primary Government

Exhibit C-4 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the net change in fund balances — total
governmental funds with the change in net assets of governmental activities
reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities.

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

Exhibit I-5 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the net change in fund balances — total
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governmental funds with the change in net assets of governmental activities
reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities.

III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for all governmental funds except the
Constitutional Officers — Fees Fund (special revenue fund) and the Endowment
Fund (permanent fund), which are not budgeted and the capital projects
funds, which adopt project length budgets. All annual appropriations lapse at
fiscal year end.

The county is required by state statute to adopt annual budgets. Annual
budgets are prepared on the basis in which current available funds must be
sufficient to meet current expenditures. Expenditures and encumbrances
may not legally exceed appropriations authorized by the County Commission
and any authorized revisions. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end
of each fiscal year.

The budgetary level of control is at the major category level established by
the County Uniform Chart of Accounts, as prescribed by the Comptroller of
the Treasury of the State of Tennessee. Major categories are at the
department level (examples of General Fund major categories: County
Commission, Board of Equalization, County Mayor/Executive, County Attorney,
etc.). Management may make revisions within major categories, but only the
County Commission may transfer appropriations between major categories.
During the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

The county's budgetary basis of accounting is consistent with GAAP, except
Instances in which encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures. The
difference between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis is presented on the
face of each budgetary schedule.

Cash Overdraft

The Cities Sale Tax Fund had a cash overdraft of $7,393 at June 30, 2010.
This overdraft resulted from the issuance of warrants exceeding cash on
deposit with the county trustee. This cash overdraft was liquidated
subsequent to June 30, 2010.

A Capital Outlay Note was not Issued in Compliance with State
Statutes

County officials issued a $240,000 capital outlay note to purchase land, a
small building, and two radio towers for emergency management without the
approval of the state Comptroller’s Office as required by Section 9-21-601,
Tennessee Code Annotated.
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IV.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A.

Deposits and Investments

Bradley County and the Bradley County School Department participate in an
internal cash and investment pool through the Office of Trustee. The county
trustee is the treasurer of the county and in this capacity is responsible for
receiving, disbursing, and investing most county funds. Each fund’s portion of
this pool is displayed on the balance sheets or statements of net assets as
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments. Cash and investments reflected on
the balance sheets or statements of net assets represent nonpooled amounts
held separately by individual funds.

Deposits

Legal Provisions. All deposits with financial institutions must be secured by
one of two methods. One method involves financial institutions that
participate in the bank collateral pool administered by the state treasurer.
Participating banks determine the aggregate balance of their public fund
accounts for the State of Tennessee and its political subdivisions. The amount
of collateral required to secure these public deposits must equal at least
105 percent of the average daily balance of public deposits held. Collateral
securities required to be pledged by the participating banks to protect their
public fund accounts are pledged to the state treasurer on behalf of the bank
collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in
the aggregate rather than against each account. The members of the pool
may be required by agreement to pay an assessment to cover any deficiency.
Under this additional assessment agreement, public fund accounts covered by
the pool are considered to be insured for purposes of credit risk disclosure.

For deposits with financial institutions that do not participate in the bank
collateral pool, state statutes require that all deposits be collateralized with
collateral whose market value is equal to 105 percent of the uninsured
amount of the deposits. The collateral must be placed by the depository bank
in an escrow account in a second bank for the benefit of the county.

Investments

Legal Provisions. Counties are authorized to make direct investments in
bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the U.S. government and obligations
guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies; deposits at state
and federal chartered banks and savings and loan associations; bonds of any
state or political subdivision rated A or higher by any nationally recognized
rating service; nonconvertible debt securities of certain federal government
sponsored enterprises; and the county’s own legally issued bonds or notes.
These investments may not have a maturity greater than two years. The
county may make investments with longer maturities if various restrictions
set out in state law are followed. Counties are also authorized to make
investments in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool and in repurchase
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agreements. Repurchase agreements must be approved by the state
Comptroller’s Office and executed in accordance with procedures established
by the State Funding Board. Securities purchased under a repurchase
agreement must be obligations of the U.S. government or obligations
guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies. When repurchase
agreements are executed, the purchase of the securities must be priced at
least two percent below the fair value of the securities on the day of purchase.

Investment Balances. As of June 30, 2010, Bradley County had the
following nonpooled investment carried at fair value for the Endowment

Fund:

Investments Maturities Fair Value

U.S. Treasury Bill 7-15-10 $ 4,299,892

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest
rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. State statutes limit
the maturities of certain investments as previously disclosed. Bradley County
does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities
as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to
an investment will not fulfill its obligations. State statutes limit the ratings
of certain investments as previously explained. Bradley County has no
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. Bradley
County’s investment in the U.S. Treasury Bill was not rated.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of
loss attributed to the magnitude of the county’s investment in a single issuer.
Bradley County places no limit on the amount the county may invest in one
issuer. The $4,299,892 nonpooled investments in U.S. Treasury Bills
represent the entire investments of the primary government’s Endowment
Fund.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the county
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. Bradley County does not have
a formal policy that limits custodial credit risk for investments.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable in the HUD Capital Projects Fund resulted from idle federal
funds being used to finance various low-interest loans for housing assistance
to low-income individuals. The amount of the notes that is not expected to be
collected within one year is $34,004.
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Derivative Instruments

Primary Government

At June 30, 2010, Bradley County had the following derivative instruments
outstanding:

Original
Notional Effective ~ Maturity
Instrument Type Objective Amount Date Date Terms
$10M Swap Pay fixed  Variable to $ 10,000,000 7 12-1-06 " 6-1-20 Pay 4.38%
Series IV-C-2 interest synthetic fixed receive 63.5%
rate rate swap of LIBOR
swap
$10M Swap Pay fixed  Variable to 10,000,000 © 12-1-06 " 6-1-26  Pay 4.45%
Series IV-G-1 interest synthetic fixed receive 63.5%
rate rate swap of LIBOR
swap

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments
outstanding at June 30, 2010, classified by type, and the changes in fair value
of such derivative instruments for the year then ended as reported in the
2010 financial statements are as follows:

6-30-10
Changes in Fair Value Fair Value at June 30, 2010 Notional

Type Classification Amount Classification Amount Amount

Governmental Activities
Cash Flow Hedges:
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps:
$10M Swap - Series IV-C-2 Deferred  $ (239,598) Debt $(1,273,456) $ 9,575,000

Outflow

$10M Swap - Series IV-G-1 Deferred (441,951) Debt (2,174,248) 10,000,000
Outflow

Totals $ (681,549) $(3,447,704) $19,575,000

Derivative Swap Agreement Detail

$10M Series IV-C-2 Swap:

The Public Building Authority of Bradley County, Tennessee, at the request
of the county, has entered into an interest rate swap agreement under its
Series IV-C-2 Loan Agreement.

Objective of the interest rate swap. To protect against the potential of

rising interest rates and to balance its mixture of variable and fixed rate
debt, the county requested the authority, on its behalf, to enter into an
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interest rate swap in connection with its $10 million Series IV-C-2
variable-rate bonds. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the
county’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate. The
Series IV-C-2 bonds have since been refunded with a portion of the proceeds
of the Series E-6-A bonds and the interest rate swap is now associated with
the Series E-6-A bonds.

Terms. Under the swap, the authority pays the counterparty a fixed
payment of 4.38 percent and receives a variable payment computed as
63.5 percent of the five-year London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The
swap had an original notional amount of $10 million and the original
associated variable-rate bonds had a $10 million principal amount. At no
time will the notional amount on the interest rate swap agreement exceed the
outstanding principal of the Series E-6-A Bonds. The bonds’ variable-rates
have historically approximated the Securities Industry and Financial
Markets Association Index™ (SIFMA). The swap agreement had an effective
date of December 1, 2006, and matures on dJune 1, 2020. As of
June 30, 2010, rates were as follows:

Terms Rate
Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed 4.380 %
Variable payment from counterparty % of LIBOR -1.711
Net interest rate swap payments 2.669 %
Variable-rate bond coupon payments 0.260
Synthetic interest rate on bonds 2.929 %

Fair value. As of June 30, 2010, the swap had a negative fair value of
$1,273,456. The negative fair value of the swap may be countered by
reductions in total interest payments required under the variable-rate bond,
creating lower synthetic rates. Because the rates on the government’s
variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a
corresponding fair value increase. The fair value model calculates future cash
flows by projecting forward rates, and then discounts those cash flows at
their present value.

Credit risk. As of June 30, 2010, the county was not exposed to credit risk
because the swap had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates
change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the county would be
exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value. The swap
counterparty, Morgan Keegan Financial Products (MKFP) was rated “A+” by
Standard and Poor’s as of June 30, 2010, with its Credit Support Provider,
Deutsche Bank, rated Aa3/A+/AA- by Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s and
Fitch, respectively.
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Basis risk. As noted above, the swap exposes the county to basis risk should
the bond rate increase to above 63.5 percent of LIBOR, thus increasing the
synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the bond rate
being below 63.5 percent of LIBOR, then the synthetic rate on the bonds will
decrease.

Termination risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap
Dealers Association Master Agreement, which includes standard termination
events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The Schedule to the Master
Agreement includes an “additional termination provision.” The authority or
the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform
under the terms of the contract. If the swap i1s terminated, the variable-rate
bond would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the authority would be liable
to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. Likewise, if
the swap has a positive fair value at termination, the counterparty would be
liable to the authority for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. As of June 30, 2010, debt service
requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming
current interest rates remain the same, for their term were as follows. As
rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will
vary.

Year Net Interest

Ending Variable Rate Bonds Rate Swap

June 30 Principal Interest Payment Total
2011 $ 455,000 $ 24,895 $ 255,586 $ 735,481
2012 485,000 23,712 243,441 752,153
2013 510,000 22,451 230,495 762,946
2014 540,000 21,125 216,881 778,006
2015 575,000 19,721 202,467 797,188
2016-2020 7,010,000 69,758 716,177 7,795,935
Total $ 9,575,000 $ 181,662 $§ 1,865,047 $ 11,621,709

$10M Series IV-G-1 Swap:

The Public Building Authority of Bradley County, Tennessee, at the request
of the county, has entered into an interest rate swap agreement under its
Series IV-G-1 Loan Agreement.

Objective of the interest rate swap. To protect against the potential of
rising interest rates and to balance its mixture of variable and fixed rate
debt, the county requested the authority, on its behalf, to enter into an
interest rate swap in connection with its $10 million Series IV-G-1
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variable-rate bonds. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the
county’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate. The
Series IV-G-1 bonds have since been refunded with a portion of the proceeds
of the Series E-6-A bonds and the interest rate swap is now associated with
the Series E-6-A bonds.

Terms. Under the swap, the authority pays the counterparty a fixed
payment of 4.45 percent and receives a variable payment computed as
63.5 percent of the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR).
The swap had an original notional amount of $10 million and the original
associated variable-rate bonds had a $10 million principal amount. At no
time will the notional amount on the interest rate swap agreement exceed the
outstanding principal of the Series E-6-A Bonds. The bonds’ variable-rates
have historically approximated the Securities Industry and Financial
Markets Association Index™ (SIFMA). The swap agreement had an effective
date of December 1, 2006, and matures on dJune 1, 2026. As of
June 30, 2010, rates were as follows:

Terms Rate
Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed 4.450 %
Variable payment from counterparty % of LIBOR -1.711
Net interest rate swap payments 2.739 %
Variable-rate bond coupon payments 0.260
Synthetic interest rate on bonds 2.999 %

Fair value. As of June 30, 2010, the swap had a negative fair value of
$2,174,248. The negative fair value of the swap may be countered by
reductions in total interest payments required under the variable-rate bond,
creating lower synthetic rates. Because the rates on the government’s
variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a
corresponding fair value increase. The fair value model calculates future cash
flows by projecting forward rates, and then discounts those cash flows at
their present value.

Credit risk. As of June 30, 2010, the county was not exposed to credit risk
because the swap had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates
change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the county would be
exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value. The swap
counterparty, Morgan Keegan Financial Products (MKFP) was rated “A+” by
Standard and Poor’s as of June 30, 2010, with its Credit Support Provider,
Deutsche Bank, rated Aa3/A+/AA- by Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s and
Fitch, respectively.
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Basis risk. As noted above, the swap exposes the county to basis risk should
the bond rate increase to above 63.5 percent of LIBOR, thus increasing the
synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the bond rate
being below 63.5 percent of LIBOR, then the synthetic rate on the bonds will
decrease.

Termination risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap
Dealers Association Master Agreement, which includes standard termination
events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The Schedule to the Master
Agreement includes an “additional termination provision.” The authority or
the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform
under the terms of the contract. If the swap is terminated, the variable-rate
bond would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the authority would be liable
to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. Likewise, if
the swap has a positive fair value at termination, the counterparty would be
liable to the authority for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. As of June 30, 2010, debt service
requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming
current interest rates remain the same, for their term were as follows. As
rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will
vary.

Year Net Interest

Ending Variable Rate Bonds Rate Swap

June 30 Principal Interest Payment Total
2011 $ 03 26,000 $ 273,931 $ 299,931
2012 0 26,000 273,931 299,931
2013 0 26,000 273,931 299,931
2014 0 26,000 273,931 299,931
2015 0 26,000 273,931 299,931
2016-2020 0 130,000 1,369,655 1,499,655
2021-2025 5,940,000 115,128 1,212,966 7,268,094
2026 4,060,000 10,556 111,216 4,181,772
Total $ 10,000,000 $ 385,684 $ 4,063,492 $ 14,449,176
Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:
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Primary Government

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
7-1-09 Increases  Decreases 6-30-10

Capital Assets Not

Depreciated:
Land $ 5,891,855 $ 56,650 0 $ 5,948,505
Construction in Progress 138,896 119,334 0 258,230
Total Capital Assets

Not Depreciated $ 6,030,751 $ 175,984 0 $ 6,206,735
Capital Assets

Depreciated:
Buildings and

Improvements $ 31,511,718 $ 30,000 0 $ 31,541,718
Infrastructure 27,432,872 2,791,672 (420,131) 29,804,413
Other Capital Assets 12,097,118 1,420,547 (178,134) 13,339,531
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated $ 71,041,708 $ 4,242 219 (598,265) $ 74,685,662
Less Accumulated

Depreciated For:
Buildings and

Improvements $ 10,514,972 $ 841,478 0 $ 11,356,450
Infrastructure 8,463,664 899,791 (196,020) 9,167,435
Other Capital Assets 8,898,539 1,055,513  (148,715) 9,805,337
Total Accumulated

Depreciation $ 27,877,175 $ 2,796,782 (344,735) $ 30,329,222
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated, Net $ 43,164,533 $ 1,445,437 (253,530) $ 44,356,440
Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, Net $ 49,195,284 $ 1,621,421 $ (253,530) $ 50,563,175

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as

follows:

64



Governmental Activities:

General Government
Finance

Administration of Justice
Public Safety

Public Health and Welfare

Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services

Agriculture and Natural Resources

Highways/Public Works

Total Depreciation Expense -

Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets Not
Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets
Not Depreciated

Capital Assets
Depreciated:
Buildings and
Improvements
Other Capital Assets
Total Capital Assets
Depreciated

Less Accumulated
Depreciated For:
Buildings and
Improvements
Other Capital Assets
Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Capital Assets
Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities

$ 75,187
3,555
4,880
1,277,618
160,967
110,647
2,079
1,161,849
$ 2,796,782
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

Balance Balance

7-1-09 Increases Decreases 6-30-10
$ 1,294,715 $ 09 0 $ 1,294,715
165,675 6,872,628 (165,675) 6,872,628
$ 1,460,390 $ 6,872,528 $ (165,675) $ 8,167,243
$ 85,353,400 $ 2,237,373 $ 0 $ 87,590,773
1,072,128 83,812 0 1,155,940
$ 86,425,528 $ 2,321,185 $ 0 $ 88,746,713
$ 28,826,399 $ 2,347,193 $ 0 $ 31,173,592
760,373 88,708 849,081
$ 29,586,772 $ 2,435,901 $ 0 $ 32,022,673
$ 56,838,756 $ (114,716) $ 0 $ 56,724,040
$ 58,299,146 $ 6,757,812 $ (165,675) $ 64,891,283

Capital Assets, Net
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the discretely presented
Bradley County School Department as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction $ 2,347,193
Support Services 88,708

Total Depreciation Expense -
Governmental Activities $ 2,435,901

Insurance Recoveries

During the year, Bradley County had damage to Sheriff's Department
vehicles. Insurance recovery of $14,880 was used to repair the damage.

Construction Commitments

Primary Government

At June 30, 2010, the General Capital Projects Fund had uncompleted
construction contracts of approximately $434,871 for asphalt and various
other expenditures for a paving project. Funding has been received for these
future expenditures.

At June 30, 2010, the Community Development/Industrial Park Fund had
uncompleted construction contracts of approximately $239,460 for a water
and sewer line project. Funding has been received for these future
expenditures.

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

At June 30, 2010, the General Purpose School Fund had uncompleted
construction contracts of approximately $3,283,783 for an addition to one of
its high schools. Funding has been received for these future expenditures.

At June 30, 2010, the Education Capital Projects Fund had uncompleted
construction contracts of approximately $2,709,408 for construction of an

elementary school. Funding has been received for these future expenditures.

Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers

Interfund Transfers:

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2010, consisted of the
following amounts:
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Primary Government

Transfers In

General
Debt Nonmajor
General Service Governmental
Transfers Out Fund Fund Funds
General Fund $ 09 156,250 $ 10,000
Nonmajor governmental funds 297,632 80,875 50,000
Total $ 297,632 $ 237,125 $ 60,000

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

Transfers In

General
Purpose Nonmajor
School Governmental
Transfers Out Fund Fund
General Purpose School Fund $ 0% 300,000
Nonmajor governmental fund 47,390 0
Total $ 47,390 $ 300,000

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget
requires to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend
them and to use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

Capital Leases

Primary Government

On November 25, 2008, Bradley County entered into a two-year
lease-purchase agreement to purchase six patrol cars. The terms of the
agreement require total lease payments of $131,519 plus interest of five
percent. Title to the vehicles transfers to Bradley County at the end of the
lease period. The lease payments are made by the General Fund.

On February 4, 2009, Bradley County entered into a two-year lease-purchase
agreement to purchase one patrol car. The terms of the agreement require
total lease payments of $20,060 plus interest of 6.6 percent. Title to the
vehicles transfers to Bradley County at the end of the lease period. The lease
payments are made by the General Fund.

On December 14, 2009, Bradley County entered into a two-year
lease-purchase agreement to purchase eight patrol cars. The terms of the
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agreement require total lease payments of $173,434 plus interest of
4.65 percent. Title to the vehicles transfers to Bradley County at the end of
the lease period. The lease payments are made by the General Fund.

On January 13, 2010, Bradley County entered into a two-year lease-purchase
agreement to purchase one patrol car. The terms of the agreement require
total lease payments of $20,302 plus interest of 6.15 percent. Title to the
vehicles transfers to Bradley County at the end of the lease period. The lease
payments are made by the General Fund.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of the
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2010, were as follows:

Year Ending Governmental
June 30 Funds

2011 $ 120,809
2012 67,633
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 188,442
Less: Amount Representing Interest (11,859)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 176,583

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

On May 18, 2007, the Bradley County School Department entered into a
seven-year lease-purchase agreement to purchase an energy saving lighting
system. The terms of the agreement require total lease payments of $547,182
plus interest of 4.8 percent. Title to the lighting system transfers to the
Bradley County School Department at the end of the lease period. The lease
payments are made by the General Purpose School Fund.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of the
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2010, were as follows:

Year Ending Governmental
June 30 Funds

2011 $ 93,880
2012 93,880
2013 93,880
2014 93,880
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 375,520
Less: Amount Representing Interest (41,076)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 334,444
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Long-term Debt

Primary Government

General Obligation Bonds, Notes, and Other Loans

The county issues general obligation bonds and other loans to provide funds
for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. In addition,
general obligation bonds and other loans have been issued to refund other
general obligation bonds and other loans. Capital outlay notes are also
issued to fund capital facilities and other capital outlay purchases, such as
equipment.

General obligation bonds, capital outlay notes, and other loans are direct
obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government. General
obligation bonds, capital outlay notes and other loans outstanding were
issued for original terms of up to 20 years for bonds, up to ten years for notes
and up to 18 years for other loans. Repayment terms are generally
structured with increasing amounts of principal maturing as interest
requirements decrease over the term of the debt. All bonds, notes and other
loans included in long-term debt as of June 30, 2010, will be retired from the
General Debt Service Fund.

General obligation bonds, capital outlay notes, other loans, and capital leases
outstanding as of June 30, 2010, for governmental activities are as follows:

Original
Interest Amount Balance
Type Rate of Issue 6-30-10
General Obligation Bonds 5t0 5.5 % $ 17,550,000 $ 17,550,000
Other Loans - Variable Rate Variable 34,770,000 31,020,000
Other Loans - Synthetic Fixed
by Swap Variable 20,000,000 19,575,000
Other Loans 3 to 4.25 12,050,000 12,050,000
Capital Outlay Notes Otob 908,340 611,193
Capital Leases 4.65 t0 6.6 345,315 176,583

During the period, Bradley County, on behalf of the School Department and
the City of Cleveland, issued $17,550,000 of general obligation bonds from
the Build America Bonds program. This program allows state and local
governments to issue taxable bonds for capital projects and to receive a new
direct federal subsidy payment from the U.S. Treasury Department for a
portion of their borrowing costs. The American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act of 2009 creates the new Build America Bond program, which authorizes
state and local governments to issue Build America Bonds as taxable bonds
in 2009 and 2010 to finance any capital expenditures for which they
otherwise could issue tax-exempt government bonds. State and local
governments receive a direct federal subsidy payment for a portion of their
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borrowing costs on Build America Bonds equal to 35 percent of the total
coupon interest paid to investors.

Bradley County has entered into various loan agreements with the Bradley
County Public Building Authority (PBA) to finance various capital projects
for the county and the discretely presented Bradley County School
Department. Under the loan agreements, the PBA issued revenue bonds and
made the proceeds available for loan to Bradley County. In addition to
repaying the loans, the county pays various other fees (trustee, debt
remarketing, etc.). The following table summarizes loan agreements
outstanding at June 30, 2010:

Original Interest Fee
Amount Outstanding Rates Rates
of Loan Principal Interest as of as of
Description Agreement 6-30-10 Type 6-30-10 6-30-10
Refunding:
Series V-I-1 $ 12,050,000 $ 12,050,000 Fixed 3t0 4.25 % .65%
Series VII-A-5 6,560,000 5,505,000 Variable 0.25 .706
Series E-6-A: 28,210,000 25,515,000 Variable 0.26 .69
Series IV-C-2 10,000,000 9,575,000  Synthetic
Fixed by
Swap 2.929 1.68
Series IV-G-1 10,000,000 10,000,000 Synthetic
Fixed by
Swap 2.999 1.68
Total $ 62,645,000

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds, notes and
other loans outstanding as of June 30, 2010, including interest payments,
other loan fees, and direct federal subsidy are presented in the following
tables:
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Bonds

Tresury
Department

Year Ending Direct
June 30 Principal Interest Subsidy Total
2011 $ 0 935,080 $ (327,278) $ 607,802
2012 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2013 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2014 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2015 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2016-2020 0 4,675,400 (1,636,390) 3,039,010
2021-2025 8,000,000 4,097,305 (1,434,057) 10,663,248
2026-2029 9,550,000 1,594,270 (557,994) 10,586,276
Total $ 17,550,000 $ 15,042,375 $ (5,264,831) $ 27,327,544
Year Ending Notes
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 159,648 $§ 23,182 §$ 182,830
2012 169,784 16,338 186,122
2013 142,712 9,010 151,722
2014 79,049 3,224 82,273
2015 60,000 1,110 61,110
Total $ 611,193 § 52,864 $ 664,057
Year Ending Other Loans
June 30 Principal Interest Other Fees Total
2011 $ 2,450,000 492,456 $ 872,899 $ 3,815,355
2012 3,535,000 486,233 837,317 4,858,550
2013 3,695,000 451,894 799,310 4,946,204
2014 3,860,000 415,909 759,666 5,035,575
2015 4,035,000 379,088 717,848 5,131,936
2016-2020 23,490,000 1,202,121 2,867,351 217,559,472
2021-2025 15,825,000 229,574 1,222,027 17,276,601
2026 5,755,000 14,963 96,454 5,866,417
Total $ 62,645,000 $ 3,672,238 $§ 8,172,872 $§ 74,490,110

There 1s $16,403,302 available in the General Debt Service Fund to service
long-term debt. Bonded debt per capita totaled $200, based on the 2000
federal census. Debt per capita, including bonds, notes, other loans, and
capital leases, totaled $921, based on the 2000 federal census.
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Other
Bonds Notes Loans
Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 0 § 445,242 $ 64,995,000
Additions 17,550,000 240,000 0
Deductions 0 (74,049) (2,350,000)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 17,550,000 $ 611,193 $ 62,645,000
Balance Due Within One Year $ 0$ 159,648 $ 2,450,000
Other
Capital Compensated Postemployment
Leases Absences Benefits
Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 176,075 $ 1,187,722 $ 1,565,047
Prior-period Adjustment 0 0 (1,544,942)
Additions 193,736 1,028,380 554,985
Deductions (193,228) (1,013,447) (57,555)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 176,583 $ 1,202,655 $ 517,535
Balance Due Within One Year $ 112,052 $ 609,308 $ 0

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefits will be paid from

the employing funds, primarily the General and Highway/Public Works
funds.

Analysis of Noncurrent Liabilities Presented on Exhibit A:

Total Noncurrent Liabilities, June 30, 2010 $ 82,702,966
Less: Balances Due Within One Year (3,331,008)
Add: Unamortized Premium on Debt 112,968

Noncurrent Liabilities - Due in
More Than One Year - Exhibit A $ 79,484,926
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Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

Capital Outlay Note

Bradley County issues capital outlay notes on behalf of the School
Department to provide funds for capital facilities and other capital outlay
purchases, such as equipment.

Capital outlay notes are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit
of the government. The capital outlay note was issued for an original term of
seven years. Repayment terms are a fixed amount of principal and no
interest over the term of the debt. The capital outlay note included in

long-term debt as of June 30, 2010, will be retired from the General Purpose
School Fund.

The capital outlay note and capital lease outstanding as of June 30, 2010, for
governmental activities are as follows:

Original
Interest Amount Balance
Type Rate of Issue 6-30-10
Capital Outlay Note 0 % $ 331,660 $ 189,520
Capital Lease 4.8 547,182 334,444

The annual requirements to amortize the note outstanding as of
June 30, 2010, are presented in the following table:

Year Ending Note
June 30 Principal
2011 $ 47,380
2012 47,380
2013 47,380
2014 47,380
Total $ 189,520

Debt per capita, including the note and the capital lease, totaled $6, based on
the 2000 federal census.

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the discretely presented Bradley County
School Department for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:
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Governmental Activities:

Capital
Note Lease
Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 236,900 $ 408,706
Deductions (47,380) (74,262)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 189,520 $ 334,444
Balance Due Within One Year $ 47,380 $ 77,826
Governmental Activities:
Other
Postemployment
Benefits

Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 1,707,360
Additions 1,533,057
Deductions (653,612)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 2,586,805
Balance Due Within One Year $ 0
Analysis of Noncurrent Liabilities Presented on Exhibit A:
Total Noncurrent Liabilities, June 30, 2010 $ 3,110,769
Less: Balances Due Within One Year (125,206)
Noncurrent Liabilities - Due in

More Than One Year - Exhibit A $ 2,985,563

On-Behalf Payments — Discretely Presented Bradley County School
Department

The State of Tennessee pays health insurance premiums for retired teachers
on-behalf of the Bradley County School Department. These payments are
made by the state to the Local Education Group Insurance Plan and the
Medicare Supplement Plan. Both of these plans are administered by the
State of Tennessee and reported in the state’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Payments by the state to the Local Education Group
Insurance Plan and the Medicare Supplement Plan for the year ended
June 30, 2010, were $397,574 and $49,720, respectively. The School
Department has recognized these on-behalf payments as revenues and
expenditures in the General Purpose School Fund.
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V.

OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Risk Management

Primary Government

Bradley County’s risks of loss relating to general liability, property, casualty,
and workers’ compensation are covered by participation in public entity risk
pools. The county is a member of the Local Government Property and
Casualty Fund (LGPCF), which is a public entity risk pool established by the
Tennessee County Services Association, an association of member counties.
The county pays an annual premium to the LGPCF for its general liability,
property, and casualty insurance coverage. The creation of the LGPCF
provides for it to be self-sustaining through member premiums. The LGPCF
reinsures through commercial insurance companies for claims exceeding
$100,000 for each insured event.

Bradley County participated in the Local Government Group Insurance
Fund; however, beginning July 1, 2009, the county decided to provide
commercial health insurance coverage to its employees. Settled claims have
not exceeded this commercial coverage over the past fiscal year.

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

The School Department’s risks of loss relating to general liability, property,
casualty, and workers’ compensation are covered by participation in public
entity risk pools. The School Department is a member of the Tennessee Risk
Management Trust (TN-RMT), which is a public entity risk pool created
under the auspices of the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act to
provide governmental insurance coverage. The School Department pays
annual premiums to the TN-RMT for its general liability, property, casualty,
and workers’ compensation insurance coverage. The creation of the TN-RMT
provides for it to be self-sustaining through member premiums.

The School Department participates in the Local Education Group Insurance
Fund (LEGIF), a public entity risk pool established to provide a program of
health insurance coverage for employees of local education agencies. In
accordance with Section 8-27-301, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA), all local
education agencies are eligible to participate. The LEGIF is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of Tennessee, but the
state does not retain any risk for losses by this fund. Section 8-27-303, TCA,
provides for the LEGIF to be self-sustaining through member premiums.

Accounting Changes

Provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets; and
Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments became effective for the year ended June 30, 2009.
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GASB Statement No. 51 establishes accounting and financial reporting
requirements for intangible assets. Intangible assets have three
characteristics: lack of physical substance, nonfinancial in nature, and a
useful life that extends beyond a single reporting period. Assets that have
these characteristics and are identifiable to the government should be
recorded as capital assets and amortized over their useful lives. Easements,
water rights, patents, and computer software are examples of intangible
assets that should be recognized under GASB Statement No. 51. Bradley
County and the Bradley County School Department had no assets that met
the definition of intangible assets at June 30, 2010. However, it is reasonably
expected that Bradley County and the School Department may acquire
intangible assets in subsequent years.

GASB Statement No. 53 addresses the recognition, measurement, and
disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by
county governments. Derivative instruments are financial arrangements
used by governments as investments; hedges against identified financial
risks; or to lower the costs of borrowings. Interest rate swaps and locks,
options, swaptions, forward contracts, and futures contracts are among the
commonly used types of derivatives mentioned in GASB Statement No. 53.
Derivative instruments associated with fluctuating financial and commodity
prices result in changing cash flows and fair values that can be used as
effective risk management or investment tools. For the same reasons,
derivative instruments can expose governments to significant risks and
liabilities. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 53 are intended to help
users of financial information evaluate the effectiveness and associated risks
involved with Bradley County’s derivative transactions. GASB Statement
No. 53 requires most derivatives to be reported at fair value in the Statement
of Net Assets. Changes in fair value for derivative instruments that are
intended for investment purposes or that are reported like investment
derivative instruments because of ineffectiveness are reported as investment
revenues in the Statement of Activities. Alternatively, the changes in fair
value of derivative instruments that are classified as hedging (i.e. effective)
derivative instruments are reported in the Statement of Net Assets as
deferrals. Notes IV.C., Derivative Instruments; and IV.I., Long-term Debt;
describe derivative transactions of Bradley County as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2010.

Subsequent Events

On August 31, 2010, Raymond Swafford left the Office of Register and was
succeeded by Dina Swafford, and Tim Gobble left the Office of Sheriff and
was succeeded by James Ruth.

On September 1, 2010, the county’s General Debt Service Fund issued a

$2,000,000 tax anticipation note to the General Fund for temporary operating
funds.
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Contingent Liabilities

The county is involved in several pending lawsuits. Attorneys for the county
estimate that the potential claims against the county not covered by
insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the
financial statements of the county.

In prior years, a citizen agreed to pay principal and interest on capital
projects at various schools in the county to Bradley County until
June 1, 2016. In January 2009, this citizen filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy.
This citizen has contributed over $1,000,000 to the county for these projects
since 2005. The county believes there is approximately $2,000,000 remaining
in pledged amounts on the principal for these projects as of June 30, 2010.
We are unable to determine if this citizen will make any other payments on
these projects. In the event that no payments are received, the county will
make the principal and interest payments for these projects.

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost

Bradley County has active permits on file with the state Department of
Environment and Conservation for a sanitary landfill and a demolition
landfill. The county has provided financial assurances for estimated closure
and postclosure liabilities as required by the State of Tennessee. These
financial assurances are on file with the Department of Environment and
Conservation.

State and federal laws and regulations require the county to place a final
cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure.
Closure costs generally are paid near the date that the landfill stops
accepting waste and postclosure care costs are paid during the 30-year period
following closure. Bradley County has contracted with Santek
Environmental, Inc., of Bradley County, a private company, to operate the
county’s landfill. This contract was amended on December 1, 1999, and again
on September 23, 2005, and requires Santek to be responsible for all closure
and postclosure care costs of the county’s landfill during the term of the
contract. The term of the 2005 amendment to the contract is the estimated
life of the landfill — approximately 55.2 years based on current usage — and
the life of additional cells that might be opened in the future. The $1,151,240
estimated closure and postclosure costs of the landfill at June 30, 2010, were
not included in the county’s long-term debt due to the uncertainty of what
amount, if any, will be paid by the county. This amount is based on
estimates of what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in
2010. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations.
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Joint Ventures

The Bradley County Emergency Communications District (also known as the
Cleveland/Bradley Communications Center) is a joint venture in which the
county and the cities of Cleveland and Charleston participate. The district
provides a simplified means of securing emergency services through a
uniform emergency number for the residents of Bradley County. The
governing body of the district includes three members appointed by the
county mayor, subject to confirmation by the Bradley County Commission,
the Cleveland City Council, and eight ex-officio members, who are employees
of the cities of Cleveland and Charleston involved in emergency response
management. Before the issuance of most debt instruments, the district must
obtain the approval of the Bradley County Commission and the Cleveland
City Council. The center is funded through a service charge levied on
telephone services and appropriations from the cities and county. During the
year ended June 30, 2010, the county appropriated an operating subsidy of
$450,000 to the district.

The Hiwassee Utilities Commission is a joint venture that is operated by
Bradley and McMinn counties. The commission is governed by a six-member
board that is appointed by the participating governments. Bradley County
and McMinn County are contingently liable for certain revenue bonds of the
Hiwassee Utilities Commission. On October 18, 2007, the Hiwassee Utilities
Commission issued $12,000,000 in public improvement bonds. The principal
of these bonds is reflected on the financial statements of the Hiwassee
Utilities Commission. Bradley County would become liable for one-half of
these bonds and the interest thereon in the event of default by the Hiwassee
Utilities Commission. As of June 30, 2010, future principal and interest
requirements, which Bradley County would be liable for, were $5,847,500 and
$5,793,050, respectively. Bradley County made no contributions to the
Hiwassee Utilities Commission for the year ended June 30, 2010.

The Tenth Judicial District Drug Task Force (DTF) is a joint venture formed
by an interlocal agreement between the district attorney general of the Tenth
Judicial District and the municipalities within the district. The district is
composed of Bradley, McMinn, Monroe, and Polk counties and various
cities within these counties. The purpose of the DTF is to provide
multi-jurisdictional law enforcement to promote the investigation and
prosecution of drug-related activities. Funds for the operations of the DTF
come primarily from federal grants, drug fines, and the forfeiture of
drug-related assets to the DTF. The DTF is overseen by the district attorney
general and is governed by a Board of Directors that includes the district
attorney general, sheriffs, and police chiefs of the participating law
enforcement agencies within the judicial district. Bradley County made no
contributions to the DTF for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Bradley County does not have equity interests in any of the above-noted joint
ventures. Complete financial statements for the Bradley County Emergency
Communications District, the Hiwassee Utilities Commission, and the Tenth
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Judicial District Drug Task Force can be obtained from their administrative
offices at the following addresses:

Administrative Offices:

Bradley County Emergency Communications District
1555 Guthrie Drive North West
Cleveland, TN 37312

Hiwassee Utilities Commaission
3973 Chatata Valley Road
Charleston, TN 37310

District Attorney General

Tenth Judicial District

130 Washington Avenue North East, Suite 1
Athens, TN 37371

Jointly Governed Organization

Bradley County, in conjunction with McMinn, Monroe, and Polk counties,
participates in the Southeast Tennessee Community Corrections Program.
The program’s 20-member board comprises the county mayor and the sheriff
of each of the four counties, the district attorney general, one member from a
nonprofit organization, and ten members from the private sector who are
appointed by the board. The program provides alternative sentencing for
selected nonviolent offenders and is funded by the Tennessee Department of
Correction. The counties that participate in the program do not have any
ongoing financial interest or responsibility for the program.

Retirement Commitments

Employees

Plan Description

Employees of Bradley County are members of the Political Subdivision
Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high
five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to
retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of
service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the
age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years
of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment.
There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident
or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty.
Members joining the system after July 1, 1979, become vested after five years
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of service, and members joining prior to July 1, 1979, were vested after four
years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in
Title 8, Chapters 34-37 of Tennessee Code Annotated. State statutes are
amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as
Bradley County participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are liable
for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan.
Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless
approved by the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the PSPP. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee Treasury Department,
Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor, Andrew Jackson Building,
Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at www.tn.gov/treasury/tcrs/PS.

Funding Policy

Bradley County has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its
employees by assuming employee contributions up to five percent of annual
covered payroll. The county is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, was
13.23 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of
plan members is set by state statute. The contribution requirement for
Bradley County is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of
Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2010, Bradley County’s annual pension cost of
$3,160,453 to TCRS was equal to the county’s required and actual
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the
July 1, 2007, actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include
(a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a
year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent
(graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion
attributable to the effects of inflation on salaries), (c) projected 3.5 percent
annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (d) projected post
retirement increases of three percent annually. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term
volatility in the market value of total investments over a five-year period.
Bradley County’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a
level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at
July 1, 2007, was nine years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of
July 1, 2009, which established contribution rates effective July 1, 2010.
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Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6-30-10 $3,160,453 100% $0
6-30-09 3,123,521 100 0
6-30-08 2,969,309 100 0

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was
82.72 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$58.39 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $48.3 million, resulting
in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $10.09 million. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$25.1 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
40.19 percent.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

The annual required contribution was calculated using the aggregate actuarial
cost method. Since the aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or
separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities, information about funded
status and funding progress has been prepared using the entry age actuarial
cost method for that purpose, and this information is intended to serve as a
surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.

School Teachers

Plan Description

The Bradley County School Department contributes to the State Employees,
Teachers, and Higher Education Employees Pension Plan (SETHEEPP), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits to plan members
and their beneficiaries. Benefits are determined by a formula using the
member’s high five-year average salary and years of service. Members
become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any
age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to
vested members who are at least 55 years of age or have 25 years of service.
Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of service
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who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no
service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury
occurring while the member was in the performance of duty. Members joining
the plan on or after July 1, 1979, are vested after five years of service.
Members joining prior to July 1, 1979, are vested after four years of service.
Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapters
34-37 of Tennessee Code Annotated. State statutes are amended by the
Tennessee General Assembly. A cost of living adjustment (COLA) is provided
to retirees each July based on the percentage change in the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) during the previous calendar year. No COLA is granted if the
CPI increases less than one-half percent. The annual COLA is capped at
three percent.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the
SETHEEPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor, Andrew
Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at
WwWWw.tn.gov/treasury/ters/Schools.

Funding Policy

Most teachers are required by state statute to contribute five percent of their
salaries to the plan. The employer contribution rate for the Bradley County
School Department is established at an actuarially determined rate. The
employer rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, was 6.42 percent of
annual covered payroll. The employer contribution requirement for the
Bradley County School Department is established and may be amended by
the TCRS Board of Trustees. The employer’s contributions to TCRS for the
years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008, were $2,238,374, $2,189,217, and
$2,054,151, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

Bradley County employees, who retired prior to July 1, 2009, and the School
Department participate in the state-administered Local Government Group
Insurance Plan and the Local Education Group Insurance Plan for healthcare
benefits. For accounting purposes, the plans are agent multiple-employer
defined benefit OPEB plans. Benefits are established and amended by
an insurance committee created by Section 8-27-207, Tennessee Code
Annotated (TCA), for local governments and Section 8-27-302, TCA, for local
education employees. Prior to reaching the age of 65, all members have the
option of choosing a preferred provider organization (PPO), point of service
(POS), or health maintenance organization (HMO) plan for healthcare
benefits. Subsequent to age 65, members who are also in the state’s
retirement system may participate in a state-administered Medicare
Supplement Plan that does not include pharmacy. The plans are reported in
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the State of Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The
CAFR is available on the state’s website at http./tn.gov/finance/act/cafr.html.

Funding Policy

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be
amended by the insurance committee. The plans are self-insured and
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis with the risk shared equally among the
participants. Claims liabilities of the plan are periodically computed using
actuarial and statistical techniques to establish premium rates. The
employers in each plan develop a contribution policy in terms of subsidizing
active employees or retired employees’ premiums since the committee is not
prescriptive on that issue. The state does not provide a subsidy for local
government participants; however, the state does provide a partial subsidy to
Local Education Agency pre-65 teachers. Currently there are no Bradley
County retirees’ who contribute to their insurance. School Department
retirees’ contributions vary depending on the insurance options they select,
ranging from $0 to $594 per month for their insurance. Bradley County and
the School Department recognized expenditures of $10,628 and $653,612
respectively, for postemployment health care during the year ended
June 30, 2010.

Local Local
Government Education

Group Group

Plan Plan
ARC $ 19,000 $ 1,529,000
Interest on the NPO 905 76,831
Adjustment to the ARC (857) (72,774)
Annual OPEB cost $ 19,048 $ 1,533,057
Amount of contribution (10,628) (653,612)
Increase/decrease in NPO $ 8,420 $ 879,445
Net OPEB obligation, 7-1-09 1,565,047 1,707,360
Prior-period Adjustment (1,544,942) 0
Net OPEB obligation, 6-30-10 $ 28,525 $ 2,586,805
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Percentage Net

Fiscal Annual of Annual Adjusted
Year OPEB OPEB Cost Obligation
Ended Plans Cost Contributed at Year End
6-30-08 Local Education Group $ 1,492,000 43.16% $ 848,110
6-30-09 " 1,510,019 43.10 1,707,360
6-30-10 " 1,633,057 42.63 2,586,805
6-30-08 Local Government Group 867,000 10.13 779,179
6-30-09 " 874,936 10.18 20,105
6-30-10 " 19,048 55.79 28,525

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Local Local
Education Government
Group Group
Plan Plan
Actuarial valuation date 7-1-09 7-1-09
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 13,750,000 $ 237,000
Actuarial value of plan assets $ 0 $ 0
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 13,750,000 $ 237,000
Actuarial value of assets as a % of the AAL 0% 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 42,374,854 3 0
UAAL as a % of covered payroll 32.45% 0%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of
the substantive plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of
sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets.
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In the July 1, 2009, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method was used and the actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses). The annual
healthcare cost trend rate for the Local Education Group Plan was four
percent for fiscal year 2010. The trend will rise to ten percent in fiscal year
2011 and then will be reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of five
percent by fiscal year 2021. The annual heath care cost trend rate for the
Local Government Group Plan was three percent for fiscal year 2010. The
trend will rise to ten percent in fiscal year 2011 and then will be reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of five percent by fiscal year 2021. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage
of payroll on a closed basis over a 30-year period beginning with
June 30, 2008.

Primary Government — Commercial Healthcare Plan

Plan Description

Effective July 1, 2009, Bradley County changed its healthcare from the Local
Government Group Plan to a self-insured/commercial healthcare benefits
plan administered by Cigna. For accounting purposes, the plan is a
single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. Benefits are established and
amended by an insurance committee established by the County Commission.

Funding Policy

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be
amended by the insurance committee. The plan is self-insured/purchased
commercially and financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Claims liabilities of the
plan are periodically computed using actuarial and statistical techniques to
establish premium rates. The county develops its own contribution policy in
terms of subsidizing active employees or retired employees’ premiums.
Eligible employees must earn 25 years of service for a 50 percent county paid
subsidy or 30 years of service for a 100 percent county paid subsidy until the
age of 65 when they become eligible for Medicare. Employees may continue
medical coverage upon retirement with less than 25 years of service;
however, such employee would be required to pay the full group premium
rate. The retiree’s spouse is eligible while the retiree is eligible for coverage
until the spouse’s age of 65. Although a formal written policy is not in place,
it is assumed that spouses are eligible to continue coverage until age 65.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Primary
Government
Commercial
Plan
ARC $ 535,937
Interest on the NPO 0
Adjustment to the ARC 0
Annual OPEB cost $ 535,937
Less amount of contribution (46,927)
Increase/decrease in NPO $ 489,010
Net OPEB obligation, 7-1-09 0
Net OPEB obligation, 6-30-10 $ 489,010
Percentage
Fiscal Annual of Annual Net OPEB
Year OPEB OPEB Cost Obligation
Ended* Plan Cost Contributed at Year End
6-30-10 Commercial $ 535,937 8.76% $ 489,010

* Data not available for two preceding years.
Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Primary
Government
Commercial
Plan

Actuarial valuation date 7-1-10
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 3,730,894
Actuarial value of plan assets $ 0
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 3,730,894
Actuarial value of assets as a % of the AAL 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 19,046,151
UAAL as a % of covered payroll 19.58%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
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results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of
the substantive plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of
sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets.

In the July 1, 2010, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of eight percent initially, reduced by decrements to
an ultimate rate of five percent after six years. Both rates include a three
percent inflation assumption. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over a
30-year period beginning with Julyl, 2009.

Termination Benefits

The discretely presented Bradley County School Department offers a
retirement incentive to employees who retire with at least five years of
service with the School Department and 28 years of service with the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). In accordance with
contract provisions, eligible retirees can choose either the retirement
incentive or the postemployment health insurance benefits noted above. The
retirement incentive consists of a one-time cash payment between $4,000 and
$10,000 depending on the employee’s creditable service with TCRS. These
payments are made only when employees choose to accept the incentive.
During the year ended June 30, 2010, no School Department employee chose
to accept the retirement incentive; therefore, the total cost of the cash
payments reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets by
function was zero.

Purchasing Laws

Office of County Mayor

Purchasing procedures for the County Mayor’s Office are governed by
provisions of Chapter 313, Private Acts of 1951, as amended. This statute
provides for the county mayor to serve as purchasing agent and for all
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purchases exceeding $5,000 to be made only after competitive bids have been
received from two or more suppliers.

Office of Road Superintendent

Purchasing procedures for the Highway Department are governed by
provisions of Chapter 354, Private Acts of 1947, and the Uniform Road Law,
Section 54-7-113, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA), which provide for the
Road Superintendent to make all purchases and for all purchases exceeding
$10,000 to be made after public advertisement and solicitation of competitive
bids.

Office of Director of Schools

Purchasing procedures for the discretely presented Bradley County School
Department are governed by purchasing laws applicable to schools as set
forth in Section 49-2-203, TCA, which provides for the county Board of
Education, through its executive committee (director of schools and the
chairman of the Board of Education), to make all purchases. This statute also
requires that competitive bids be solicited through newspaper advertisement
on all purchases exceeding $10,000.

VI. OTHER NOTES - DISCRETELY PRESENTED BRADLEY HEALTHCARE
AND REHABILITATION CENTER

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Reporting Entity

Bradley Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center is a component unit of
Bradley County, Tennessee. The nursing center’s Board of Trustees is
appointed by the Bradley County Commission. Capital projects are
funded primarily from general obligation bonds of the county.

2. Nature of Operations

The nursing center is principally engaged in providing long-term
medical and therapeutic care to elderly residents of Bradley County
and the surrounding areas.

3. Basis of Accounting

The nursing center is accounted for as an enterprise fund. Revenues
are recorded when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred
using the economic resources measurement focus. Based on
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, as
amended, the nursing center has elected to apply the provisions of all
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relevant pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United
States generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that the nursing center, as a
component unit of Bradley County, is an exempt organization as
described in Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code; therefore, no
provision for income taxes is provided in the financial statements.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the nursing center’s estimated
net realizable amounts from residents, third-party payers, and others
for services rendered.

Retroactively calculated contractual adjustments arising under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and
adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the nursing center
considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Limited
use assets include cash held for patients and are not considered cash
equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows as they are
not the property of the nursing center and can only be used at the
direction of the patient. The nursing center also holds limited use
assets that are restricted by donors for specific purposes that are not
considered cash equivalents until the specifications are met. These
items are not considered cash equivalents until they are transferred to
unrestricted net assets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or
market.
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9. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets,
ranging from five to 40 years, using the straight-line method.

10. Compensated Absences

Accumulated paid time off is accrued when earned.
11. Net Assets

Net assets of the nursing center are classified in four components.
Net assets invested in capital assets consist of property and
equipment net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any
outstanding borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction
of those assets. There was no outstanding debt for property and
equipment. Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to donor
imposed restrictions that may or will be met, whether by action of the
nursing center or the passage of time. When a restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets for which the restricted purpose is
related to the nursing center are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of operations as net assets released
from restrictions. Permanently restricted net assets are subject to
donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by
the nursing center. Generally, the donors of permanently restricted
net assets permit the nursing center to use all or part of the income
earned on any related investment for general or specific purpose.
Unrestricted net assets are the remaining net assets that do not meet
the definition of net assets invested in capital assets or restricted net
assets.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
nursing center’s deposits may not be returned to it. The nursing center’s
deposits are made to a local bank that participates in the Tennessee Bank
Collateral Pool (the “Pool”), a multi-entity risk pool that assumes the burden
of collateralizing public funds on deposit with local banks. The Treasury
Department of the State of Tennessee administers the pool. The Treasury
Department, using uniform procedures, centralizes the collateralization of
public funds. The funds in the pool are collateralized at 105 percent of the
face amount of the deposits uninsured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (the “FDIC”). All deposits are either insured by the FDIC or
through the pool resulting in no custodial credit risk.

Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:
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D.

General stores
Foods and dietary

Enteral feeding supplies

Total

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is limited are as follows:

Patient trust funds
Scholarship fund
Activities fund
Chapel fund
Country store fund
Endowment fund

Total

$ 24,811
9,470
1,206

3 35,487

$ 93,968
13,426

1,157

677

3,068

110,721

3 223,017

These assets represent cash and certificates of deposit with a local financial
institution. The patient trust funds are patients’ personal assets and are
reflected in the financial statements as both an asset and a liability. The
Scholarship, Activities, Chapel, Country Store, and Citizen’s Endowment
funds represent restricted cash and are shown on the balance sheet as both

limited use assets and restricted net assets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Land

Land Improvements

Buildings

Fixed Equipment

Major Movable

Computer Software

Computer Hardware

Vehicles

Total

Less: Accumulated
Depreciation

Property and
Equipment, Net

Balance Increases/ Balance
7-1-09 Decreases 6-30-10
$ 1,250 $ 0o $ 1,250
332,699 11,862 344,561
5,254,322 147,432 5,401,754
852,949 0 852,949
1,661,678 28,775 1,690,453
42,695 1,000 43,695
106,006 5,083 111,089
106,444 0 106,444
$ 8,358,043 % 194,152 $ 8,552,195
(5,556,795) (294,451) (5,851,246)
$ 2,801,248 $ (100,299) $ 2,700,949
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Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Assets whose use is permanently restricted are as follows:

Scholarship $ 12,000
Citizens’ Endowment Fund 110,000
Total $ 122,000

Citizens’ Endowment Fund

On December 27, 2005, the trustees of the nursing center took over control of
the Bradley Memorial Hospital Citizens’ Endowment Fund. The fund was
originally established at the bequest of a private citizen to provide a source of
income for the Bradley Memorial Hospital. On October 14, 2005, the hospital
was sold to a private entity, and in accordance with the terms of the
hospital’s Declaration of Trust, the assets of the fund were required to be
transferred to another county-owned entity. The trustees of the nursing
center took over management of the fund by executing a separate Declaration
of Trust dated December 27, 2005. Should the nursing center be sold to a
private entity, these funds are to be transferred to the Cleveland Public
Library.

Donations may be made to the fund and designated as either restricted or
unrestricted. No part of the original principal of the fund shall be expended;
it should be invested and reinvested by the nursing center’s trustees at a
financial institution in Bradley County, Tennessee, and be fully insured by a
federal agency. All income of the fund must be used for exempt purposes
under federal tax laws and regulations applicable to the fund.

Scholarship Fund

The Scholarship Fund was established by a former medical director of the
nursing center as a memorial to his sister. The corpus of the fund is to be
held in a certificate of deposit with the earnings to be used to fund
scholarships for nursing center employees who desire to pursue a career in
nursing. The fund is administered by the trustees through the nursing
center’s management.

Patient Service Revenue

Medicare

The nursing center is paid for by Medicare patients under a prospective
payment system that bases payment on categories that are indicative of the
amount of resources used to treat the specific patient. The category is
determined based on periodic clinical assessments of the patient’s functional
ability.
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Medicaid

Services rendered to Medicaid recipients are reimbursed at per day rates
determined by the Tennessee Comptroller’s Office. The rates are subject to
ceilings for both skilled and intermediate care. The per day rate is
established prospectively, based on the prior year’s cost report.

A summary of gross and net patient revenues for the year ended
June 30, 2010, follows:

Medicare $ 2,273,244
Medicaid 8,472,271
Other 1,094,635
Gross Patient Service Revenues $ 11,840,150
Contractual Adjustments and

Uncollectible Accounts 232,565
Net Patient Service Revenue $ 12,072,715

Accrued Leave

The nursing center has an all-purpose paid time off (PTO) policy. Employees
who work 30 hours or more per week are eligible to earn and use PTO.
Vacation is accrued using a formula based on length of employment at the
nursing center. Accrued but unpaid vacation benefits at June 30, 2010, were
$230,338 and are included in accrued payroll as a current liability.

Pension Plan

The nursing center sponsors a 403(b) salary deferral plan for the benefit of its
employees. Under the plan, employees are allowed to defer a portion of their
earnings up to certain maximum amounts. The nursing center matches the
employee contributions at the amount deferred up to four percent. The
employer match totaled $51,861 at June 30, 2010. There was no unpaid
liability at June 30, 2010.

Commitments and Contingencies

The nursing center is insured for professional liability under a claims-made
policy with an independent insurance carrier. The policy covers all claims
reported to the carrier for incidents that occur during the coverage period.
The coverage period coincides with the nursing center’s fiscal year.
Coverages were renewed at July 2010, rendering the need for tail coverage
unnecessary. Premiums are determined by a variety of factors related to the
nursing center.
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Leases that do not meet the criteria for capitalization are classified as
operating leases with the related rentals charged to operations as incurred.

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under
operating leases as of June 30, 2010, that have initial or remaining terms of
one year or more.

Minimum
Year Ending Lease
June 30 Payments
2011 $ 10,104
2012 6,948
2013 6,948
2014 6,948
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 30,948

Total rental expense for all operating leases was $31,144 for 2010, and is
included in the general services expense classification.

Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues

The nursing center is subject to the risks of torts by its employees; theft,
destruction or damage to its fixed assets; business interruptions; errors or
omissions; injury or illness of employees while in the course of their
employment and acts of nature, such as fires, floods, and earthquakes. The
nursing center insures itself against losses due to this exposure through the
purchase of commercial liability and workers’ compensation insurance from
reputable insurers. There have been no substantial losses incurred in prior
years, and the amount of coverage purchased has not been reduced.
Management is unaware of any potential claims that would result in
reductions to or cancellation of coverage by the insurer.

Subsequent Events

As required by FASB Statement No. 165 Subsequent Events, subsequent
events for the Nursing Center have been evaluated through the financial
statements date of issuance.
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Exhibit E-2

Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Highway/Public Works Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues

Local Taxes $ 2,685,847 $ 2,574,643 $ 2,556,810 $ 29,037

Other Local Revenues 189,326 14,110 188,300 1,026

State of Tennessee 2,296,396 2,402,700 2,263,100 33,296
Total Revenues $ 5,071,569 $ 4,991,453 $ 5,008,210 $ 63,359
Expenditures

Highways

Administration $ 459,129 $ 489,965 $ 494,165 $ 35,036
Highway and Bridge Maintenance 3,002,118 3,075,882 3,106,622 104,504
Operation and Maintenance of Equipment 418,986 464,939 458,889 39,903
Quarry Operations 0 100 0 0
Litter and Trash Collection 80,433 89,938 89,938 9,505
Other Charges 150,054 159,920 155,900 5,846
Employee Benefits 686,668 737,539 715,739 29,071
Capital Outlay 292,318 405,750 318,550 26,232

Capital Projects

Highway and Street Capital Projects 267,910 369,514 353,714 85,804
Total Expenditures $ 5,357,616 $ 5,793,647 $ 5,693,517 $ 335,901
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $ (286,047) $ (802,094) $§ (685,307) $ 399,260
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Insurance Recovery $ 03 100 $ 239 $ (239)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 03 100 $ 239 $ (239)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (286,047) $ (801,994) $ (685,068) $ 399,021
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 2,387,690 1,764,218 1,764,218 623,472
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 2,101,643 $ 962,224 $ 1,079,150 $ 1,022,493
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Exhibit E-3

Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Funding Progress — Pension Plan

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department
June 30, 2010

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a
Value of Liability  Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Plan (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7-1-09 $ 48,300 $ 58390 $ 10,090 82.72 % $ 25,105 40.19 %
7-1-07 43,144 49,698 6,554 86.81 22,057 29.71

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires the plan to prepare the
Schedule of Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. The
requirement to present the Schedule of Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial
cost method went into effect during the 2007 year; therefore, only the two most recent
valuations are presented.
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BRADLEY COUNTY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The county is required by state statute to adopt annual budgets. Annual budgets are
prepared on the basis in which current available funds must be sufficient to meet
current expenditures. Expenditures and encumbrances may not legally exceed
appropriations authorized by the Bradley County Commission and any authorized
revisions. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

The budgetary level of control is at the major category level established by the
County Uniform Chart of Accounts, as prescribed by the Comptroller of the Treasury
of the State of Tennessee. Major categories are at the department level (examples of
General Fund major categories: County Commission, Board of Equalization, Budget
and Finance Committee, County Mayor, etc.). Management may make revisions
within major categories, but only the Bradley County Commission may transfer
appropriations between major categories. During the year, several supplementary
appropriations were necessary.

The county's budgetary basis of accounting is consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), except instances in which encumbrances are treated
as budgeted expenditures. The difference between the budgetary basis and the
GAAP basis is presented on the face of each budgetary schedule.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Effective July 1, 2009, Bradley County changed its healthcare from the Local
Government Group Plan to a self-insured/commercial healthcare benefits
administered by Cigna. For accounting purposes, the plan is a single-employer
defined benefit OPEB plan. Benefits are established and amended by an insurance
committee established by the County Commission. Bradley County employees who
retired prior to July 1, 2009, are still on the Local Government Group Plan.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND SCHEDULES
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N onmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Law Library Fund — The Law Library Fund is used to account for a special tax
levied by private act on litigation. Proceeds of the tax must be expended for the
benefit of the county’s law library.

Public Library Fund — The Public Library Fund is used to account for transactions
for the Bradley County/Cleveland Public Library, which is jointly funded by Bradley
County and the City of Cleveland.

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund — The Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund is used to account
for transactions relating to Bradley County trash collection and waste disposal.

Drug Control Fund — The Drug Control Fund is used to account for revenues
received from drug-related fines, forfeitures, and seizures.

Agri-Business Fund — The Agri-Business Fund is used to account for revenues and
expenditures associated with the Agri-Business Center’s operations.

Special Purpose Fire Tax Fund — The Special Purpose Fire Tax Fund is used to
account for transactions of the county’s Fire Department. A property tax rate is
assessed on citizens living in Bradley County but outside of the cities of Cleveland
and Charleston. Proceeds of the tax must be expended on fire protection for those
citizens.

Veterans Nursing Home Fund — The Veterans Nursing Home Fund is used to
account for contributions and the county’s share of a proposed Veterans Nursing
Home.

Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund — The Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund is
used to account for operating expenses paid directly from the fee and commission
accounts of the trustee, clerks, register, and sheriff.

106



Vocational Building Fund — The Vocational Building Fund is used to account for
transactions of a vocational building owned by the county and leased to the State of
Tennessee. This fund was closed during the period.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

General Capital Projects Fund — The General Capital Projects Fund is used to
account for general capital expenditures of the county.

Community Development/Industrial Park Fund — The Community Development/
Industrial Park Fund is used to account for industrial park projects.

Peerless Road Capital Projects Fund — The Peerless Road Capital Projects Fund is
used to account for a specific road project.

HUD Grant Projects Fund — The HUD Grant Projects Fund is used to account for
Housing and Urban Development projects.

Other Capital Projects Fund — The Other Capital Projects Fund is used to account
for the County/City of Cleveland Greenway project. This fund was closed during the
period.

107



(penunuo))

seoue[Rg punj puR SAMI[IqRI] [€10],

seoueRqg puny [B10],
paAresaIun)
9[qBATIS09Y] S9J0N ULI9)-SUOT I0J PIAISSY
S9JUBIQUINIUY I0] POAISSSY]

SeoueTeg pung

SOLIIIqRTT [810],
SONULALY PaLIda(] 18I0
soxe [, A110dord jusnbur[e(] - onUASY poIIoJo(]
soxB[, A110d0IJ JUSLIN)) - ONUIASY PALISJO(]

899°LT $ ¢95°.98°C $ 8¥GT9 $ €G¥5ov $ ¥67'89%'T $ 3GE9'9EL $ 160°6T
899°LT $ 186'TF0'T $ SL6°6V $ €G¥'50v $ ¥67'89%'T $ 8LS'G91 $ 160°61
899°LT 97196 GL6'6V 685'60% 9LE°89¥%°T 8LG°G9T 160°61
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 $ LL¥08 $ 0 $ vel $ 8I1 $ 0 $ 0
0 $ ¥E9°GI8'T $ €LT¥I $ 0 $ 0 $ ¥SO0°TLS $ 0
0 0 €LGVT 0 0 0ge‘1 0
0 GG9VET 0 0 0 81671 0
0 $ 6L6°08¢°T $ O $0 $ 0 $ 98L%9S $ 0
899°LT $ ¢95°.98°C $ 8¥GT9 $ €a¥5ov $ ¥67'89%'T $ 3GE9'9EL $ 160°6T
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 (08G°191) 0 0 0 (L0g‘€B) 0
0 $57°666°T 0 0 0 691°669 0
0 00063 LOLLG 0 Y65 LT 1607 0
0 0 0 0 L9€‘€9 0 0
899°LT 1L9866 1%5°9¢ €3V c0¥ €¥8°.88°T 616991 160°61
0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0
@EOE xN'H mm@ﬁﬁmﬂm MO.SQOO Qoﬂmﬁﬁﬁm %H&ho@& %.Hmhn—ﬂ.h
SursanN Rt | -3y snaqg ] 9ISB M otrqng mery
SUBIOIOA asodang PIOS
[ewedg

spun, enueAey [Badg

T-d QXY

SHONV'IV] ANNA ANV SHILI'TIIVI'T
$79SSY [€10],

WI9)-SUOT - O[BATS09Y SOI0N

sox® [, A&310doag 9[qII09[[00U[) I0J SOUBMO[[Y
9[qeAred9y soxe], A3redorg

SIUSWUIDAOY) J93() WOIJ an(]

9[qBATIE09Y SIUNO0JOY

SJUOWISOAU] PUB [SB)) Pa[oo Ul A3tnbyy
Used

SLUSSV

010¢ "0¢ 2unp

SpuN,] [BJUOUIUIOAOY) TO[BTITON
199Yg ooue[ey SuruIquIo))
995soUto [, ‘Ajunoy) Ad[peiyg

108



seoue[Rg punj puR SAMI[IqRI] [€10],

seoueRqg puny [B10],
paAresaIun)
9[qBATIS09Y] S9J0N ULI9)-SUOT I0J PIAISSY
S9JUBIQUINIUY I0] POAISSSY]

SeoueTeg pung

SOLIIIqRTT [810],
SONULALY PaLIda(] 18I0
soxe [, A110dord jusnbur[e(] - onUASY poIIoJo(]
soxB[, A110d0IJ JUSLIN)) - ONUIASY PALISJO(]

119%9¢€T  $ ZOV'GLV L 968°09T $ 628°G0%°2 $ LL9'B0T'C $ 602°688°¢ $ 880°€2E
189°G06°6 $ 607 LITV'9 968°09T $ 988°LYT'T $ LL9'B0T'C $ 8¥Z'38¥'C $ 880°€ge
€6G°911°6 ¥L0°60L°S 368931 9L£'806 908°€L9¥ 61G°L0¥'E 880°€3¢E
00'7¢ $00'7¢ ¥007€ 0 0 0 0
090°GSL $ TEEVLY 0 $ 09v'66c ¢ TL8FEY ¢ 63L0S $ 0
$G6°8S¥ ‘¢ $ ©€66°L90°1 0 $ €66°L50°T $ 0 $ 196°00v'c $ 0
G81°81 69S°G 0 69S°G 0 €39°C1 0
88G°€0¢ ST0'%S 0 ST0'%S 0 €LG8°6¥% 0
P8I°LET‘E $ 6I7'T00T 0 $ 6IF'T00T $ O $ <Q9Lee1G $ O
T119%9¢€T  $ 2OV'QLV L 968091 $ 628°G02°2 $ LL9'B0T'C $ 602°688°¢ $ 880°€2E
$00'7¢ $00'7¢ ¥007€ 0 0 0 0
(966°G¥3) (696°09) 0 (696°09) 0 (LE0‘e8T) 0
69G°GEL S 996°LET‘T 0 996°LET‘T 0 €6S765°G 0
L8V‘18 GEV L 0 GEV L 0 3S0'7L 0
ov1°GL €8L°8 0 0 €8L°8 LGE‘€9 0
63£°L9¢°6 €LI‘8¥E9 368931 L8E1BT‘T ¥68°660°G 9G1°610°¢ 0
880°€3¢ $0 0 $0 0 $ 880‘cge ¢ 880'cge
spunyq 12101, sjoaloag yred sjoaloag 12101, EEER|
[BIUDWUIDAOK) jueIn Tersnpuy reade) - SI921J0
JTolewruoN anHe AuewdoreAs( [eIouex) [euory
18310, Ajrunwrao)) - NJIISU0)
spuny sjoeloxd rejde) (G

spun,| enueaAsy [eadg

T-d QXY

SHONV'IV] ANNA ANV SHILI'TIIVI'T
$79SSY [€10],

WI9)-SUOT - O[BATS09Y SOI0N

sox® [, A&310doag 9[qII09[[00U[) I0J SOUBMO[[Y
9[qeAred9y soxe], A3redorg

SIUSWUIDAOY) J93() WOIJ an(]

9[qBATIE09Y SIUNO0JOY

SJUOWISOAU] PUB [SB)) Pa[oo Ul A3tnbyy
Used

SLUSSV

(7U0))) SpUN,] [BIUSWUIDAOY) JO[BWUON
199Yg ooue[ey SuruIquIo))
995soUto [, ‘Ajunoy) Ad[peiyg

109



(penunuo))

880°€3¢E 899°LT $ T1€6°TF0T $ SL66V $ €ey'eor $ ¥6¥'89%'T $ 8LS'¢91T 160°61 0103 ‘0¢ dunp ‘eouereq puny
188°6LE 191°¢ £79°895°T ¥8G°LG 61L°L6L G88°90€‘T €10°TCT 11871 600 ‘T Amp ‘eduereq punyg
(€6L°09) LOSFHT $ (B1L°9T3)  $ (609°L) $ (962°¢68) $ 609°T9T  $ S9SFI 088°% seoue[eq pun,f ut a3uey)) N
0 0 $ (6L9761)  $ 0 $0 $0 $ 0 0 (ses()) seoanog SurouruL] 10Y3() [BI0]
0 0 (GL9V6T) 0 0 0 0 0 mQ sIeJsueL],
0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 uj s1ejsueL],
S35[]) S90IN0g SUOUBUL] 10030
(€6L°09) LOSFT $ (L€0°32) $ (609°L) $ (963°66E)  $ 609°T9T  § G9GFT 0887 seanyIpuadxy 1040
SoNUAdY JO (KOULIDJA(]) SSOOXH
919'GSLT 0 $ BIF9IST $ TLL'GLI $ 9¥5'66¥ $ g6£'60T $ ¥6¥°699 108°L seInyIpuadxy [830(,
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 syo9load Teyrde)
0 0 160°cE 36¢'T 080°'T TLL'ST 8LYTT 931 suoryerad() 1030
0 0 0 6LEVLT 0 0 910°8GS GLY'L SOOIATOG [BUOIJBAINDY PUE ‘[BININ)) TBI00S
0 0 0 0 0%9°'83 129°08 0 0 aIBJ[OM PUE YI[EBH d1qnd
0 0 8L I8LT 0 9L5°69¥ 0 0 0 £Kye7eg o1Iqng
868733 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ISP JO UOTIBISIUTWIPY
¥0T°€€3'T 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 doueuLy]
¥19'76% 0 $ 0 $0 $0 $ 0 $0 0 JUOWIUIDAOK) [RISUIL)
JuaLIny)
SorMTPUadXy
€28 T0L T L0SVT $ 28€¥6LT $ 391°891 $ 096°€0T $ T00°TLG $ 690789 189°C1 SONUSAdY [810],
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 JUSWUIOAOY) [BIOPS]
0 0 000°T 0 0 80€°L¥ 08¥°LT 0 90SSOUUD, JO 91835
0 LOSFT 000°¢3 0L¥°93 GL9 1493 0 0 S9NUdALY [BO0T 1830
£28°T0L'T 0 0 0 0 A R4 0 ¢66°0T SOOIATOG JUSLINY) 10f Se3IBY)
0 0 0 0 8L3‘€0T 0 0 OLT'T SOI)[BUSJ PUE ‘SOINJIJIO ‘SOUL]
0 0 $ 28€YILT $ B69TVI $0 $0 $ 6L9999 91¢ SOXE[, [B00T]
SonueAey
EEERT awoy XB]J, ssoutsng T013U0)) uorjejTURS Arexqry Axreaqry
- S1901J0 SursanN aar ] -8y Snaqg /@1SBM orqng mer|
Teuor) SUBIDIOA asodang prog
-NJTISUOY) [etoadg

spun,] enueAdy [eradg

&-d QXY

0TOg "0¢ dUnp papuy 180X 93 10,
Spun ] [BTUPWUISAOL) J0[BWIUON
Seoue[eg punj ur seguey)) pue

SoINIPUAUXy] ‘SoNUeAdY JO JUOWIEIS SUTUI(UWO.)
355SoUtR ], "AJUTO)) AS[PBIg

110



L99°606'6  $ 60V°LIF9 $ O 968°09T $ 0 $ 968 LPT'T $ LLOGOT'S $ 8¥C'88%'C $ 0 $ 0103 ‘0¢ dunp ‘eouereq puny
689°198°6 688°¢¥8°G G2G'GL 908°89T VLTIV 67L'60¥ GEG'890°G 099°L00°F% a7 600 ‘T Amp ‘eduereq punyg
8TI¥VS $ ogg'eLs ¢ (98gGL) 060 $ FLE'TPT)  $ L80°8EL  $ &FI'0S $ (zov'e1s)  $ (€9evh)  $ seoureq puUn Ul 93URY)) 1N
(L05'89€) $ (GLL'8Y)  $ (SLL'SY) 0 $ (000°0S)  $ 000°0¢ $ 0 $ (zeL'e1e)  $ (1L50°g3T)  $ (s9s()) sedamog Suoueul] 1PYIQ [8I0],
(L0S'8TY) (GLL'80T) (GLL'89) 0 (000°09) 0 0 (ZeL'61E) (L60°G3T) mQ sagysuel,
00009 $ 00009 $ 00001 0 $0 $ 000°09 $0 $ 0 $0 $ U] SI9JsuBL],
S9S[)) S92IN0S sulourury] I8yl
G29'GeY $ 662229  $ (05L°92) 060G $ (7L3'16)  § L80°889  § &FI0¢ $ (0L9°661) $ 70508 $ seanyIpuadxy 1040
SoNUAdY JO (KOULIDJA(]) SSOOXH
LBIVI6'9  § G¥6'SL6'T $ 0GL°9% 12 $ I61°TPG  $ 991°0SE’T $ 8I8°09¢ § 295'9e6'v $ €I1SF $ seInyIpuadxy [830(,
L19°969 L19°96G 0 0 161°1¥3 0 95¥°'ege 0 0 sjoefoxg reyrde)
LETTOV'T 82£'28¢T 08L°9% 1% 0 g9T'09€‘T z6e'e 608'8L 126 suonperad(Q 10310
0L0'0¥L 0 0 0 0 0 0 0L0°0¥L 0 SOJIAIDG [BUOI}BAIOIY PUE ‘Teinjny Teroog
192°601 0 0 0 0 0 0 192°601 0 QIBJ[O |\ PUE YI[BOH dIqnd
$06°098C 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥06°098C 0 £Kye7eg o1Iqng
868725 0 0 0 0 0 0 868725 0 901ISN JO UOTBIISTUTWPY
F0T°€E3'T 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥01°€€3T 0 dourUL]
903865 $0 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 902865 ¢ @6SE $ JUOWUIOAOY) [BIDUDY)
‘JuaLIny)
SoIMITPUedX]
328'9€€’L  § 0¥2109G $ 0 111°g $ L166VT  $ 793’860 $ 096°0T¥  $ 389'GELy § LI0‘CS $ sonueAdy [BI0],
TH1°99 TH1°99 0 0 1199 0 0 0 0 JUSWUIDAOY) [BIOPO]
296°183 ¥91°Gh1 0 0 9LL'e8 88€°8¢ 0 88L°6L 0 998SOUUR, JO 9383S
062°10S €LE'6YE 0 111G 0 0 29g%°'LVE L16°1¢T L10°G8 senueAdy [820] 1910
092°9€6°1 0 0 0 0 0 0 092'9€6°T 0 S9OIAIDG JUDLING) 10J SAFTLY))
gl 0 0 0 0 0 0 8¥¥ 701 0 SOI}BUSJ PUE ‘SOIN}IDJI0, ‘SOUL]
1€L°90SY  $ 29¢'€¥0 $ 0 0 $0 $ ¥98°6L6T $ 869°¢9 $ 691°¢9¥2 $ 0 $ soxXg[, [8007]
SoNTeASY
spuny 183107, sjoaloxg sjoaloag sjoaloxg sred sjoeloxg 18101, surpring
[BIUDWUIDAOY) reade) jueRLY) reade) retsnpuy reade) [eUoI}eI0A
JolewruoN Reloale) any peoy uewdo[eAs(]  [BIOULY)
1elo], EECIRERE | Ayrunwwo))
spuny sjoelorg reyde) ("3u0))

&-d QXY

spun,] enuaasy Teradg

(7U0)) SpUN] [BJUSWUISAOY) JO[BWIUON
Sooue ey pun,] Ul SoSUey)) pue

SoINIPUAUXy] ‘SoNUeAdY JO JUOWIEIS SUTUI(UWO.)
355SoUtR ], "AJUTO)) AS[PBIg

111



Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Law Library Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit F-3

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Local Taxes 516 500 500 16
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 1,170 1,200 1,200 (30)
Charges for Current Services 10,995 10,300 10,300 695
Total Revenues 12,681 12,000 12,000 681
Expenditures
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services
Libraries 7,675 10,248 10,248 2,673
Other Operations
Other Charges 126 120 130 4
Total Expenditures 7,801 10,368 10,378 2,577
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 4,880 1,632 1,622 3,258
Net Change in Fund Balance 4,880 1,632 1,622 3,258
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 14,211 8,527 8,627 5,684
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 19,091 10,159 10,149 8,942
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Exhibit F-4

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Public Library Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 566,579 $ 556,179 $ 556,179 $ 10,400
State of Tennessee 17,480 10,300 10,300 7,180
Total Revenues $ 584,059 $ 566,479 $ 566,479 $ 17,580
Expenditures
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services
Libraries $ 558,016 $ 558,650 $ 558,650 $ 634
Other Operations
Other Charges 11,478 12,045 12,045 567
Total Expenditures $ 569,494 $ 570,695 $ 570,695 $ 1,201
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ 14,565 $ (4,216) $ (4,216) $ 18,781
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 14,565 $ (4,216) $ (4,216) $ 18,781
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 151,013 151,343 151,343 (330)
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 165,578 $ 147,127 $ 147,127 $ 18,451
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Agri-Business Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit F-7

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Local Taxes 141,692 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ (8,308)
Other Local Revenues 26,470 19,679 19,679 6,791
Total Revenues 168,162 $ 169,679 $ 169,679 $ (1,517)
Expenditures
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services
Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational 174,379 $ 167,203 $ 180,785 $ 6,406
Other Operations
Other Charges 1,392 1,500 1,500 108
Total Expenditures 175,771 $ 168,703 $ 182,285 $ 6,514
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (7,609) $ 976 $ (12,606) $ 4,997
Net Change in Fund Balance (7,609) $ 976 $ (12,606) $ 4,997
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 57,5684 63,679 63,679 (6,095)
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 49,975 $ 64,655 $ 51,073 $ (1,098)
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Exhibit F-9

Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Veterans Nursing Home Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Other Local Revenues $ 14,507 $ 14,500 $ 14,500 $ 7
Total Revenues $ 14,507 $ 14,500 $ 14,500 $ 7
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ 14,507 $ 14,500 $ 14,500 $ 7
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 14,507 $ 14,500 $ 14,500 $ 7
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 3,161 3,200 3,200 (39)
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 17,668 $ 17,700 $ 17,700 $ (32)
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Exhibit F-10

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Vocational Building Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues

Other Local Revenues $ 85,017 $ 85,017 $ 85,017 $ 0
Total Revenues $ 85,017 $ 85,017 $ 85,017 $ 0
Expenditures

General Government

Other Facilities $ 3,592 $ 3,000 $ 3,692 § 0

Other Operations

Other Charges 921 850 921 0
Total Expenditures $ 4513 $ 3,850 $ 4513 $ 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $ 80,504 $ 81,167 $ 80,504 $ 0
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out $ (125,057) $ (80,875) $  (125,057) $ 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (125,057) $ (80,875) $  (125,057) $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (44,553) $ 292 $ (44,553) $ 0
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 44,553 42,439 44,553 0
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 0F9$ 42,731 $ 09 0
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Major Governmental Fund

(General Debt Service Fund

The General Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation
of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, interest,
and related costs.
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Exhibit G

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

General Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues

Local Taxes $ 4,831,014 $ 4,824,536 $ 4,824,536 $ 6,478

Other Local Revenues 21,228 143,267 13,267 7,961

State of Tennessee 147,636 143,900 143,900 3,736

Federal Government 237,277 0 237,277 0
Total Revenues $ 5,237,155 $ 5,111,703 $ 5,218,980 $ 18,175
Expenditures

Other Operations

Other Charges $ 97,834 $ 112,210 $ 112,210 $ 14,376

Principal on Debt

General Government 601,493 674,322 601,493 0
Education 1,822,556 2,231,936 1,834,556 12,000
Interest on Debt
General Government 403,659 731,609 500,000 96,341
Education 2,040,413 3,319,000 2,237,277 196,864
Other Debt Service
General Government 193,192 2,057 200,000 6,808
Education 162,068 11,043 200,000 37,932
Total Expenditures $ 5,321,215 $ 7,082,177 $ 5,685,636 $ 364,321
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $ (84,060) $ (1,970,474) $  (466,556) $ 382,496
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In $ 237,125 $ 284,505 $ 237,125 $ 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 237,125 $ 284,505 $ 237,125 $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 153,065 $ (1,685,969) $ (229,431) $ 382,496
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 16,250,237 15,627,439 16,127,439 122,798
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 16,403,302 $ 13,941,470 $ 15,898,008 $ 505,294
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Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the county as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or
other funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
Liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Cities - Sales Tax Fund — The Cities - Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the
second half of sales tax revenues collected inside incorporated cities of the county.
These revenues are received by the county from the State of Tennessee and
forwarded to the various cities on a monthly basis.

Cities - Sales Tax in Litigation Fund — The Cities - Sales Tax in Litigation Fund is
used to account for a sales tax levy dedicated to education in Bradley County. The
City of Cleveland has asked that some of this levy be distributed to the city school
system based on the average daily attendance basis. The county trustee is
distributing this additional sales tax levy to the county’s school system, based on
the county’s average daily attendance basis, and putting what would be the city
school system’s share, based on the city’s average daily attendance basis, into this
fund. This matter is currently in litigation.

Inside Urban Fringe Area Fire Tax Fund — The Inside Urban Fringe Area Fire Tax
Fund is used to account for property taxes collected on property that lies within five
miles of the City of Cleveland. These taxes are remitted to the City of Cleveland,
which provides fire protection for this property.

City School ADA - Cleveland Fund — The City School ADA - Cleveland Fund is used
to account for the city school system’s share of education revenues collected by the
county that must be apportioned between the various school systems on an average
daily attendance basis. These collections are remitted to the city school system on a
monthly basis.

City School ADA — Build America Bonds Fund — The City School ADA - Build
America Bonds Fund is used to account for the city school system’s share of Build
America Bonds issued by the county that must be apportioned between the various
school systems on an average daily attendance basis. These collections are remitted
to the city school system when they are needed.
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Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund — The Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund
is used to account for amounts collected in an agency capacity by the county clerk,
circuit and general sessions courts clerk, clerk and master, register, and sheriff.
Such collections include amounts due the state, cities, other county funds, litigants,
heirs, and others.
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and

Liabilities - All Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit H-2

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Cities - Sales Tax Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 0$ 8,856,484 §$ 8,856,484 $ 0
Due from Other Governments 1,265,651 1,569,514 1,265,651 1,569,514
Total Assets 1,265,651 $ 10,425,998 $§ 10,122,135 $§ 1,569,514
Liabilities
Cash Overdraft 0$ 7,393 $ 0$ 7,393
Due to Other Taxing Units 1,265,651 10,418,605 10,122,135 1,662,121
Total Liabilities 1,265,651 $ 10,425,998 $§ 10,122,135 $§ 1,569,514
Cities - Sales Tax In Litigation Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 0$ 376,751 $ 0$ 376,751
Accounts Receivable 0 110 0 110
Due from Other Governments 0 36,544 0 36,544
Total Assets 0% 413,405 $ 0% 413,405
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units 0$ 413,405 $ 0$ 413,405
Total Liabilities 03 413,405 $ 0 3 413,405
Inside Urban Fringe Area Fire Tax Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 16,506 $ 1,891,197 $ 1,859,756 $ 47,947
Taxes Receivable 2,201,015 2,216,505 2,201,015 2,216,505
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (167,905) (191,133) (167,905) (191,133)
Total Assets 2,049,616 $ 3,916,569 $ 3,892,866 $§ 2,073,319
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units 1,924,616 $ 3,916,569 $ 3,767,866 $ 2,073,319
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others 125,000 0 125,000 0
Total Liabilities 2,049,616 $ 3,916,569 $ 3,892,866 $§ 2,073,319
(Continued)
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and

Liabilities - All Agency Funds (Cont.)

Exhibit H-2

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
City School ADA - Cleveland Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments  $ 0$ 9,771,392 $ 9,752,275 $ 19,117
Due from Other Governments 638,693 767,336 638,692 767,337
Due from Other Funds 288 290 288 290
Taxes Receivable 5,740,353 5,859,744 5,740,354 5,859,743
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (200,937) (229,893) (200,937) (229,893)
Total Assets $ 6,178,397 $ 16,168,869 $ 15,930,672 6,416,594
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units $ 6,178,397 $ 16,168,869 $ 15,930,672 6,416,594
Total Liabilities $ 6,178,397 $ 16,168,869 $ 15,930,672 6,416,594
City School ADA - Build America Bonds Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments  $ 0% 5,655,867 $ 1,230,200 4,325,667
Total Assets $ 03 5,655,867 $ 1,230,200 4,325,667
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units $ 0% 5,655,867 $ 1,230,200 4,325,667
Total Liabilities $ 03 5,655,867 $ 1,230,200 4,325,667
Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund
Assets
Cash $ 4,495,015 $ 18,500,694 $ 18,103,125 4,892,584
Total Assets $ 4,495,015 $ 18,500,694 $ 18,103,125 4,892,584
Liabilities
Due to Other Funds $ 288 $ 290 $ 288 290
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others 4,494,727 18,500,404 18,102,837 4,892,294
Total Liabilities $ 4,495,015 $ 18,500,694 $ 18,103,125 4,892,584
(Continued)
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Exhibit H-2

Bradley County, Tennessee

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and
Liabilities - All Agency Funds (Cont.)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets
Cash $ 4,495,015 $ 18,500,694 $ 18,103,125 $ 4,892,584
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 16,506 26,451,691 21,698,715 4,769,482
Accounts Receivable 0 110 0 110
Due from Other Governments 1,904,344 2,373,394 1,904,343 2,373,395
Due from Other Funds 288 290 288 290
Taxes Receivable 7,941,368 8,076,249 7,941,369 8,076,248
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (368,842) (421,026) (368,842) (421,026)
Total Assets $ 13,988,679 $ 54,981,402 $ 49,278,998 $ 19,691,083
Liabilities
Cash Overdraft $ 03 7,393 $ 03 7,393
Due to Other Funds 288 290 288 290
Due to Other Taxing Units 9,368,664 36,473,315 31,050,873 14,791,106
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others 4,619,727 18,500,404 18,227,837 4,892,294
Total Liabilities $ 13,988,679 $ 54,981,402 $ 49,278,998 $ 19,691,083
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Bradley County School Department

This section presents combining and individual fund financial
statements for the Bradley County School Department, a discretely
presented component unit. The School Department uses a General
Fund, two Special Revenue Funds, and a Capital Projects Fund.

General Purpose School Fund — The General Purpose School Fund is used to
account for general operations of the School Department.

School Federal Projects Fund — The School Federal Projects Fund is used to account
for restricted federal revenues, which must be expended on specific education
programs.

Central Cafeteria Fund — The Central Cafeteria Fund is used to account for the
cafeteria operations in each of the schools.

Education Capital Projects Fund — The Education Capital Projects Fund is used to
account for building projects of the county school system.
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Exhibit I-2

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

June 30, 2010

Nonmajor
Funds
Major Funds Other Total
General Education Govern- Govern-
Purpose Capital mental mental
School Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 0$ 0$ 4,418 $ 4,418
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 10,992,682 3,113,780 1,937,000 16,043,462
Inventories 0 0 139,503 139,503
Due from Other Governments 2,101,945 0 530,000 2,631,945
Property Taxes Receivable 12,385,685 0 0 12,385,685
Allowance for Uncollectible Property Taxes (485,914) 0 0 (485,914)
Total Assets $ 24,994,398 $ 3,113,780 $ 2,610,921 $ 30,719,099
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 892,311 $ 0 $ 0$ 892,311
Accrued Payroll 5,334,907 0 438,359 5,773,266
Deferred Revenue - Current Property Taxes 11,468,254 0 0 11,468,254
Deferred Revenue - Delinquent Property Taxes 308,360 0 0 308,360
Other Deferred Revenues 778,000 0 0 778,000
Total Liabilities $ 18,781,832 § 0 $ 438,359 $§ 19,220,191
Fund Balances
Reserved for Encumbrances $ 3,283,783 $ 2,709,408 $ 0% 5,993,191
Reserved for Inventory 0 0 139,503 139,503
Reserved for Career Ladder - Extended Contract 42,163 0 0 42,163
Reserved for Career Ladder Program 2,123 0 0 2,123
Reserved for Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 0 0 63,694 63,694
Reserved for Special Education - Grants to States 0 0 180,689 180,689
Other Federal Reserves 0 0 263,449 263,449
Unreserved, Reported In:
General Fund 2,884,497 0 0 2,884,497
Special Revenue Funds 0 0 1,525,227 1,525,227
Capital Projects Funds 0 404,372 0 404,372
Total Fund Balances $ 6,212,566 $ 3,113,780 $§ 2,172,562 $§ 11,498,908
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 24,994,398 $ 3,113,780 $ 2,610,921 $ 30,719,099
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Exhibit I-3

Bradley County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit A)
are different because:

Total fund balances - balance sheet - governmental funds (Exhibit I-2)

(1) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add: land $ 1,294,715
Add: construction in progress 6,872,528
Add: buildings and improvements net of accumulated depreciation 56,417,181
Add: other capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 306,859

(2) Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Less: note payable $  (189,520)
Less: capital lease payable (334,444)
Less: other postemployment benefits liability (2,586,805)
Less: accrued interest on capital lease (4,013)

(3) Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds.

Net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit A)
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(3,114,782)
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Bradley County, Tennessee
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds

Exhibit I-4

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Nonmajor
Funds
Major Funds Other
General Education Govern- Total
Purpose Capital mental Governmental
School Projects Funds Funds
Revenues
Local Taxes 20,701,396 $ 0$ 0 $ 20,701,396
Licenses and Permits 4,732 0 0 4,732
Charges for Current Services 16,548 0 2,040,703 2,057,251
Other Local Revenues 81,492 50,638 4,032 136,162
State of Tennessee 41,172,574 0 0 41,172,674
Federal Government 1,067,409 0 10,201,952 11,269,361
Other Governments and Citizens Groups 0 11,836,109 0 11,836,109
Total Revenues 63,044,151 $ 11,886,747 $ 12,246,687 $ 87,177,585
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction 40,409,296 $ 0 $ 5,040,298 $ 45,449,594
Support Services 19,053,020 0 2,115,727 21,168,747
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 1,761,918 0 4,642,558 6,404,476
Capital Outlay 337,657 0 0 337,657
Capital Projects 0 8,631,899 0 8,631,899
Total Expenditures 61,561,891 $ 8,631,899 $ 11,798,583 $ 81,992,373
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 1,482,260 $ 3,254,848 $ 448,104 $ 5,185,212
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 47,390 $ 0% 300,000 $ 347,390
Transfers Out (300,000) 0 (47,390) (347,390)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (252,610) $ 0$ 252,610 $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,229,650 $§ 3,254,848 $ 700,714 $ 5,185,212
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 4,982,916 (141,068) 1,471,848 6,313,696
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 6,212,566 $ 3,113,780 $ 2,172,562 $ 11,498,908
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Exhibit I-5

Bradley County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit B) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 1-4)

(1) Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The
difference between capital outlays and depreciation is itemized as follows:
Add: capital assets purchased in the current period $ 9,028,038

Less: current year depreciation expense (2,435,901)

(2) Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the fund.
Less: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2009 $ (979,947)

Add: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2010 1,086,360

(3) The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes, other loans, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.
Add: principal payments on note $ 47,380

Add: principal payments on capital lease 74,262

(4) Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.
Change in other postemployment benefits liability $ (879,445)
Change in accrued interest on capital lease 891

$

5,185,212

6,692,137

106,413

121,642

(878,554)

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B)
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Exhibit I-6

Bradley County, Tennessee

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department
June 30, 2010

Special Revenue Funds Total
School Nonmajor
Federal Central Governmental
Projects Cafeteria Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 0% 4,418 $ 4,418
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 416,191 1,520,809 1,937,000
Inventories 0 139,503 139,503
Due from Other Governments 530,000 0 530,000
Total Assets $ 946,191 $ 1,664,730 $ 2,610,921
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accrued Payroll $ 438,359 $ 0 $ 438,359
Total Liabilities $ 438,359 $ 0$ 438,359
Fund Balances
Reserved for Inventory $ 0% 139,503 $ 139,503
Reserved for Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 63,694 0 63,694
Reserved for Special Education - Grants to States 180,689 0 180,689
Other Federal Reserves 263,449 0 263,449
Unreserved 0 1,525,227 1,525,227
Total Fund Balances $ 507,832 $ 1,664,730 $ 2,172,562
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 946,191 $ 1,664,730 $ 2,610,921
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Exhibit I-7

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Special Revenue Funds Total
School Nonmajor
Federal Central Governmental
Projects Cafeteria Funds
Revenues
Charges for Current Services 0 $ 2,040,703 2,040,703
Other Local Revenues 0 4,032 4,032
Federal Government 7,356,107 2,845,845 10,201,952
Total Revenues 7,356,107 $ 4,890,580 12,246,687
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction 5,040,298 $ 0 5,040,298
Support Services 2,115,727 0 2,115,727
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 0 4,642,558 4,642,558
Total Expenditures 7,156,025 $ 4,642,558 11,798,583
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 200,082 $ 248,022 448,104
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 300,000 $ 0 300,000
Transfers Out (4'7,390) 0 (47,390)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 252,610 $ 0 252,610
Net Change in Fund Balances 452,692 $ 248,022 700,714
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 55,140 1,416,708 1,471,848
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 507,832 $ 1,664,730 2,172,562
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Exhibit I-9

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

School Federal Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Federal Government $ 7,356,107 $ 10,473,793 $ 10,482,830 $ (3,126,723)
Total Revenues $ 7,356,107 $ 10,473,793 $ 10,482,830 $ (3,126,723)
Expenditures
Instruction
Regular Instruction Program $ 1,982,251 $ 2,052,264 $ 2,052,264 $ 70,013
Special Education Program 2,964,507 4,333,513 4,333,513 1,369,006
Vocational Education Program 93,540 93,540 93,540 0
Support Services
Other Student Support 83,802 95,088 97,992 14,190
Regular Instruction Program 913,056 1,102,649 1,102,649 189,593
Special Education Program 1,012,216 2,694,458 2,694,458 1,682,242
Transportation 106,653 200,300 200,300 93,647
Total Expenditures $ 7,156,025 $ 10,571,812 $ 10,574,716 $ 3,418,691
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ 200,082 $ (98,019) $ (91,886) $ 291,968
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In $ 300,000 $ 0$ 03 300,000
Transfers Out (47,390) (104,995) (104,995) 57,605
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 252,610 $ (104,995) $ (104,995) $ 357,605
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 452,692 $ (203,014) $ (196,881) $ 649,573
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 55,140 203,014 196,881 (141,741)
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 507,832 $ 0 $ 0 $ 507,832
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Exhibit I-10

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department
Central Cafeteria Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Charges for Current Services $ 2,040,703 $ 2,465,000 $ 2,465,000 $  (424,297)
Other Local Revenues 4,032 15,000 15,000 (10,968)
Federal Government 2,845,845 2,870,000 2,870,000 (24,155)
Total Revenues $ 4,890,580 $ 5,350,000 $ 5,350,000 $  (459,420)
Expenditures
Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Food Service $ 4,642,558 $ 5,350,000 $ 5,350,000 $ 707,442
Total Expenditures $ 4,642,558 $ 5,350,000 $ 5,350,000 $ 707,442
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ 248,022 $ 0$ 0$ 248,022
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 248,022 $ 0s$ 0$ 248,022
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 1,416,708 0 0 1,416,708
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 1,664,730 $ 0$ 0 $ 1,664,730
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Exhibit J-2

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Long-term Debt Requirements by Year

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Year

Ending Bonds

June 30 Principal Interest Subsidy (1) Total
2011 $ 0 $ 935,080 $ (327,278) $ 607,802
2012 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2013 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2014 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2015 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2016 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2017 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2018 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2019 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2020 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2021 0 935,080 (327,278) 607,802
2022 1,850,000 935,080 (327,278) 2,457,802
2023 1,950,000 842,580 (294,903) 2,497,677
2024 2,050,000 745,275 (260,846) 2,534,429
2025 2,150,000 639,290 (223,752) 2,565,538
2026 0 525,985 (184,095) 341,890
2027 3,050,000 525,985 (184,095) 3,391,890
2028 3,200,000 359,150 (125,702) 3,433,448
2029 3,300,000 183,150 (64,102) 3,419,048
Total 3 17,550,000 $ 15,042,375 § (5,264,831) $ 217,327,544

(1) The U.S. Treasury Department directly subsidizes this debt.

Year

Ending Notes

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 159,648 $ 23,182 $ 182,830
2012 169,784 16,338 186,122
2013 142,712 9,010 151,722
2014 79,049 3,224 82,273
2015 60,000 1,110 61,110
Total $ 611,193 § 52,864 § 664,057

(Continued)
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Exhibit J-2

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Long-term Debt Requirements by Year

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (CONT.)

Year
Ending Other Loans
June 30 Principal Interest Other Fees Total
2011 $ 2,450,000 $ 492,546 $ 872,899 $ 3,815,445
2012 3,535,000 486,233 837,317 4,858,550
2013 3,695,000 451,894 799,310 4,946,204
2014 3,860,000 415,909 759,666 5,035,575
2015 4,035,000 379,088 717,848 5,131,936
2016 4,280,000 336,267 673,771 5,290,038
2017 4,480,000 289,411 627,736 5,397,147
2018 4,685,000 239,101 578,821 5,502,922
2019 4,905,000 190,229 527,325 5,622,554
2020 5,140,000 147,113 459,698 5,746,811
2021 5,390,000 100,276 388,553 5,878,829
2022 2,420,000 42,094 271,344 2,733,438
2023 2,545,000 35,802 230,785 2,811,587
2024 2,680,000 29,185 188,131 2,897,316
2025 2,790,000 22,217 143,214 2,955,431
2026 5,755,000 14,963 96,454 5,866,417
Total 3 62,645,000 $ 3,672,328 § 8,172,872 § 74,490,200
Year
Ending Capital Leases
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 112,052 $ 8,757 $ 120,809
2012 64,531 3,102 67,633
Total $ 176,583 $ 11,859 § 188,442
(Continued)
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Exhibit J-2

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Long-term Debt Requirements by Year

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED BRADLEY
COUNTY SCHOOL DEPARTMENT

Year

Ending Notes

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 47,380 $ 0 $ 47,380
2012 47,380 0 47,380
2013 47,380 0 47,380
2014 47,380 0 47,380
Total $ 189,520 § 0 % 189,520
Year

Ending Capital Leases

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 77,826 3 16,054 $ 93,880
2012 81,562 12,318 93,880
2013 85,477 8,403 93,880
2014 89,579 4,301 93,880
Total $ 334,444 $ 41,076 $ 375,520
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Investments
June 30, 2010

Exhibit J-3

Description Amount
Endowment Fund

U.S. Treasury Bill $ 4,299,892
Total $ 4,299,892

146




7007¢  $

[B10L
00%°T 0 §c-06-9 §661-06-G 00S°T 1008 SUNSLIYD) 9OUR)STSSY JuawiAed umo( "H'S'N'O'H
928°T 0 §¢-¢6 S G661-¢6°G 001°3 SBWoY, BTpUB[OA eouB)SISSY justiled umo( H'S'N'O'H
€8¢°¢e 0 Gc-¢l-S G661-¢1-S 000°¢ pIOjFeMs WM eouB)sIssy juewded umo( H'S'N'O'H
879 0 §¢-¢c-¢ §661-¢-€ 00€°T uojuIoy], B[esUY eouB)SISSY justiled umo( H'S'N'O'H
0LL'T 0 GC-LT-1 G66T1-LT-1 00€°G SPLIpUS} vLed eouB)sIssy juewded umo( H'S'N'O'H
8E9TT 0 ¥eve-01  ¥661-72-01  00LFT dreyg utqoy eouB)SISSY justiled umo( H'S'N'O'H
GGO'T 0 V&v-01 ¥661-%-01 008°T JoqreX vuuo(q eouB)sIssy juewded umo( H'S'N'O'H
0vS'sg 0 V2¢-9¢-¢ ¥661-9¢-G 009°¢ I e [ATeg eouB)SISSY justiled umo( H'S'N'O'H
9291 0 Ve LSV ¥661-LGV 003G Sunox eaqey eouB)sIssy juewded umo( H'S'N'O'H
G8G°T 0 €¢-9-01 €661-9-01 00¢°€ JOUIE A STWIWL], eouB)SISSY justiled umo( H'S'N'O'H
€e0°e 0 €¢-9-¢ €661-9-¢ 000°¢ ouded e[ned eouB)sIssy juewded umo( H'S'N'O'H
T1e'e $ % 0 GG ¢l G661-¢-¢l 0007 $ UOSTIA\ YSnH eouB)SISsy justiled umo( A'S'N'O'H

pun, spoelorg yuein QN0

01-0€-9 ey ALIngey anssy 9J0N Jo 10199(] uondLIosa(]
souereq 159199U] Jo Jo Junowy
are( are( [eutsStiQ

P FQIYXE

010¢ 0¢ °unp

9[qeATo09Y] S9I0N JO O[NPIYoS

99SSauUR [, "A3unoy) Ko[peiq

147



06€°LVE

queuyreda(] [00Y0g £3Uno)) Ao[perq
pojueserd A[910I0SI(] SI8JSURL], [810],
068°LY $1500 100JIpU] [ooyog asodinJ [erousy) $300(01J [BI89PS,] [00YOS
000°00¢ suoryetad( s100(01d [eI9Pa,] [00YOS [ooyog esodiang [erousy)
LNHINLYVJHA "TOOHOS ALNNOD
AUTAVEL AHLNHSHYd ATHLHYOSIA
1LGL ‘768 JUOWULIDAOLY) ATRWILIJ SISJSURL], [B310],
G11°Q¢ punj esopd o], [e1oULBY) spoeload 1ertde)) 19Yy31Q
000°0¢ s300(oxd snotrep e d [eLIsSNpuUl/Auswdo[eAd(] AJTUNWwo)) sp00foad Tejtde)) [ereusy)
G18°08 syuawiAedal 1o 9ITATISG 1QO(] [BIdUDY) surp[mg [BUOIIBI0 A
Z81 V¥ punj 8sofo o, [eJouey) surping [BUOI}BIOA
CL9961 JUaWASINUITY [e1oULBY) X[, o] asoding [eredg
0C8Z‘9CT syuewrAedad 1q9(] 9OTATISG 1qo(] [BIOULY) [B1oULY)
000°0T 108[01g Aemusary) spoeloxd re3tde)) 18Y1Q [e1ouay)
LNHANYHAOD AUVINIYd
JUNOWY asodang puny of, puny wodj

0T0Z “0C 9UN[ PopUL 189X 97 107

Tuew}Ieds (] [00U0S AJUNO!) AS[pBI{ PoTUesSaI] A[910I0S(] PUE JUSWUIOAOY) ATRWILI]

G- FqIYXY

SIoJSURIL], JO o[NPoYoS
99SSauUR [, "A3unoy) Ko[peiq

148



‘puoq £3souoysIp 9oLo[dwo [00YIS 9Y) IOPUN PAISAOD ST S[OOYDS JO I0309IIp Y], (€)
'2€3°9$ JO TUOWSSINQUITST JUSWDIISL PUR ‘)00 T$ JO IOPPR[ 10948d ‘RE(‘G$ JO SouBINSUL AJ[IQRSIP PUR JJI ‘090 ‘GT$ JO 90UBMO[[€ [9ARI] B 9PN[OUL J0U $30(] (3)
Juede gurseyoand £3unoo se 00Q‘e$ Jo uorpesuaduwod sepnpouy (1)

ISTUL], JUS WSS BURB]A] YSTY 99SSOUUd, 000°0ST KyseuoysI(] eoLorduwy [00Y0g
pun, £37ense)) pue £310doIJ JUSWUIOAOL) [BIOT] 000°09T Kysouoysr( eoLordwry orqng
:spuog 19Y310)
u 000°¢g 02€°08 UOISSTIWIO)) £3unoy)) pue V), ‘G01-73-8 U01}00g JLeys
SIo[eARL], [N ‘1S 000°Gg LTI0EL uorssTwwo)) £3uno)) pue V), ‘G0T-7g-8 U010 I199S130Y
BOLIOWY Jo Auedwio)) A10ang pue AJ[BNnse)) SI9[eABL], 000°0S L10°€L uorssTwwo)) £3uno)) pue y)J, ‘G01-F3-8 U0109eg I9ISBIN PUB IS
N 000°0¢ L10°€L uorssTwwo)) £3uno)) pue V), ‘G0T-7g-8 U010 I9[)) 3IN0Y) JNOIL))
sId[eARL], [ned ‘1S 000°0¢ L10°€L uorssTwwo)) £3uno)) pue ), ‘G01-73-8 U011oeg JIe1) £3uno))
BoLowWy Jo Auedwo)) £1eang pue AJ[ense)) SIO[PARL], 000°0T LTOEL uorssTwwo)) £3uno)) pue V), ‘G0T-7g-8 U010 Ayxodoxg Jo 10ssessy
sIo[eARL], [NeJ 1S 000°TLEG L10°€L uorssTwwio)) £3uno)) pue ), ‘G01-73-8 U011oeg 998Ny,
uorjeONpY Jo paeog Ajuno)) Lo[peirg
[(3) (3) L8SZIT pue uorjeonpy Jo pieog 91e1g ST00YS JO 103001(]
M 000°00T 02208 uorssTwwo)) £3uno)) pue ), ‘G0T-7g-8 U010 JuepuejuLIedng ABMYSTH
sIo[eARL], [Ned 1S 000°0¢ $ (1) L¥S°L8 uorssTwwo)) £3uno)) pue ), ‘G01-73-8 U013oag JI0£eIN £puno)
£joang puog poutag Are[eg J10J UOIBRZLIOYINY [ewO
Suun(q
preq
Arereg

0T0G "0€ @unf papuy Iesx 93 10

Jusureda(J [00T0S A1uno)) AS[peld PojuasaI] A[939I0SI(] pUe JUSWUIDAOLY) ATe WL J

S[EDYJO [ADULL] JO SPUOY [EDYJO PUE SOLE[ES JO S[NPOTdS

9-[ MqIUXy

99SSoUU9 I, "Ajuno)) AdTperg

149



(penuryuop)

0 $0 $ 0 $0 0 $ 0LLY8G  $ SHTWIeJ PUR SOSUSOIT [BI0],
0 0 0 0 0 ¥35°1 SJTULIS ] [edT}09[
0 0 0 0 0 9€6°08 syrunae  Surprmg
0 0 0 0 0 4R sy 109g
S g
0 $0 $0 $ 0 0 9L0°L6T  $ asTyouRIL] AL 91980
EESEn g
STWIoJ pUe SesuooT|
G69°171 $ 0 $ 0 $ 6L5°99¢ 91¢ Y1692 C1 $ SOXE [, [BI0T] T8I0,
0 0 0 0 0 686°C X[, SUOTIBIIUNUWIWI0J9[ ], 9)B)SIIU]
0 0 0 0 0 060°00€ Xe, 109g O[BSO[OYM
0 0 0 913¥% 0 159°69 XB[, 9STOXY Yueg
SoXe ], [B00'] AI0JNFE)S
0 0 0 0 0 885106 XB, ssoutsng
0 0 0 0 0 LLT08 9SNOY3INO0Y) J0 ‘OSNOYINIOA ‘[IB[ - XB ], UOTJRITII]
0 0 0 0 91¢ 01589 asodang rereadg - xeJ, uoryesurT
0 0 0 0 0 ¥L9°09¢ [eI0ULY) - XB ], UOLIRSHI]
G69°1V1 0 0 0 0 LL0‘GEY X8, [10N/[91°H
0 0 0 0 0 1€€°08LE xe[, safeg uondQ 1800
Soxe], uor3d() [€00 | A3Uno))
0 0 0 %2 0 1€8°68 I9U3() - SOXBJ, JO-NAI-Ul SJUsWARJ
0 0 0 ¥S1 0 ¥2S°G SOTJI[T3() T8I0 - SOXE], JO-NOTT-UI SJUdWLeJ
0 0 0 €68 0 €879 VAL - S9Xe[, JO-NaTT-Uur sjuswile
0 0 0 G663 0 Eveve £j[eUSJ pUE }SOI0IUT
0 0 0 186°0T 0 GLL'EST SIBdX I0LIJ - SUOI}OR[[0]) I9ISBIN % JIS[))/IINOIL))
0 0 0 086°13 0 LST'9LT IeOX IOLLJ - SUOTIOR[[O]) S,0038Na],
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 9v1°ees 0 $ GEB0IL8 3 xeJ, £319doad juarin))
Soxe], A3rodoaJ Ajuno))
SoXe[, [800']
ssoursng [ox3uo)) uorjejTueg Krexqry Arexqry [eIoUaL)
-LIsy Sna( / 91SBM orqng mery
ptos

spun, enueAdy [e1oadg

L-C MqUUXy

0TO0g "0€ dunf papuy TesX 93 10,
SodAT, puT,] [EFUSWUISAOY) [y

- SONURAIY PO[IeId(] JO O[NPayoS

9o5SoUUe ], 'AJUnNo0)) Ao[peiyg

150



(ponunyuo))

0 0 0 0 0 9189 809, 3an0)) Sni(g
0 0 0 0 0 126°TT sour]
XJUNo5-UJ - SJAN0)) 10430
0 0 0 0 0 98 99 £11IN00g WO0I}INO))
0 0 0 0 0 96LF 1an00) A100URY)) - 99, A1JUT BIR([
0 0 0 0 0 6032 $950)) SI90TJF0)
7IT0]) AT0UET])
0 0 0 0 0 7666 SJUQWISSISSY 9OUBISISSY SWIPITA
0 0 0 0 0 149 99, £11IN08G WO0I}INO))
0 0 0 0 0 LOV'G sour]
Moy S[TULAN[
0 0 0 0 0 Ge8TT 1IN0{) SUOISSAG [BISUY) - 90,] AIJUH BIB(]
0 0 0 0 0 6TIL°6T s99,1 [Ter
0 0 0 0 0 GGO'ET $1500) SI00LFO)
0 0 0 0 0 T€L SurreyIT I0§ seury
7IN0]) SUOISSog [eIouor)
0 0 0 0 0 68T 99] £11IN08G WO0I}INO))
0 0 0 0 0 G8¢‘9 1IN0)) [RUIWLL) - 99,] A13Uf BIR(
0 0 0 0 0 90€°9¢ seuL] YULWRALL, [N
0 0 0 0 0 6€3°TL 509/ [ref
0 BIT'GE 0 0 0 BIT'GE souLq [0x3u0)) Sna(y
0 0 0 0 0 678731 $1500) SI00LFO)
0 0 0 0 0LT'T 6966€T sourg
}Mo7) [eUTWLL)
0 0 0 0 0 398°T 90, £11IN09G WO0I3IN0[)
0 0 0 0 0 €9L91 1IN0)) JINDILY) - 99,] A13ur] BIR(
0 0 0 0 0 161°¢ s99,] [Ter
0 098°c¢ 0 0 0 0 sour] [oa3uoy) Sni(q
0 0 0 0 0 v9‘11 $1800) SI001F0)
0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $ €6391 $ sour]

7IN0)) JINOIL)
SoTj[eUeJ PUE 'Sean)IoJa0,] ‘SouL]

sseursng [oxuo) uonejIues Axeaqry Axeaqry [BI2UBY)
-LIsy Sna( / 91SBpM orqng mery
ptos

spun,{ enueAdy [e1oadg

(7U0))) SodAJ, pun,] [BJUSWUISAOY) ([
- SONUPAdY PITBId(] JO A[NPIUOS
9o5SoUUe ], 'AJUnNo0)) Ao[peiyg

L-C MqUUXy

151



(penuryuop)

0 $ 0 $ 2vvegs  $ 0 $ S66°0T $ yecessy  $ SOOTAISG JUALINY) J0J SOZIe)) [B10],
0 0 0 0 0 G67°0% S901AT0g 10 SeSaeY() I0Y30)
SO0IAISS 40} Sesaey)) WY1
0 0 0 0 0 ¥90°8 S)NPY - S99, 901AI9G A}TUNWWO))
S9STeT)) uorjeonpy
0 0 0 0 0 016°¢ JLIoUS - S99, UOTIBIISISOY I9PUSJ() [BNXS
0 0 0 0 0 0TLT JUIOYQ - 09,1 Sulssoo0id BIe([
0 0 0 0 0 Gv1°92¢ $99,] UOTIBQOI]
0 0 0 0 0 818GE 10381307 - 09, Sursseooaq ere(]
0 0 0 0 0 0 SUOISSTWWO)) pUB $99,] SI901JJ() [BUOIINIIISUO))
0 0 0 0 0 309°0¥1 suorsstwwoy) ouoydafa],
0 0 0 0 G66°01 0 soa ] Areiqry
0 0 0 0 0 69L°C sooy[ Ado)
0 0 0 0 0 315°GE1 $99,] UOTIBAIIY
0 0 0 0 0 883°L 500,] MO1AdY IedurSug]
0 0 0 0 0 003 S99, 10T UOISIATPNS
Soo,]
0 0 0 0 0 003°T sedrey() 901ATeg
0 0 0 0 0 939°8¢ s981eY)) 991ATI9g [BISULY) 18I
0 0 0 0 0 11L%9 pIeog 10J sa3aeY)) 058s[9Y JIOM
0 0 0 0 0 0L2 selpnjg Sutuoy,
0 0 0 0 0 ¥9G'e08°e sodrey)) jusnyeq
0 0 0 0 0 059G sedaey)) juswIraL], 1938 M
0 $0 $ g¥v'ess  $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ £ouedy 3s0Y] - 98aeyoINg
SO8IBY) 90IAIOS [BIoUST)
SOOIATSS JUIIN) I0] SOSIBY))
0 $ 8L3'€0T _ $ O $0 $ OLT'T $ 0IF'¥6S  $ SOT)BUSJ PUR ‘SOINIIOFIO0] ‘SOUL [BI0],
0 $ 663°¢E $0 $0 $0 $0 $ £3a10doag PeyeosSuO)) WOLJ SPIad0L]
SoTJ[eUdJ PUB ‘SOIN}IeJI0,] "SeuL] WOU3Q
("TU0))) SeTI[eUsJ PUE "SeIN}Ioji0,] "Soul]
ssoutsng [o13u0)) U0 TUES Kreaqry Kreaqr [eIouoY)
-LIsy Sna( / 91SBpM orqng mery
pros

spun,{ enueAdy [e1oadg

(7U0))) SodAJ, pun,] [BJUSWUISAOY) ([
- SONUPAdY PITBId(] JO A[NPIUOS
99SSeUUR ], "AJUno)) Ao[pelyg

L-C MqUUXy

152



(penuryuop)

0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ BeL1LET $ S[BIOF() £HUNO)) WOIJ POATEIRY S99 [8310],
0 0 0 0 0 GI1'81 JuIeyg
0 0 0 0 0 798°ces J[AO[)) }INO[) SUOISSAG [BIOUSL)
0 0 0 0 0 98G°GES SO0 $INOJ) [BUTWLI])
0 0 0 0 0 166°T¥€ 349[0) 1IN0)) JINIIL)
XTe[eg Jo-nor [-Ul Soo,]
0 0 0 0 0 L8€‘G99 so3sNA,
0 0 0 0 0 03176 1998180y
0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $ 28981  $ I9ISEIN PUE 01
599, SSOOXY
S[eIOLj() AJUN0)) WIOL) POATS0dY Soo,]
0L¥'9% $ 3L9 $ 1ST $ 0 $ 0 $ 388‘TLL $ SoNUsAdY [B00T] I8Y}(Q) [B30],
0 0 0 0 0 e1g'LET senueAay 8O0 19710
SoNUOASY [8907] O30
0L7°9% 00T 0 0 0 320°0¢ SYLH puL SUOHINLIIUO)
0 0 0 0 0 0L0¥ S[ENPIAIPU] WOIj POISA0DdY SeSewe(]
0 0 0 0 0 600°T £3x0do1 jo ores
0 0 0 0 0 3097 juswrdmby jo aTeg
ST9}] SULIINOJIUON
0 gLS 0 0 0 05¥°0¢ SpUNJoy SNOSUB[[SISIIN
0 0 168 0 0 0 STeLIageI\ PO[o£o9Y Jo a[es
0 0 0 0 0 9T¥°e sdeyq Jo o[eg
0 0 0 0 0 8G¥‘6TT so[eg AIBSSTWWO))
0 0 0 0 0 G1E‘T sorjddng pue S[BLIOJRI\ JO O[8S
0 0 0 0 0 0LGEL s[ejuey/eseaT
0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $ L96°GSe $ QW00U] JUSWI}SOAU]
ST} SULIINodYy
SoNUeASY [8007] TOYI0
ssouIsng [o13u0)) uorjeIues Kreaqry Kreaqr [eIouoY)
-LIsy Sna( / 91SBM orqng mery
pI[os

spun, enueAdy [e1oadg

(7U0))) SodAJ, pun,] [BJUSWUISAOY) ([
- SONUPAdY PITBId(] JO A[NPIUOS
99SSeUUR ], "AJUno)) Ao[pelyg

L-C MqUUXy

153



(penuryuop)

0 0 0 0 0 01998 JUSTWISINQUITOY 9SUSJI(] [IAT)
0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $ Juewdo[eAs(] AJTUnWIWo))
97815 YONOIY], [eXopo,[
TURUUI9AOL) (19D ]
0 $ 0 $ 80€°L¥ $ 08¥°'L1 $ 0 89g‘cLe’e  $ 90ssoUUa, JO 938}S [8310],
0 0 0 0 0 000°09 senueAdY 9781S I9Y10)
0 0 0 0 0 83L765 SjUBLY) 931G 19Y3I()
0 0 0 0 0 008°0T SONIL)) - XB, SO[BG PoIByS 93e}g
0 0 0 0 0 08€°91 juewe[ddng A1eleg sJer)sidoy
0 0 0 0 0 1995 JuawesINquIay urexdorJ resrexddeayy
0 0 0 0 0 0 xe [, [e0adg wnajo13ed
0 0 0 0 0 0 XgJ, [N, I0J0]\] PUR SUI[OSBY)
0 0 0 0 0 080731 Surpaeog] I10UOSLIJ POORIFUO))
0 0 0 63871 0 L¥97¥e “V'A'L - SuLIBYg enueAey] 9181
0 0 0 0 0 958°6 Xg [, ULL POXIN
0 0 0 0 0 GLO€0T xB, 98BI9A9g JT[OY0ITY
0 0 0 0 0 8LLLT X[, 100g
0 0 0 199G 0 039°6¥ Xe [, oWoou|
SontoAsY o7ers P10
0 0 0 0 0 0 weISoxJ 1N
0 0 0 0 0 0 weidord e3playg
STUeIN) S0 oqng
0 0 0 0 0 9L3V311 swreiadoi yuswjredo( Yfeo
STUeIN) 9IBJ[O\\ PUE (380
0 0 0 0 0 PPE0TT SyURIL) [043U0)) SnIA(]
SyUern) A395eg oTqng
0 0 0 0 0 0 SJURIY) JUSWITLIOAOL) [BISUSK) I9T3()
0 0 80€°LY 0 0 0 SJUBIN) 91SB M PI[OS
0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 981°L9 $ WEeIS0LJ SO0IAISS S[IUSAN[
STUeIL) JUOWIULIOAOY) [BIoURL)
9oSSoUUR ], JO 07835
ssoursng [o13u0) uoryeIUeS Areiqry Kreaqry [e1auay)
-LIsy Sna( / 91SBpM orqng mery
ptos

spun,{ enueAdy [e1oadg

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodAJ, pun,] [BJUSWUISAOY) ([
- SONUPAdY PITBId(] JO A[NPIUOS
99SSeUUR ], "AJUno)) Ao[pelyg

154



(penuryuop)

291°891 $ 096°€0T $ TOOTLZ $ 690%8¢ $ 1891 $ LIVLIT0E $ [®10L
0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 818960 $ sdno1y) sUSZHI) PUB SFUSWUIDA0Y) I9Y3IQ) T8I0,
0 0 0 0 0 0GL°831 EEE0)
EGlre}
0 0 0 0 0 GLLT suoreuo(f
SANOIY) SUaZIIT))
0 0 0 0 0 CI6°ETIE SO0IALOG POJORIFUO))
0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 8€72C9T $ preoq Jouostid
SJUSWUISAOY) ToU3()
SANOIY) SUSZII)) PUB SJUSUWIUISAOY) T9U3()
0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 190928 $ FUSWULOAOY) TBIOPSY T8I0,
0 0 0 0 0 ¥€0°6¥ ONUSASY [BISPSY 10941 1Y
0 0 0 0 0 eeEV YY1 9 # JUBI) VIUV
0 0 0 0 0 0 91eqay puod 11pat) X[,
SNUSASY [BIopa, J001I(]
0 0 0 0 0 9TTTT 97€1g YSNnoay) [BI9paq 19YI0
0 0 0 0 0 ar1'e ¥ #3Uel) V4V
0 0 0 0 0 ¥707E € #1UBL) VYUV
0 0 0 0 0 98G°€C G #1UBL) VYUV
0 0 0 0 0 LTS [ #3UBLH) VY4V
0 0 0 0 0 6¥¥0g SJURIY) JUSTWISIIOJUT MB]
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ LLV6LE $ sjuRIY) A1LIN00G PUB[OWOH
(7U0))) 97815 YSNOI], [ed1epa]
(7U0))) JUSWIUIOAOY) [BIopo
sseursng [oxuo) uoryejIuey Arexqry Areaqry [e1ouUaY)
-LIsy Sna( / 91SBM orqng mery
ptos

spun, enueAdy [e1oadg

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

155



(penunuop)

0 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 0 $ SHIWIeJ PUR SOSUSOIT [B}0],
0 0 0 0 0 0 SYTULIS J [BOLIFOI[H
0 0 0 0 0 0 sywIsd Surprmng
0 0 0 0 0 0 SYTULIS J 199G
Sy
0 $0 0 $0 $ 0 0 $ astypuRI] AL 91980
SosueaT]
SJTWIeJ pue SosuaoT|
¥10'1€8F% $ 0 L¥8°¢86G $ 0 $ 0 28EFSLT  $ SOX®B [, [BO0T] T8I0,
0 0 0 0 0 0 X ], SUOTJBITUNTINO0I9[9 ], 93BISI9IU]
0 0 0 0 0 0 XeJ, 199¢ 9TeSO[0YM
1¥8°ce 0 33561 0 0 0 Xg, 9s10Xy ueqg
SeX®e[, [8007] A10JNJRIS
0 0 0 0 0 0 Xe[, ssoulsng
0 0 0 0 0 0 9SNoYJINO0Y) 10 ‘OSNOYNIOM ‘[Ief - XeJ, Uuorjednry
0 0 0 0 0 0 asodang remwadg - xeJ, uorpe3nIy
0 0 0 0 0 0 [BIdULY) - XBT, UOTYeSTIT
0 0 0 0 0 0 X8, [910]A/[°10H
0 0 0 0 0 0 xg[, soreg uondQ [8o0T
SoXe[, Uond() [ed0] A3Unoy)
G69°0% 0 ¥I0°TT 0 0 G0S°02 I9Y3Q - SOXE], JO-NOTT-UI SjUdUAe ]
0L9‘GT 0 00L 0 0 198°T SONI[I)() [BOO] - SOXRB T, JO-NSIT-UI SJUsWARJ
1vg'e 0 G6LT 0 0 19L% 'V'A'L - S9XeJ, JO-NOI[-Ul SjuswileJ
0L1°62 0 8¥6°¢1 0 0 809°8 £)Teus pue jsaIeju]
L99°8L 0 $91°09 0 0 196°€1 SIBd X JIOLIJ - SUOTIOR[[0)) I9ISBIA 2 IS[))/3NIIL))
¥81°002 0 %6S°9L 0 0 €25°LS Te9x J0LIJ - SUOIID[[0]) §,99)SN],
9VSLYFY $ 0 ggveIv'ec $ 0 $0 €91°83S‘T $ xe [, £310do1d jueLiny)
Soxe], £}10d0LJ A3Uno))
SoXe, [800']
ERIVRENY durpring RN FEEE QWOH XeJ,
1990 [BUOTIBIO A orqng - 819010 SursanN It
[eTouen) / Kemy3STH [euory SUBISIO A osodang
punyg - NI1ISUOY) [e100dg
90IATOY spun,] enueAay [eroadg
19ed

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

156



(penuryuop)

o O

=N elole}

leloloBoBolola)

[eNeNeNoNoNe)

o o

oS O OO

eleloloBolole)

SO O o oo

o O
o o
o O

=N elole}
oS O OO
[=Nelole})

lecloloBoBolola)
eleloloBolole)
lecloloBoBolola]

[eNeNeNoNeNe)
SO oo oo
[eNeNeNoNoNe)

o o

S O OO

eleloloBololel

OO O o oo

$09,] 1IN0 3na(
sourq
AJUMo9-UJ - S3a4N0)) 12q30)
99,1 £JLINd9g WO0I}INO0))
1ano)) Areouey)) - 9o A1puy ereq
$180)) SI20YJO
7IN0)) AT8dUey)
SJUOWISSISSY 9IUBISISSY SWIFOIA
99,] A31IN29G W00I3IN0Y)
sourq
JAN0)) S[TTOATL
1IN0)) SUOISSAG [BIGUDY) - 99,] A1juy BIR(]
So9 Trer
$180)) SI2OYJO
Surrey)rry J0j seury
7IN0)) SUOISSAS [BIoUDL)
99,] A31IN29G W00I3IN0Y)
NOo)) [eUIWLL) - 99, A13uy Bl
sour juauwyeadL], [N
S99 [ter
seur [o13uo)) Sni(g
$180)) SI20YJO
sour
JAN0)) [BUTWIT)
99,] A31IN29G W00I3IN0Y)
1IN0Y) 3MNIILY) - 99 A1juy ele(
So9 Trer
seur] [013U0)) InI(]
$150)) SI001JO
sourq
JIM0)) FIOIT)

SeTj[eUsJ PUR ‘SeIN)IaJa0,] ‘Souly

90TAIOS
9ed
[eIoULY)
pung
901ATOg
9ed

Surp[ing
[euoreoo A

SO FEEE QWOH
orqng - SI90FO SursanN
/ Kemy3TH [euory SUBISIO A
- NIISUO))

XeJ,

oty

osodang
[ewadg

Spun, enuaAdy [e10adg

L-C MqUUXy

ﬂ.aﬁoov m@mffﬁ puny [ejuswuIsA0Y) [V

- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS

99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

157



(penuryuop)

0 $ €38 T0LT $ O

ololoBoBolcohohohcohoha)

leloloBoBolola)

eleloloBohohchcohel =R =)

eleloloBolole)

0 0 0

o O oo

€38°TOLT

cloloBoBolcohohohohoha)
cloloBoBolcohohohohoha)

SO OO OO

lelololBoBolola)
eleloloBolole)
leclololoBolola)

&

&

eleloloBohohchcheh =R =)

eleloloBololel

A

Hr| A

K|
K|
(=} (e}

|

(=) [e)

Hr| A

S9OTAIOG JUDLIN) 10] S88I8Y)) [BI0],
SO0IATRG 0] s93aeY)) I9Y310)
SOOTAISG I0] SoSIe()) 10Ul
SINPY - S99, 99IAI0S AJTUNWWO))
So8Ieq)) uoreonpy
JJueyg - 99, UOTIBIISISOY I9PULJJ() [BNXOS
JJLIeyS - 99, Surssed0aq eie([
se9,] UoIBqOIJ
J191ST39Y - 99,] SUTISSa001J BIR([
SUOISSTWWO)) PUB $99,] ,SI9O1JJ() [BUOIINITISUO))
suotssTrwio)) suoyde[a,
so9 ] Areaqry
seo,f £do)
S99, UOTIBaI0Y
S09,] MOTASY JoaULIUH
S99 307 UOISIATpqNy
Seo
So3aeY)) 901AIeS
$9818Y)) 901AI0G [BIDUSL) 10Y1()
paeoq 10 se3aey)) osee[ey JI0M
serpnjg Suruoy,
sedaey) JuenleJ
seSaey)) juswjeal], 10je A\
Aouady 180 - es1eypIng
SO8IBY[)) 90IAIeS [BIoULY)
SOOTATEG JUeIIN) 0] SeSIe())

SeI)[BUSJ PUB ‘SOINJI_JIO] ‘SouL] [BI0],
A)10doag pejeosuo)) WOy Spasdotg
SeTj[eusJ puB 'SednjIoJao] ‘Soul] 103
(7U0))) SelI[RUSJ PUB ‘SOINJIaJI0] ‘SUTL]

90TAIOS
9ed
[eIoULY)
pung
901ATOg
9ed

Surp[ing
[euoreoo A

SO FEEE
oqnd - SO0

/ Kemy3TH [euory
- NIISUO))

awoy
JursanN
SUBIDIO A\

XeJ,

oty

osodang
[ewadg

Spun, enuaAdy [e10adg

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

158



(penunuop)

S O O Qo|o

o O

oS O O Qo|o

o o

S O O Qo|o
oS O O Qo|o
S O O Qo|o

o O
o o
o O

oS O O Qo|o

o o

83313 $

L10°G8 $

93€°681 $ 0 $ LOSTI $

000°¢g $

0

L9G°E1

0

oS O OO

10°e8

O~ 0 OO OO

vEL0T 0 0

LOSTT

=N elole}
(==l ie)

166°CLT

(=)
eleloloBohole)
lecloloBoBolola)

0

000°G3

eleloloBololal

STBIJ( AIUN0Y) WOIJ POAISIDY S99 [810],
Jreys
JAO[) 3IN0)) SUOISSOG [BIoULL)
YIS[)) 3N0)) [RUTWLI))
JI9[) }NO)) NI
KTeTeg Jo-NoT[-Ul Sa9
291sna,
I193S130Y
I9)SBINl PUB JI9[)
593, S§90XY
STeDIJJ) ATUN0)) WIOIJ POATed0Y S0

SeNUAdY [BI0T JoY3I() [BI0],
SONUAdY [BIOT I8YI()
SoNUoAdY [BI0] OUI0
S3J10) pUB SUOTINLIIUO))
S[ENPIATPU] WOIJ POI8A0dY SeFewe(]
Ayredoag jo o1es
Juewdmbry jo aTeg
STWe)] SULLINISIUON
Spunjoy SNOdUR[[SISTIA
S[RLIDIRIN PO[OAD9Y JO o[eS
sdeyl Jo o[es
so[es Aressruwo))
sorjddng pue s[eLI8IRI\ JO o[BS
sTejuay/esear|
9W00U] JUSWISOAU]
SWe)] SULLINdSY
SenueAdY [B00] 010

90TATOG
19ed
[e1ouon)
punyg
90TATOQ
19ed

sutprmg
[BUOT}BO0 A

SYIOM EEEET Qwoy
or[qng - SI90IJI0 SursanN
/ LemysSTH [euony SUBIIOA
- NISUOY)

xe],

oy

asodang
[ewedg

spun,f anusAey [etedg

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodAJ, pun,] [BJUSWUISAOY) ([
- SONUPAdY PITBId(] JO A[NPIUOS
99SSeUUR ], "AJUno)) Ao[pelyg

159



(penuryuop)

989°L¥1

$ 96£'965G _$

$ 000°GT $

L0921

QOO —HOOOOOOOoOOo

G9G°1g

o

=] S OO OO OO OO OO OO0

o

0

=N elole}

Sv9°0L
192°G10°G
0

€19°L9

0

0

0

88021

S OO OO OO OO OO OO0
ololoBolololohohoho ool (=}

80L‘9¥ 0
18078

o
o O

=]
=]
(el

000°GT

=] S OO OO OO0 OO0 OO0

o o o

JULWESINQUITY dSULJA(] [IAT)
Juewdo[eAs(] A3TUNWWO))

97815 YJSNOIU ], [eXopo,]
TUSTWUIOAOY) [IOPO]

99sSeUUa [, JO 9781S [810],

senueAdy 91818 I9Y10)
sjuBIY) 97818 19Ul
SOII)) - XB, SO[BG pPoIeyS 91818
juewe[ddng Are[eg s, aeIIsI3oy
JuewasINqUITeY Weisord [esrexddeoy
xR [, [e100dg WNa[0I)o g
XgJ, [oN,] I0J0]\] PUB SUI[0SBY)
Surpaeog I9UOSLIJ Pa1dBIIUO))
VAL - Sutieyg enueaay 91818
XB,[, ULLJ POXTAL
X8, 95etoAag O1[0Y0I[Y
Xg[, Ioog
Xg ], owoouy

SenueAay 9781S 1910
wei3ord 10Ty
wersord a3puig

SJUBIY) SYIOAM oTqng
swexdor juswireda( YI[eOH

SJURIY) oIBJ[9\\ PUE (I[BOH
SjuRIY) [0IJU0)) SN

SjueIr) A3978g oqng
SIUBIY) JUSWUIOAOY) [BISULY) I19Y1()
SjuRIY) 9)JSBA\ PI[OS
WeI30IJ SOOTATSS S[TULAN

STJUBIY) JUSWUISAOY) [eloUor)

99sseuUa, JO 97815

90TAIOS
9ed
[eIoULY)
pung
901ATOg
9ed

Surp[ing
[euoreoo A

SO FEEE QWOH
orqng - SI90FO SursanN
/ Kemy3TH [euory SUBISIO A
- NIISUO))

XeJ,

oty

osodang
[ewadg

Spun, enuaAdy [e10adg

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

160



(penunuop)

GGT'LET'S

$

L10°G8

$ 69¢1L0°¢ $ €e8TOLT $ LOSTHI

$ 28¢¥6LT $

$

$ 0 $0 $ 0

$0

0 0 0

0

LLTLEG

0
0
LLELET

lecloloBoBolola)

[=Relo) (o}
(= elie) e}
S O oO|o

lecloloBoBolola)
eleloloBohole)
lecloloBoBolola)

(= elie) e}

eleloloBololal

e30g,

sdnoir) SUsZNI) PUR SJUSWUISAOY) IOYI() [BIO],
EEE0)
U0
suoneuo(
SANOIY) STz
S9J1ATSG POIORIIUO))
preog IoUOSTIJ
SJUOWUISA0Y) ToUI0)
SANOIY) SUZT,) PUB SJUSUIUIOAOY) 19U3()

JUOUITLIOAOK) [BISPD,] [BIO],
NULAY [BISPS, 399I(] IOYI0
9 #1UBLY) VYUV
9)e(9Y pUOg IIPaI)) XBJ,

SNURASY [BI0PI] J90II(]

9)e1g Y3noayj [erspsf 18310
¥ #1UBL) VYUV
€ #1UBL) VU4V
G #3UBL) VY4V

[ #3UBLH) VY4V
SJURIY) JUSTWISIIOJUT MB]

sjueIy) AJLIN0SG PURTOWOH

("7U0))) 97833 (ONOIY], [B10Po]
("7U0))) JUoWUISAOY) [eXopa ]

90TATOG
19ed
[e1ouon)
punyg
90TATOQ
19ed

sutprmg
[BUOT}BO0 A

SYIOM EEERT auwoYy
or[qng - SIOOTFO SursanN
| KemySty [euor} SUBISIO A\
- NITISUOY

xe],

oy

asodang
[ewedg

spun,[ anueAdy [eredg

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

161



(penunuop)

0LL¥82 $ O $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ SHIWIeJ PUR SOSUSOIT [B}0],
¥3e'1 0 0 0 0 0 0 S)TULIS J [BITII00[H
96608 0 0 0 0 0 0 sywIs Surpyng
veg's 0 0 0 0 0 0 SHIWId ] 109y
STIs
9L0°L61 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ asTypuBL AL 198D
SOSUedI|
SJTWIeJ pue SosuaoT|
67S°185°L $ 0 § GI87E $ 0 $ 0 $ ¥98°6L6°T $ 869°€9 $ SOX®B [, [BO0T] T8I0,
686°¢€ 0 0 0 0 0 0 XB [, SUOTJBITUNWWO0JS[3 [, 918)SIDIU
060°00€ 0 0 0 0 0 0 XB, 190g S[esA[0YM
¥9e YY1 0 693 0 0 G951 0 XEJ, 9STOXY Jueqg
SeX®e[, [8007] A10JNJRIS
885106 0 0 0 0 0 0 Xg [, ssoulsng
LLT08 0 0 0 0 0 0 9SNoYJINO0Y) 10 ‘OSNOYNIOM ‘[Ief - XeJ, Uuorjednry
93069 0 0 0 0 0 0 asodang remwadg - xeJ, uorpe3nIy
¥,9°09¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 [eIoUdY) - XBJ, UOH)R3TII]
69L°99¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 XE, [930IN/[930H
1€€°08L°E 0 0 0 0 0 0 xe [, so[eg uondQ [e207]
SoXe[, Uond() [ed0] A3Unoy)
LLT€0T 0 8v1 0 0 90€°L ¥92°1 I9Y3Q - SOXE], JO-NOTT-UI SjUdUAe ]
¥8¥°1% 0 6 0 0 96¢ 0 SONI[I)() [BOO] - SOXRB T, JO-NSIT-UI SJUsWARJ
96081 0 (44 0 0 ¥0€‘1 0 V'A'L - S9Xe[, JO-Nar-ut sjuswde
95¢°031 0 003 0 0 3€0°g 09L‘8 Aeusd pue 3saI9ju]
S0LT6¥ 0 ¥L9 0 0 965°LE 0 SaB9 X JI0LIJ - SUOIIIL[[0)) I9ISBIN 29 JI9[)/INIIL))
8¥%5°L89 0 8€e1 0 0 0 vL9‘ee Te9x J0LIJ - SUOIID[[0]) §,99)SN],
68769561 $ 0 $ 991'ce $0 $ 0 $ G08'CI6T $ 0 $ xg [, £319do1g JuLLINy
Soxe], £}10d0LJ A3Uno))
SoXe], [890]
18101, JUOWMOPUH sqoeloxg spoafoag sqoeloxg yreq sqoeloxg
reade) jueLy) reyde) regsnpuy [eade)
uonyeonpyy ang peoyg uswdo[esd(]  [BISULY)
sso[199J Ljrunwuio))
punyg spun, sjoefoag 1erde))
JUOURBWLIOJ

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

L-C MqUUXy

162



(penunuop)

918°¢9 0 0 0 0 0 0 $99 3Mo)) Sna(
12611 0 0 0 0 0 0 sourq
XJUNo00-UJ - S34N0)) 12Y30)
98 0 0 0 0 0 0 99,] £31INJ9G WO0I}INOY)
96LF 0 0 0 0 0 0 1Ino00) A190UBYY) - 99, AU BIR(]
603 0 0 0 0 0 0 $3800) SIOOFO
JIN0)) ATe0UBq)
7666 0 0 0 0 0 0 SJUSWISSISSY 90UBISISSY SWIIITA
¥€ 0 0 0 0 0 0 99,1 £J1INd9G WO0I}INO0))
LOV°G 0 0 0 0 0 0 sourq
JAN0)) S[IUSANL
GE8‘TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 1IN0)) SUOISSaG [BIDUAY) - 99 AIjur BIe(]
61L61 0 0 0 0 0 0 SO Tref
Ge0‘el 0 0 0 0 0 0 $380)) SI9OFO
TEL 0 0 0 0 0 0 SurrayyIr] I0§ souly
7IN0)) SUOISSAg [BIoUoL)
681 0 0 0 0 0 0 99,] £311N09g WO0I}INOY)
G8¢‘9 0 0 0 0 0 0 1IN0)) [BUTWLL) - 99 AIjur B1e(]
90€°9% 0 0 0 0 0 0 souLy JuewedL], [N
6€3°TL 0 0 0 0 0 0 599 [rep
8€2°0L 0 0 0 0 0 0 saury [0o1pu0) Sni(
678731 0 0 0 0 0 0 $3800) SI9OFO
68T TV 0 0 0 0 0 0 saur]
JAM0)) [BUTWTL)
2981 0 0 0 0 0 0 99,] £11INdag WO0I}IN0Y)
€9L°91 0 0 0 0 0 0 1IN0)) 9INDITY) - 99 AUy BIe(
161°¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 SO Tref
098¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 saurq [oxuoy) Snig
Gr9‘11 0 0 0 0 0 0 $380)) SIIYFO
€63°91 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 sour]
FAN0Y FIOI)
SoTj[eUeJ PUE 'SeanjIoJao,] ‘SouLy
re10], JueWMOpUH sqoeloxg spoeloag sqoeloxg PRCE] sqoeloxg
reade) eI rende) rermsnpuy reade)
uonygonpyy ang peoyg uswdo[eAd(]  [BISULY)
SEEIPELE | Ajrunwrwro))
punyg spuny sjo9loxg 1erde))
JuaUBWISJ

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodAJ, pun,] [BJUSWUISAOY) ([

- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS

95SSeUUR ], "ATUNO)) Ad[peg

163



(penuryuop)

¥8Y'89%°9 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ S9OTAISG JUSLINY) J0J So3Iel)) [810],
S6¥°0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 S9OTATSG I0] $a3aeY)) I8Y1()
SOOTAISG 0] SesIeY)) 1030
¥90°8 0 0 0 0 0 0 SINPY - S99, 99IAI0S AJTUNWWO))
Se8Ie( ) Uorjednpy
016°‘c 0 0 0 0 0 0 JJLIeyg - S99, UOTIBIISIS0Y JOPUSJJ() [BNXSS
0TLT 0 0 0 0 0 0 JIeyg - 09,] SuIsse001] Bye(
G¥1°93¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 $99,] uoTeqOIg
818°C¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 191897 - 99,] SUISS0001] BIR([
€28°‘T0LT 0 0 0 0 0 0 SUOISSTWWO)) pUB S99 SI9DIJJ() [BUOIINITISUO))
g09°‘0v T 0 0 0 0 0 0 suorsstwwo)) euoydafa],
G66°01 0 0 0 0 0 0 so9,] Areiqry
69L°e 0 0 0 0 0 0 soo, £do)
(AtA4S] 0 0 0 0 0 0 S99, UOTIBDI0dY
88G°L 0 0 0 0 0 0 599, MOTAYY Jeourtduy
00g 0 0 0 0 0 0 S99 307 UOISIATpqNy
EEER|
0031 0 0 0 0 0 0 seSaey)) 901AT0g
939°8¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 s981BY)) 991AI9G [BISUSL) I9YI()
11L°9 0 0 0 0 0 0 pIeOg 10J se3aey)) oseo[oy IO
0Lg 0 0 0 0 0 0 sorpnig Suruoy,
¥9S°€08°¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 sadxey)) justyeq
0%9°G 0 0 0 0 0 0 sedaey)) yULWIBAL], 1918 M
evv'eee $ 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $ £oue8y 980y - eS1eydINg
SeGIRY)) 00TAIaS [BIoULY)
S9OTATOS JULIIN) 0] SO8IeT))
868869 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ SOT}[BUSJ PUB ‘SOIN}IOJI0] ‘SOUL] [B10],
6659 $0 $0 $0 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ £y19doaJ poyeIsyuo)) WOy SpPaadoIJ
SeTj[eusJ puB 'SednjIoJao] ‘Soul] 103
(7U0))) SelI[RUSJ PUB ‘SOINJIaJI0] ‘SUTL]
18101, JUOWMOPUH sqoeloxg spoafoag sqoeloxg FRCE] sqoeloxg
reade) jueLy) reyde) rewgsnpuy [eade)
uonyeonpyy ang peoyg uswdo[erd(]  [BISULY)
ssof109d Arunwwo))
punyg spun, sjoeforg 1erde))
JUOURBWLIOJ

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

164



(penunuop)

geL1LEG $ 0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ S[BIONIF( AHUNO)) WOIf PAATEIY SIS [BI0],
AT 0 0 0 0 0 0 Jraeysg
vg8°eee 0 0 0 0 0 0 JI9[) INO)) SUOISSOG [BIDUDL)
98G°GES 0 0 0 0 0 0 9] 34N0Y) [BUIWLL)
166°17€ 0 0 0 0 0 0 YI9]) 3IN0Y) JTNIILY
KTereg Jo-nar[-ul seo]
L8€°699 0 0 0 0 0 0 d9ysna],
03176 0 0 0 0 0 0 T)s130Y
289°C81 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ AOISBIN PUB IO
S99y SSPOXY
STeOJ() AJUN0)) WO} POATOIOY 500,
L9ZTGOT  § TIPS'99T  $ 0 $ TI1°g $ 0 $0 $ 395'L¥E $ SONUAASY [820] I9Y3Q) [30],
L0g'8V1 0 0 09T 0 0 0 SONUSAY [BI0T IOYIQ
SoNUAAdY [800'] 10YI0)
99¢°66 0 0 0 0 0 0 SHJL pUE SUOHNLIFUO))
0L0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 S[ENPIAIPU] WOIJ POISA0IDY SoSeure(]
600°T 0 0 0 0 0 0 £yredoad jo ofeg
%09y 0 0 0 0 0 0 juswrdmbyy jo aTeg
SW9)] SULIINOSIUON
7€6°GE8 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spunjoy SNOSUR[[AISII\]
162 0 0 0 0 0 0 S[BLISJRIN PO[PA09Y JO o[BS
91¥°G 0 0 0 0 0 0 sdey o oreg
8GV611T 0 0 0 0 0 0 S9Teg ATeSSTIwo))
9G6°G 0 0 0 0 0 0 sorddng pue S[eLI8e\ JO o[BS
L83‘8¢CT 0 0 0 0 0 0 s[ejuay/osedr]
TTLTLS $ 175991 $ 0 $ 1961 $ 0 $ 0 $ 39%'LVe $ QWI0JU] JUSWI)SIAUT
S]] SULIINoy
SoNUoAdY [€00'] OTI0)
18101, JUOWMOPUH sqoeloxg spoafoag sqoeloxg FRCE] sqoeloxg
reade) jueLy) reyde) rewgsnpuy [eade)
uoryeonpH ang peoy uswdo[esd(  [BISUSY)
sso[199d  Ajrunwwio))
punyg spun, sjoeforg 1erde))
JUSURWLID J

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

165



(penuryuop)

01998 0 0 0 0 0 0 JUBWeSINQUITOY 9SUJS(] [IAL)
7199 $0 $ 0 $0 $ I¥1°99 $0 $ 0 $ juswrdo[esd (] Ayrunuwwo))
97e]S USNOIY], [e19pog
TUSWUIOAOY) [8Iepo ]

vey'ev0’9 $ 0 $ 3L0'T $0 $ 9LL'e8 $ 88€°8¢ $ 0 $ 99SSAUUL, JO 93815 [BI0],
000°GL 0 0 0 0 0 0 senueAdY 038IS 10YIQ
83L768 0 0 0 0 0 0 sjuery) 93elg 19yl
008°0T 0 0 0 0 0 0 SO1L) - XB, SO[BS poaeygs o3els
08€‘91 0 0 0 0 0 0 yuewerddng A1e[eg s,ae13sidoy
16935 0 0 0 0 0 0 JuewasINqUITeY Weisord [esrexddeoy
S¥9°0L 0 0 0 0 0 0 xeJ, [ewadg wneo1ed
192°G10°G 0 0 0 0 0 0 XBJ, [oN] I0JO]\] PUE SUI[0SEBL)
0807731 0 0 0 0 0 0 Surpaeog IOUOSLILJ POIORIFUO))
¥9L°L0S 0 016 0 0 ¥69°€S 0 VAL - SULTRYS 9NU2AY 93€)S
958°6 0 0 0 0 0 0 XeJ, JULL( POXIN
GL0‘€0T 0 0 0 0 0 0 XB [, 93BI0AS{ OI[OYOI[Y
8LLLT 0 0 0 0 0 0 Xe [, 100g
08L°06 0 %91 0 0 ¥69°F% 0 X, WO0oU]
SonNuoAdY 978rS IOUI0)
80L‘9¥ 0 0 0 0 0 0 wersord 1enT]
18078 0 0 0 0 0 0 weadord o3prag
STURIY) SYAOM\ oT[qng
9L3%gT‘T 0 0 0 0 0 0 sweadoaJ yusuzredo(] YIBOH
STURIY) oIBJ[O\\ PUB I[E9H
¥re01T 0 0 0 0 0 0 SyURIY) [013U0)) SniA(]
STURIY) A39Jeg ofqng
9LL‘e8 0 0 0 9LL'€8 0 0 SJURBIL) JUSWUISAOK) [BISUSY) I9Y3()
80€°LY 0 0 0 0 0 0 SJUBLY) 9ISEM PIOS
981°L9 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ WeL30I] SIIAIDG S[IUSAT[
STURIY) JUOWIUISAOY) [BIoUY)
995SeUUR [, JO 97815
18101, JUOWMOPUH sqoeloxg spoafoag sqoeloxg FRCE] sqoeloxg
reade) jueLy) reyde) rewgsnpuy [eade)
uoryeonpH ang peoy uswdo[esd(  [BISUSY)
sso[199d  Ajrunwwio))
punyg spun, sjoeforg 1erde))
JUSURWLID J

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

L-C MqUUXy

166



T97°¢96°LY § T¥S991 $ L88'ce $ 111G $ LI6'6VI $ 392'8€0G  $ 096°01¥ B30,
818960z ¢ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 sdnoiy) suUsznr)) pue SJUSUIUISAOY) I8Y)() [BIO],
0GL'831 0 0 0 0 0 0 1710
™00
GLLT 0 0 0 0 0 0 suoryeuo(g
SANOIY) SUaZML))
GI6°CTE 0 0 0 0 0 0 SOJTAISG POIOBIIUOT)
8EVGS9T $ 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 preoq J1ouostig
SJUEWUISA0Y) 193
SANOIY) SUSZT)T)) PUB SJUSWUIOAOY) 19730
6L7631'T _$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ T¥1°99 $ 0 $ 0 JUIWUIBA0Y) TBISPS [BI0],
$80°GY 0 0 0 0 0 0 aNULASY [BISPS] 19911(] I18Y1()
A3 aadl 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 #IUBL) VIV
LLTLET 0 0 0 0 0 0 oyeqoy puog 3Ipar) Xe[,
SNUeASY [BIOPa] 100II(]
91TTI 0 0 0 0 0 0 931§ YSNOIY} [BI9P] I9YIQ
9v1‘e 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥ #1uRI) VYUV
¥r0ve 0 0 0 0 0 0 € #1UBL) VYUV
98G°€e 0 0 0 0 0 0 G # YuBI) VIUV
LIT'8¥ 0 0 0 0 0 0 T #3UBL) VYUV
67709 0 0 0 0 0 0 SHUBILY) JUOTWOIIOJUT MB]
LLv'eLe $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 SjuRIY) AJLANOOG PUB[OWOH
(7U0)) 97815 YSNOIYJ, [edepa
(7U0))) JUSWUISAOY) [BIepa,[
18101, JUOWMOPUH sqoeloxg sjoaloag sqoeloxg yreq sqoeloxg
reade) jueLy) reyde) rewgsnpuy [eade)
uonyeonpyy ang peoyg uswdo[esd(]  [BISULY)
ssof100d Arunwwo))
punyg spun, sjoeforg 1erde))
JUAURBWLIOJ

L-C MqUUXy

(7U0))) SodA[, pun,] [eIUoWIUIoA0Y) [y
- SenNUeAdY Pa[Ie)a(] JO o[MPpPayoS
99SSouUe [, "AJUN0)) Ao[peiyg

167



Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Revenues -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit J-8

General School Education
Purpose Federal Central Capital
School Projects Cafeteria Projects Total
Local Taxes
County Property Taxes
Current Property Tax $ 10,813,805 $ 0 0$ 0 $ 10,813,805
Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 469,440 0 0 0 469,440
Circuit/Clerk & Master Collections - Prior Years 226,954 0 0 0 226,954
Interest and Penalty 68,157 0 0 0 68,157
Payments in-Lieu-of Taxes - T.V.A. 11,966 0 0 0 11,966
Payments in-Lieu-of Taxes - Local Utilities 3,174 0 0 0 3,174
Payments in-Lieu-of Taxes - Other 49,934 0 0 0 49,934
County Local Option Taxes
Local Option Sales Tax 8,965,681 0 0 0 8,965,681
Statutory Local Taxes
Bank Excise Tax 87,144 0 0 0 87,144
Interstate Telecommunications Tax 5,141 0 0 0 5,141
Total Local Taxes $ 20,701,396 $ 0 03 0 $ 20,701,396
Licenses and Permits
Licenses
Marriage Licenses $ 4,732 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 4,732
Total Licenses and Permits $ 4,732 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 4,732
Charges for Current Services
Education Charges
Lunch Payments - Children $ 0$ 0 1,139,047 $ 0 $ 1,139,047
Lunch Payments - Adults 0 0 186,973 0 186,973
Income from Breakfast 0 0 112,256 0 112,256
A la carte Sales 0 0 596,258 0 596,258
TBI Criminal Background Fees 5,328 0 0 0 5,328
Other Charges for Services
Other Charges for Services 11,220 0 6,169 0 17,389
Total Charges for Current Services $ 16,548 $ 0 2,040,703 $ 0 $ 2,057,251
Other Local Revenues
Recurring Items
Investment Income $ 21,309 $ 0 2,733 $ 49,915 §$ 73,957
Miscellaneous Refunds 46,950 0 1,299 723 48,972
Nonrecurring Items
Contributions and Gifts 11,950 0 0 0 11,950
Other Local Revenues
Other Local Revenues 1,283 0 0 0 1,283
Total Other Local Revenues $ 81,492 $ 0 4,032 $ 50,638 $ 136,162
State of Tennessee
General Government Grants
On-Behalf Contributions for OPEB $ 447,294 $ 0 0$ 0$ 447,294
State Education Funds
Basic Education Program 36,321,900 0 0 0 36,321,900
Basic Education Program - ARRA 1,833,100 0 0 0 1,833,100
Early Childhood Education 1,266,847 0 0 0 1,266,847
School Food Service 52,086 0 0 0 52,086
(Continued)
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Exhibit J-8

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Revenues -

All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

General School Education
Purpose Federal Central Capital
School Projects Cafeteria Projects Total
State of Tennessee (Cont.)
State Education Funds (Cont.)
Driver Education $ 26,336 $ 03 03 03 26,336
Other State Education Funds 28,786 0 0 0 28,786
Coordinated School Health - ARRA 95,000 0 0 0 95,000
Internet Connectivity - ARRA 29,036 0 0 0 29,036
Statewide Student Management System (SSMS) - ARRA 24,953 0 0 0 24,953
Career Ladder Program 360,987 0 0 0 360,987
Career Ladder - Extended Contract - ARRA 152,841 0 0 0 152,841
Other State Revenues
Income Tax 54,5655 0 0 0 54,555
State Revenue Sharing - T.V.A. 451,553 0 0 0 451,553
Safe Schools - ARRA 27,300 0 0 0 27,300
Total State of Tennessee $ 41,172,574 $ 0$ 0$ 0 $ 41,172,574
Federal Government
Federal Through State
USDA School Lunch Program $ 0$ 0 $ 2,098,688 $ 0 $ 2,098,688
Breakfast 0 0 713,083 0 713,083
USDA - Other 0 0 18,281 0 18,281
USDA Food Service Equipment Grant - ARRA 0 0 15,793 0 15,793
Adult Education State Grant Program 132,004 0 0 0 132,004
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 0 136,532 0 0 136,532
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 0 2,553,501 0 0 2,553,501
Special Education - Grants to States 80,528 4,211,805 0 0 4,292,333
Special Education Preschool Grants 0 67,238 0 0 67,238
Eisenhower Professional Development State Grants 65,322 307,751 0 0 373,073
Other Federal through State 385,000 79,280 0 0 464,280
Direct Federal Revenue
Other Direct Federal Revenue 404,555 0 0 0 404,555
Total Federal Government $ 1,067,409 $ 7,356,107 $§ 2,845,845 $ 0 $ 11,269,361

Other Governments and Citizens Groups
Other Governments

Contributions $ 03 03 0 $ 11,836,109 $ 11,836,109
Total Other Governments and Citizens Groups $ 0$ 0$ 0 $ 11,836,109 $ 11,836,109
Total $ 63,044,151 $ 7,356,107 $ 4,890,580 $ 11,886,747 $ 87,177,585
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Exhibit J-9

Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General Fund
General Government

County Commission

Part-time Personnel $ 35,458
Board and Committee Members Fees 136,612
Social Security 11,892
State Retirement 13,196
Life Insurance 284
Medical Insurance 44,150
Audit Services 33,890
Communication 362
Dues and Memberships 1,950
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 160
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 743
Office Supplies 499
Other Charges 77,871
Building Improvements 3,096
Other Equipment 1,420
Total County Commission 3 361,583

Board of Equalization

Board and Committee Members Fees $ 1,011
Total Board of Equalization 1,011
Beer Board

Board and Committee Members Fees $ 2,500
Total Beer Board 2,500

Other Boards and Committees

Clerical Personnel $ 20,000
Part-time Personnel 700
Social Security 1,584
State Retirement 2,646
Life Insurance 20
Medical Insurance 6,042
Unemployment Compensation 3,928
Communication 6
Operating Lease Payments 100
Office Supplies 911
Total Other Boards and Committees 35,937

County Mayor/Executive
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 87,547

(Continued)

170



Exhibit J-9

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)
County Mayor/Executive (Cont.)

Assistant(s) $ 73,500
Clerical Personnel 21,467
Social Security 13,215
State Retirement 18,590
Life Insurance 82
Medical Insurance 24,960
Advertising 1,313
Communication 1,046
Dues and Memberships 1,750
Travel 2,181
Tuition 240
Office Supplies 3,480
Periodicals 100
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 750
Other Charges 15
Total County Mayor/Executive 3 250,236

Personnel Office

Supervisor/Director $ 36,951
Accountants/Bookkeepers 23,526
Social Security 4,461
State Retirement 7,683
Life Insurance 41
Medical Insurance 12,084
Unemployment Compensation 12,531
Advertising 842
Dues and Memberships 604
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 3,938
Travel 195
Tuition 932
Office Supplies 4,714
Periodicals 1,831
Testing 6,022
Workers' Compensation Insurance 19,937
In Service/Staff Development 301
Office Equipment 5,000
Total Personnel Office 141,593

County Attorney
Temporary Personnel $ 19,993
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General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)
County Attorney (Cont.)

Other Salaries and Wages $

Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Communication
Data Processing Services
Dues and Memberships
Legal Services
Office Supplies

Total County Attorney

Election Commission

County Official/Administrative Officer $

Deputy(ies)
Part-time Personnel
Board and Committee Members Fees
Election Commission
Election Workers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Unemployment Compensation
Accounting Services
Advertising
Communication
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Printing, Stationery, and Forms
Travel
Office Supplies
Other Charges
Data Processing Equipment
Total Election Commission

Register of Deeds

Life Insurance $

Medical Insurance
Communication
Data Processing Services

172

72,000
6,310
9,526

20
6,834
498
5,455
645

11,270
1,514

64,993
37,040
23,238
175
9,700
32,684
10,218
11,041
39
12,084
5,626
4,000
5,291
1,500
9,550
4,000
10,925
3,824
2,200
1,528

144
40,192

797
51,201

$

134,065

249,556
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General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)

Register of Deeds (Cont.)
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Travel
Office Supplies
Office Equipment

Total Register of Deeds

Development
Assistant(s)

Supervisor/Director
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Communication
Contracts with Government Agencies
Data Processing Services
Dues and Memberships
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Travel
Tuition
Other Contracted Services
Gasoline
Other Supplies and Materials
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance
Data Processing Equipment
Total Development

Planning
Assistant(s)
Clerical Personnel
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Communication
Dues and Memberships
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles
Travel

173

3 4,900
1,340

10,208

8,865

$ 38,000
58,191
7,327
12,634
41
12,084
1,367
36,600
40,152
255
4,111
1,140
400
2,569
161
566
700
4,925

3 109,861
25,950
10,237
17,968

79
23,652
664
900
2,538
1,855
500
1,893

$

117,647

221,223
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General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)

Planning (Cont.)

Tuition $ 1,691
Gasoline 3,000
Office Supplies 3,683
Periodicals 350
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 500
Workers' Compensation Insurance 2,957
Office Equipment 2,400
Total Planning $ 210,678
County Buildings
Assistant(s) $ 26,698
Custodial Personnel 35,418
Social Security 4,752
State Retirement 8,218
Life Insurance 35
Medical Insurance 11,215
Communication 30,287
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 2,300
Postal Charges 111,318
Travel 325
Other Contracted Services 27,610
Custodial Supplies 9,035
Drugs and Medical Supplies 1,149
Utilities 110,000
Other Supplies and Materials 18,794
Other Charges 276
Building Improvements 6,541
Total County Buildings 403,971
Finance
Accounting and Budgeting
Supervisor/Director $ 56,129
Clerical Personnel 57,971
Social Security 9,399
State Retirement 16,418
Life Insurance 61
Medical Insurance 12,084
Accounting Services 10,000
Dues and Memberships 2,050
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 5,172
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General Fund (Cont.)

Finance (Cont.)
Accounting and Budgeting (Cont.)

Tuition $ 554
Office Supplies 6,109
Other Supplies and Materials 1,244
Total Accounting and Budgeting 3 177,191

Property Assessor's Office

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 73,017
Paraprofessionals 248,132
Clerical Personnel 147,127
Social Security 34,805
State Retirement 55,591
Life Insurance 277
Medical Insurance 77,126
Unemployment Compensation 1,569
Communication 248
Dues and Memberships 3,000
Operating Lease Payments 4,492
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 1,631
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 2,354
Travel 2,105
Tuition 890
Other Contracted Services 60,192
Gasoline 3,750
Office Supplies 8,107
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 2,300
Workers' Compensation Insurance 340
Office Equipment 10,001
Total Property Assessor's Office 737,054

Reappraisal Program

Data Processing Services $ 36,697
Postal Charges 3,898
Other Contracted Services 87
Total Reappraisal Program 40,682

County Trustee's Office

Life Insurance $ 163
Medical Insurance 48,336
Communication 24
Dues and Memberships 544
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General Fund (Cont.)

Finance (Cont.)
County Trustee's Office (Cont.)

Travel $ 1,030

Tuition 448

Other Contracted Services 22,622

Office Supplies 8,203
Total County Trustee's Office $ 81,370
County Clerk's Office

Life Insurance $ 428

Medical Insurance 120,840

Unemployment Compensation 275

Communication 1,395

Dues and Memberships 984

Travel 3,996

Tuition 1,050

Office Supplies 49,485

Office Equipment 9,125
Total County Clerk's Office 187,578
Data Processing

Data Processing Personnel $ 56,274

Social Security 4,284

State Retirement 7,445

Life Insurance 20

Medical Insurance 6,042

Communication 23,400

Data Processing Services 10,580

Travel 1,200

Other Contracted Services 9,827

Other Supplies and Materials 97

Data Processing Equipment 24,472

Other Equipment 2,610
Total Data Processing 146,251

Administration of Justice
Circuit Court
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 73,017
Total Circuit Court 73,017

Circuit Court Clerk
Assistant(s) $ 37,132
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General Fund (Cont.)

Administration of Justice (Cont.)
Circuit Court Clerk (Cont.)

Deputy(ies) $ 686,990
Other Salaries and Wages 27,641
Social Security 61,971
State Retirement 104,157
Life Insurance 637
Medical Insurance 183,282
Communication 2,566
Data Processing Services 35,126
Dues and Memberships 674
Janitorial Services 7,764
Travel 83
Custodial Supplies 1,800
Data Processing Supplies 6,947
Office Supplies 31,209
Utilities 25,000
Data Processing Equipment 10,044
Office Equipment 2,588
Total Circuit Court Clerk $ 1,225,611

General Sessions Judge

Judge(s) $ 292,556
Clerical Personnel 52,000
Part-time Personnel 1,200
Other Salaries and Wages 44,331
Social Security 25,079
State Retirement 46,008
Life Insurance 98
Medical Insurance 29,738
Communication 900
Dues and Memberships 144
Travel 2,241
Tuition 824
Office Supplies 180
Periodicals 697
Data Processing Equipment 575
Furniture and Fixtures 207
Total General Sessions Judge 496,778
Drug Court
Assessment Personnel $ 50,000
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General Fund (Cont.)

Administration of Justice (Cont.)
Drug Court (Cont.)

Social Security $ 3,829

State Retirement 6,605

Life Insurance 20

Medical Insurance 5,996

Communication 543

Rentals 1,500

Travel 3,710

Other Contracted Services 96,993
Total Drug Court $ 169,196
Chancery Court

Jury and Witness Expense $ 2,249

Life Insurance 102

Medical Insurance 30,210

Communication 600

Dues and Memberships 654

Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 5,559

Travel 1,444

Tuition 285

Office Supplies 4,758
Total Chancery Court 45,861

Juvenile Court

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 46,301
Probation Officer(s) 249,756
Clerical Personnel 29,656
Other Salaries and Wages 20,057
Social Security 26,177
State Retirement 42,736
Life Insurance 171
Medical Insurance 50,867
Unemployment Compensation 1,650
Communication 13,108
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 13,919
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 113
Medical and Dental Services 300
Travel 4,231
Tuition 1,004
Other Contracted Services 5,751
Gasoline 448
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General Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)

Juvenile Court (Cont.)

Office Supplies $ 1,363
Utilities 31,735
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 2,500
Other Charges 6,005
Data Processing Equipment 862
Office Equipment 498
Other Capital Outlay 11,240
Total Juvenile Court $ 560,448

Judicial Commissioners

Jury and Witness Expense $ 75,705
Office Supplies 57
Total Judicial Commissioners 75,762

Other Administration of Justice

Assistant(s) $ 27,133
Supervisor/Director 30,684
Clerical Personnel 13,638
Social Security 5,431
State Retirement 9,454
Life Insurance 54
Medical Insurance 15,944
Communication 365
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 993
Gasoline 2,041
Office Supplies 600
Other Supplies and Materials 1,256
Liability Insurance 3,500
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 700
Workers' Compensation Insurance 107
Total Other Administration of Justice 111,900

Probation Services

Assistant(s) $ 34,673
Supervisor/Director 46,565
Probation Officer(s) 121,243
Clerical Personnel 7,002
Social Security 15,896
State Retirement 22,374
Life Insurance 137
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General Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)

Probation Services (Cont.)

Medical Insurance $ 41,016
Communication 23
Contracts with Government Agencies 1,975
Rentals 2,450
Travel 845
Tuition 110
Drug Treatment 6,664
Other Contracted Services 13,720
Office Supplies 2,000
Other Supplies and Materials 3,729
Other Charges 792
Total Probation Services $ 321,214

Public Safety
Sheriff's Department

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 80,320
Deputy(ies) 3,565,220
Clerical Personnel 146,277
Custodial Personnel 18,842
Part-time Personnel 2,242
Overtime Pay 92,569
Other Salaries and Wages 61,800
Social Security 301,772
State Retirement 504,080
Employee and Dependent Insurance 6,024
Life Insurance 2,050
Medical Insurance 593,793
Unemployment Compensation 4,884
Communication 41,700
Contracts with Vehicle Owners 3,000
Confidential Drug Enforcement Payments 6,730
Dues and Memberships 7,000
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 1,214
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 156,199
Tow-in Services 3,000
Travel 22,771
Tuition 18,819
Other Contracted Services 46,896
Gasoline 397,592
Law Enforcement Supplies 44,470
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Sheriff's Department (Cont.)

Office Supplies $ 12,665

Uniforms 36,402

Other Supplies and Materials 15,444

Building and Contents Insurance 3,327

Liability Insurance 47,996

Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 41,927

Workers' Compensation Insurance 88,708

Other Charges 704

Principal on Capital Leases 181,808

Interest on Capital Leases 8,751

Data Processing Equipment 35,137

Law Enforcement Equipment 165,451

Motor Vehicles 198,376
Total Sheriff's Department $ 6,965,960
Special Patrols

Deputy(ies) $ 173,492

Overtime Pay 28,411

Social Security 15,245

State Retirement 26,610

Life Insurance 122

Medical Insurance 32,369

Communication 1,658

Uniforms 1,105

Law Enforcement Equipment 13,016
Total Special Patrols 292,028
Traffic Control

Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment $ 1,963

Utilities 527
Total Traffic Control 2,490

Administration of the Sexual Offender Registry

Other Supplies and Materials $ 1,127
Total Administration of the Sexual Offender Registry 1,127
Jail

Deputy(ies) $ 2,814,077

Mechanic(s) 65,268

Clerical Personnel 88,475
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)

dJail (Cont.)
Maintenance Personnel $ 36,549
Part-time Personnel 16,949
Overtime Pay 58,685
Social Security 237,813
State Retirement 376,955
Life Insurance 2,050
Medical Insurance 547,190
Unemployment Compensation 1,011
Communication 10,864
Operating Lease Payments 9,258
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 38,312
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 2,500
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 11,071
Medical and Dental Services 631,187
Transportation - Other than Students 8,108
Travel 6,242
Tuition 1,520
Other Contracted Services 14,749
Custodial Supplies 67,993
Food Supplies 390,035
Office Supplies 13,891
Prisoners Clothing 6,000
Uniforms 31,095
Utilities 354,300
Other Supplies and Materials 33,182
Medical Claims 3,120
Specialized Medical Treatment 11,399
Other Charges 207
Principal on Capital Leases 11,420
Interest on Capital Leases 854
Data Processing Equipment 14,012
Law Enforcement Equipment 57,294
Other Capital Outlay 5,739

Total Jail $ 5,979,374

Correctional Incentive Program Improvements
Supervisor/Director $ 41,751
Guards 548,435
Part-time Personnel 81,523
Overtime Pay 11,598
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Correctional Incentive Program Improvements (Cont.)

Social Security $ 51,990
State Retirement 64,330
Life Insurance 481
Medical Insurance 139,243
Unemployment Compensation 18,600
Communication 6,779
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 2,846
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 2,740
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 398
Medical and Dental Services 1,946
Travel 2,000
Tuition 1,065
Custodial Supplies 12,317
Food Supplies 18,220
Gasoline 1,189
Office Supplies 1,260
Prisoners Clothing 4,593
Utilities 22,064
Other Supplies and Materials 3,440
Liability Insurance 4,590
Other Charges 949
Communication Equipment 13
Data Processing Equipment 1,970
Law Enforcement Equipment 2,067
Office Equipment 4,200
Total Correctional Incentive Program Improvements $ 1,052,597

Juvenile Services

Assistant(s) $ 10,159
Other Salaries and Wages 41,187
Social Security 3,675
State Retirement 2,851
Life Insurance 17
Medical Insurance 4,961
Unemployment Compensation 8,771
Communication 456
Travel 1,820
Other Contracted Services 10,000
Office Supplies 2,171
Other Supplies and Materials 2,653
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Juvenile Services (Cont.)
Other Charges $ 14,034
Total Juvenile Services 3 102,755

Work Release Program

Supervisor/Director $ 49,137
Probation Officer(s) 82,029
Clerical Personnel 23,094
Part-time Personnel 15,050
Social Security 12,417
State Retirement 20,408
Life Insurance 102
Medical Insurance 30,210
Accounting Services 1,200
Communication 4,779
Evaluation and Testing 3,335
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 782
Postal Charges 336
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 400
Rentals 18,000
Travel 12,849
Tuition 2,759
Custodial Supplies 1,762
Office Supplies 1,000
Periodicals 365
Utilities 4,289
Other Supplies and Materials 2,924
Liability Insurance 4,518
Workers' Compensation Insurance 256
Other Charges 15,413
Data Processing Equipment 2,250
Total Work Release Program 309,664

Civil Defense

Supervisor/Director $ 55,167
Accountants/Bookkeepers 29,994
Paraprofessionals 68,000
Overtime Pay 3,697
Social Security 11,931
State Retirement 20,739
Life Insurance 82
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Civil Defense (Cont.)

Medical Insurance $ 24,168
Unemployment Compensation 4,273
Communication 21,400
Contracts with Government Agencies 14,405
Contracts with Other Public Agencies 4,727
Dues and Memberships 1,200
Janitorial Services 548
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 1,251
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 2,477
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 3,505
Postal Charges 109
Travel 3,500
Tuition 4,923
Maintenance and Repair Services - Records 9,439
Gasoline 13,551
Office Supplies 1,882
Uniforms 2,679
Utilities 14,948
Building and Contents Insurance 9,900
Indirect Cost 21,697
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 7,709
Other Charges 5,905
Other Equipment 350,000
Total Civil Defense $ 713,706
Rescue Squad
Communication $ 413
Dues and Memberships 1,255
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 6,274
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 500
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 10,372
Medical and Dental Services 2,000
Postal Charges 37
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 189
Travel 2,287
Tuition 5,858
Custodial Supplies 793
Drugs and Medical Supplies 2,823
Food Supplies 1,950
Gasoline 11,319
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Rescue Squad (Cont.)

Instructional Supplies and Materials $ 1,162
Office Supplies 580
Uniforms 589
Utilities 14,577
Other Supplies and Materials 5,000
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 24,845
Other Charges 14,592
Building Improvements 4,497
Other Equipment 39,042
Other Capital Outlay 29,855
Total Rescue Squad $ 180,809

Other Emergency Management
Contracts with Government Agencies $ 647,848

Total Other Emergency Management 647,848

Inspection and Regulation

Investigator(s) $ 17,539
Social Security 1,329
State Retirement 2,320
Other Supplies and Materials 175
Building and Contents Insurance 39,596
Liability Insurance 101,503
Total Inspection and Regulation 162,462

County Coroner/Medical Examiner

Medical Personnel $ 11,999
Overtime Pay 24,255
Social Security 2,739
State Retirement 3,209
Communication 1,072
Medical and Dental Services 53,287
Postal Charges 200
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 185
Travel 1,330
Drugs and Medical Supplies 2,771
Gasoline 5,183
Office Supplies 294
Uniforms 386
In Service/Staff Development 775
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
County Coroner/Medical Examiner (Cont.)
Data Processing Equipment $ 565
Total County Coroner/Medical Examiner 3 108,250

Other Public Safety
Contributions $ 450,000
Total Other Public Safety 450,000

Public Health and Welfare
Local Health Center

Paraprofessionals $ 73,211
Custodial Personnel 29,359
Social Security 7,635
State Retirement 9,911
Life Insurance 99
Medical Insurance 29,378
Communication 6,999
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 2,950
Rentals 1,000
Travel 7,293
Tuition 999
Custodial Supplies 3,028
Drugs and Medical Supplies 2,716
Office Supplies 6,335
Utilities 25,932
Other Supplies and Materials 1,708
Other Charges 185,244
Total Local Health Center 393,797

Rabies and Animal Control
Contracts with Government Agencies $ 339,741
Total Rabies and Animal Control 339,741

Ambulance/Emergency Medical Services

Supervisor/Director $ 59,396
Accountants/Bookkeepers 106,849
Paraprofessionals 2,121,676
Part-time Personnel 430,632
Overtime Pay 195,776
Social Security 218,432
State Retirement 306,942
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)
Ambulance/Emergency Medical Services (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 1,226
Medical Insurance 355,672
Unemployment Compensation 4,277
Communication 15,880
Dues and Memberships 404
Laundry Service 15,000
Licenses 3,123
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 4,940
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 5,657
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 102,987
Medical and Dental Services 1,200
Travel 2,272
Tuition 12,870
Custodial Supplies 5,695
Drugs and Medical Supplies 131,790
Gasoline 127,056
Office Supplies 18,585
Uniforms 18,306
Utilities 19,964
Other Supplies and Materials 6,000
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 11,000
Workers' Compensation Insurance 92,500
Data Processing Equipment 8,344
Motor Vehicles 2,236
Office Equipment 2,888
Other Equipment 13,669
Total Ambulance/Emergency Medical Services $ 4,423,244
Alcohol and Drug Programs
Other Salaries and Wages $ 32,853
Social Security 2,493
State Retirement 4,346
Life Insurance 20
Medical Insurance 5,859
Travel 607
Other Supplies and Materials 1,168
Total Alcohol and Drug Programs 47,346

Other Local Health Services
Medical Personnel $ 103,002
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)

Other Local Health Services (Cont.)
Paraprofessionals
Clerical Personnel
Part-time Personnel
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Contracts with Government Agencies
Travel
Office Supplies

Total Other Local Health Services

General Welfare Assistance
Contributions
Total General Welfare Assistance

Other Local Welfare Services
Contracts with Government Agencies
Total Other Local Welfare Services

Waste Pickup
Other Supplies and Materials
Total Waste Pickup

Other Public Health and Welfare
Other Supplies and Materials
Total Other Public Health and Welfare

Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services

Adult Activities
Contracts with Government Agencies
Total Adult Activities

Senior Citizens Assistance
Contracts with Other Public Agencies
Contributions

Total Senior Citizens Assistance

Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational
Assistant(s)

Exhibit J-9
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3 406,349
154,748
16,764

51,538

67,784

432

125,941

2,999

24,889

355

3 2,000

3 78,865

3 300

3 11,981

3 10,000

3 2,500
91,560

3 71,448

$ 954,801

2,000

78,865

300

11,981

10,000

94,060
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General Fund (Cont.)
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services (Cont.)
Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational (Cont.)

Supervisor/Director $ 50,000
Foremen 28,407
Clerical Personnel 19,484
Cafeteria Personnel 27,880
Maintenance Personnel 89,631
Temporary Personnel 13,5638
Overtime Pay 663
Other Salaries and Wages 23,680
Social Security 24,464
State Retirement 33,506
Life Insurance 180
Medical Insurance 41,525
Unemployment Compensation 1,621
Communication 4,500
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 68,552
Travel 1,377
Food Supplies 61,625
Gasoline 13,272
Office Supplies 2,267
Uniforms 1,705
Utilities 106,189
Other Supplies and Materials 216,701
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 1,000
Workers' Compensation Insurance 4,924
Other Equipment 18,964
Other Capital Outlay 17,5651
Total Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational $ 944,654

Agriculture and Natural Resources
Agriculture Extension Service

Clerical Personnel $ 19,527
Part-time Personnel 15,249
Other Salaries and Wages 140,034
Social Security 8,548
Extension Service Medicare 889
State Retirement 17,287
Life Insurance 20
Medical Insurance 13,527
Other Fringe Benefits 852
Communication 2,199
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General Fund (Cont.)
Agriculture and Natural Resources (Cont.)
Agriculture Extension Service (Cont.)

Contracts with Government Agencies $ 3,500
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 7,657
Travel 2,400
Office Supplies 521
Utilities 4,766
Total Agriculture Extension Service 3 236,976

Soil Conservation

Contracts with Government Agencies $ 40,069
Contracts with Other Public Agencies 200
Other Charges 10,000
Total Soil Conservation 50,269

Storm Water Management

Assistant(s) $ 61,738
Supervisor/Director 57,311
Part-time Personnel 24,998
Social Security 10,990
State Retirement 15,750
Life Insurance 41
Medical Insurance 12,075
Advertising 1,496
Communication 41
Data Processing Services 2,998
Dues and Memberships 150
Evaluation and Testing 12,728
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 797
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 449
Travel 4,996
Tuition 1,995
Permits 3,000
Other Contracted Services 14,000
Gasoline 1,300
Instructional Supplies and Materials 2,098
Office Supplies 1,198
Periodicals 100
Testing 996
Other Supplies and Materials 143
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 500
Other Charges 150
Total Storm Water Management 232,038
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General Fund (Cont.)
Other Operations

Tourism

Contributions $ 148,132
Total Tourism $ 148,132
Industrial Development

Contributions $ 148,132
Total Industrial Development 148,132
Public Transportation

Matching Share $ 42,000
Total Public Transportation 42,000
Veterans' Services

Assistant(s) $ 25,200

Supervisor/Director 29,234

Clerical Personnel 21,788

Social Security 5,750

State Retirement 10,084

Life Insurance 61

Medical Insurance 12,084

Communication 744

Dues and Memberships 100

Travel 1,244

Other Contracted Services 1,098

Office Supplies 1,288

Other Supplies and Materials 350
Total Veterans' Services 109,025
Other Charges

Trustee's Commaission $ 311,529
Total Other Charges 311,529
Contributions to Other Agencies

Contributions $ 55,000

Dues and Memberships 23,765
Total Contributions to Other Agencies 78,765
ARRA Grant# 1

Other Salaries and Wages $ 27,000

Social Security 2,043

State Retirement 3,572
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General Fund (Cont.)
Other Operations (Cont.)

ARRA Grant # 1 (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 19

Medical Insurance 5,743

Communication 213

Rentals 4,341

Travel 2,778

Other Supplies and Materials 1,500
Total ARRA Grant # 1 $ 47,209
ARRA Grant# 2

Other Salaries and Wages $ 17,433

Social Security 1,321

State Retirement 748

Life Insurance 12

Medical Insurance 3,587

Communication 223

Travel 5,345

Office Supplies 491

Other Capital Outlay 600
Total ARRA Grant # 2 29,760
ARRA Grant # 3

Deputy(ies) $ 24,560

Social Security 1,846

State Retirement 2,174

Life Insurance 14

Medical Insurance 4,088

Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,507
Total ARRA Grant # 3 34,189
ARRA Grant # 4

Other Equipment $ 3,146
Total ARRA Grant # 4 3,146
ARRA Grant # 6

Law Enforcement Equipment $ 144,432
Total ARRA Grant # 6 144,432
Miscellaneous

Paraprofessionals $ 12,587

Part-time Personnel 9,844
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General Fund (Cont.)
Other Operations (Cont.)
Miscellaneous (Cont.)
Social Security
State Retirement
Travel
Other Charges
Total Miscellaneous

Total General Fund

Law Library Fund
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services
Libraries
Library Books/Media
Office Supplies
Total Libraries

Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission
Total Other Charges

Total Law Library Fund

Public Library Fund
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services
Libraries
Library Books/Media
Total Libraries

Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission

Total Other Charges
Total Public Library Fund

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund
Public Health and Welfare
Other Waste Collection
Other Contracted Services
Total Other Waste Collection
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1,712

247
1,425
7,319

7,495
180

126

558,016

11,478

39,250

$ 33,134
$ 7,675
126

$ 558,016
11,478

$ 39,250

$ 32,498,508

7,801

569,494
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Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)

Recycling Center

Maintenance Personnel $ 14,604
Social Security 1,117
Other Contracted Services 372
Other Supplies and Materials 1,882
Other Equipment 23,396
Total Recycling Center $ 41,371

Other Operations
Other Charges
Trustee's Commission $ 2,271
Total Other Charges 2,271

Contributions to Other Agencies
Contributions $ 26,500
Total Contributions to Other Agencies 26,500

Total Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund $ 109,392

Drug Control Fund

Public Safety
Sheriff's Department

Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles $ 9,887
Tow-in Services 450
Travel 292
Tuition 60
Other Supplies and Materials 1,443
Furniture and Fixtures 3,800
Law Enforcement Equipment 27,921
Motor Vehicles 20,456
Total Sheriff's Department $ 64,309
Drug Enforcement
Investigator(s) $ 198,767
Clerical Personnel 23,464
Overtime Pay 21,635
Social Security 18,380
State Retirement 32,250
Life Insurance 120
Medical Insurance 35,578
Communication 9,885
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Drug Control Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)

Drug Enforcement (Cont.)
Confidential Drug Enforcement Payments
Other Contracted Services
Uniforms
Other Supplies and Materials

Total Drug Enforcement

Public Health and Welfare
Alcohol and Drug Programs
Other Supplies and Materials
Total Alcohol and Drug Programs

Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission
Total Other Charges

Total Drug Control Fund

Agri-Business Fund
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services

Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational
County Official/Administrative Officer
Supervisor/Director
Clerical Personnel
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Utilities
Building and Contents Insurance
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance
Workers' Compensation Insurance

Total Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational

Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission
Total Other Charges

Total Agri-Business Fund
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20,000
28,350
1,110
15,728
$ 405,267

28,640
28,640

1,030
1,030

3 499,246

49,014
21,120
46,587
8,841
15,442
82
18,126
9,751
4,616
700
100

$ 174,379

1,392
1,392

175,771
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Special Purpose Fire Tax Fund

Public Safety
Fire Prevention and Control

Supervisor/Director $ 52,000
Investigator(s) 30,000
Captain(s) 58,601
Lieutenant(s) 107,009
Paraprofessionals 270,178
Truck Drivers 149,106
Clerical Personnel 28,000
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees 15,000
Overtime Pay 72,023
Social Security 58,243
State Retirement 87,860
Life Insurance 543
Medical Insurance 161,529
Communication 15,723
Laundry Service 5,542
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 2,905
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 42,336
Medical and Dental Services 1,109
Travel 3,268
Tuition 6,419
Other Contracted Services 41,207
Custodial Supplies 5,250
Gasoline 36,842
Office Supplies 2,367
Uniforms 8,115
Utilities 39,733
Other Supplies and Materials 18,455
Building and Contents Insurance 2,400
Liability Insurance 3,400
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 19,000
Workers' Compensation Insurance 26,872
Law Enforcement Equipment 2,301
Other Equipment 40,770
Other Capital Outlay 367,222
Total Fire Prevention and Control $ 1,781,328

Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commaission $ 35,091
Total Other Charges 35,091

Total Special Purpose Fire Tax Fund $ 1,816,419
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Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund
General Government
Register of Deeds
Constitutional Officers' Operating Expenses $ 294,614
Total Register of Deeds 3 294,614

Finance
County Trustee's Office
Constitutional Officers' Operating Expenses $ 391,231
Total County Trustee's Office 391,231

County Clerk's Office
Constitutional Officers' Operating Expenses $ 841,873
Total County Clerk's Office 841,873

Administration of Justice
Chancery Court

Constitutional Officers' Operating Expenses $ 224,898

Total Chancery Court 224,898

Total Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund $ 1,752,616
Highway/Public Works Fund
Highways

Administration
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 80,320
Assistant(s) 50,149
Supervisor/Director 40,198
Accountants/Bookkeepers 24,154
Dispatchers/Radio Operators 29,266
Overtime Pay 1,572
Other Salaries and Wages 201,225
Data Processing Services 6,263
Dues and Memberships 3,736
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 1,008
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 684
Travel 1,619
Office Supplies 4,542
Communication Equipment 10,876
Office Equipment 3,517

Total Administration 3 459,129
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Highway/Public Works Fund (Cont.)
Highways (Cont.)

Highway and Bridge Maintenance

Foremen $ 32,837
Equipment Operators 286,402
Truck Drivers 235,831
Laborers 312,342
Overtime Pay 26,183
Rentals 1,903
Other Contracted Services 8,701
Asphalt - Hot Mix 1,806,274
Asphalt - Liquid 46,863
Concrete 4,096
Crushed Stone 62,000
Fertilizer, Lime, and Seed 2,183
General Construction Materials 59,437
Pipe - Concrete 2,217
Pipe - Metal 31,525
Road Signs 60,908
Salt 17,809
Sand 16
Small Tools 1,552
Wood Products 54
Other Supplies and Materials 2,985
Total Highway and Bridge Maintenance $ 3,002,118

Operation and Maintenance of Equipment

Foremen $ 32,843
Mechanic(s) 88,087
Overtime Pay 1,517
Laundry Service 11,750
Other Contracted Services 243
Diesel Fuel 118,799
Equipment and Machinery Parts 80,787
Garage Supplies 14,299
Gasoline 33,463
Lubricants 4,050
Propane Gas 3,823
Small Tools 518
Tires and Tubes 27,240
Other Supplies and Materials 1,567
Total Operation and Maintenance of Equipment 418,986
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Highway/Public Works Fund (Cont.)

Highways (Cont.)
Litter and Trash Collection

Truck Drivers $ 24,378

Guards 28,888

Other Salaries and Wages 6,500

Other Contracted Services 1,912

Other Supplies and Materials 18,755
Total Litter and Trash Collection 3 80,433
Other Charges

Communication $ 5,545

Electricity 11,713

Water and Sewer 1,007

Liability Insurance 58,658

Trustee's Commission 73,131
Total Other Charges 150,054
Employee Benefits

Social Security $ 112,924

State Retirement 183,374

Employee and Dependent Insurance 5,064

Life Insurance 1,180

Medical Insurance 338,269

Unemployment Compensation 3,244

Workers' Compensation Insurance 42,613
Total Employee Benefits 686,668
Capital Qutlay

Engineering Services $ 41,588

Bridge Construction 84,279

Building Improvements 14,184

Other Equipment 152,267
Total Capital Outlay 292,318

Capital Projects
Highway and Street Capital Projects

Equipment Operators $ 56,591
Truck Drivers 40,683
Laborers 49,782
Overtime Pay 2,334
Social Security 11,174
State Retirement 20,024

(Continued)

200



Exhibit J-9

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

Highway/Public Works Fund (Cont.)
Capital Projects (Cont.)

Highway and Street Capital Projects (Cont.)
Engineering Services
Rentals
Other Contracted Services
Concrete
Crushed Stone
Diesel Fuel
Equipment and Machinery Parts
General Construction Materials
Pipe - Metal
Small Tools
Workers' Compensation Insurance
Bridge Construction

Total Highway and Street Capital Projects

Total Highway/Public Works Fund

Vocational Building Fund
General Government
Other Facilities
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings
Total Other Facilities

Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission

Total Other Charges
Total Vocational Building Fund

General Debt Service Fund
Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission

Total Other Charges

Principal on Debt
General Government

Principal on Notes
Principal on Other Loans
Total General Government
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2,248
654
26
4,188
1,468
9,000
1,163
9,028
5,126
5,836
5,875
42,710

3,592

921

97,834

24,049

577,444

$ 267,910
$ 3,592
921

$ 97,834
601,493

$

5,357,616

4,513
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General Debt Service Fund (Cont.)
Principal on Debt (Cont.)

Education
Principal on Notes $ 50,000
Principal on Other Loans 1,772,556
Total Education $ 1,822,556

Interest on Debt
General Government

Interest on Other Loans $ 403,659
Total General Government 403,659
Education

Interest on Bonds $ 677,933

Interest on Notes 10,320

Interest on Other Loans 1,352,160
Total Education 2,040,413

Other Debt Service
General Government
Other Debt Service $ 193,192
Total General Government 193,192

Education
Other Debt Service $ 162,068
Total Education 162,068

Total General Debt Service Fund $ 5,321,215

General Capital Projects Fund
Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission $ 5,392
Total Other Charges $ 5,392

Capital Projects
Public Health and Welfare Projects

Motor Vehicles $ 142,596
Total Public Health and Welfare Projects 142,596
Social, Cultural, and Recreation Projects

Other Capital Outlay $ 34,078
Total Social, Cultural, and Recreation Projects 34,078
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General Capital Projects Fund (Cont.)
Capital Projects (Cont.)
Highway and Street Capital Projects
Highway Construction $ 178,752
Total Highway and Street Capital Projects 3 178,752

Total General Capital Projects Fund $ 360,818

Community Development/Industrial Park Fund

Other Operations
Industrial Development

Water and Sewer $ 310,538
Other Charges 1,000,000
Total Industrial Development $ 1,310,538

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission $ 39,627
Total Other Charges 39,627

Total Community Development/Industrial Park Fund 1,350,165

Peerless Road Capital Projects Fund
Capital Projects
Public Utility Projects
Other Construction $ 241,191
Total Public Utility Projects $ 241,191

Total Peerless Road Capital Projects Fund 241,191

HUD Grant Projects Fund
Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission $ 21
Total Other Charges $ 21

Total HUD Grant Projects Fund 21

Education Capital Projects Fund
Other Operations

Other Charges
Trustee's Commission $ 677
Total Other Charges $ 677

(Continued)
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Education Capital Projects Fund (Cont.)

Capital Projects
Education Capital Projects

Contributions $ 17,391,976
Underwriter's Discount 51,725
Other Debt Issuance Charges 127,900
Total Education Capital Projects $ 17,571,601
Total Education Capital Projects Fund $ 17,572,278

Other Capital Projects Fund

Other Operations
Other Economic and Community Development
Other Contracted Services $ 26,750
Total Other Economic and Community Development 3 26,750

Total Other Capital Projects Fund 26,750

Endowment Fund
Public Health and Welfare
Other Public Health and Welfare

Contributions $ 232,428
Total Other Public Health and Welfare $ 232,428
Total Endowment Fund 232,428
Total Governmental Funds - Primary Government $ 67,896,242
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General Purpose School Fund
Instruction

Regular Instruction Program
Teachers
Career Ladder Program
Career Ladder Extended Contracts
Homebound Teachers
Educational Assistants
Other Salaries and Wages
Non-certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Employer Medicare
Other Fringe Benefits
Operating Lease Payments
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Textbooks
Other Supplies and Materials
Fee Waivers
Other Charges
Regular Instruction Equipment

Total Regular Instruction Program

Special Education Program
Teachers
Career Ladder Program
Educational Assistants
Speech Pathologist
Other Salaries and Wages
Non-certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Employer Medicare
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Other Supplies and Materials
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$ 24,721,009
252,140
164,700

55,400
878,397
40,742
301,157
1,687,385
1,803,664
25,5699
3,225,942
376,916
326,123
4,800
81,131
126,484
368,638
675,771
32,974
84,000
20,430

917,593

$ 365,336
15,000
111,480
162,961
89,425
15,204
115,528
139,168
2,115
262,627
27,756
17,036
180,477
63,089

$ 36,070,995
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Instruction (Cont.)
Special Education Program (Cont.)

Other Charges $ 7,089
Special Education Equipment 155,309
Total Special Education Program $ 1,729,600

Vocational Education Program

Teachers $ 1,827,617
Career Ladder Program 7,000
Non-certified Substitute Teachers 17,000
Social Security 111,278
State Retirement 124,929
Life Insurance 1,813
Medical Insurance 247,516
Employer Medicare 26,025
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 12,000
Instructional Supplies and Materials 80,200
Total Vocational Education Program 2,455,378

Adult Education Program

Teachers $ 35,680
Other Salaries and Wages 81,312
Social Security 7,243
State Retirement 5,497
Life Insurance 98
Medical Insurance 13,308
Employer Medicare 1,694
Travel 1,775
Instructional Supplies and Materials 1,668
Other Charges 5,048
Total Adult Education Program 153,323
Support Services
Attendance
Supervisor/Director $ 37,715
Career Ladder Program 1,000
Clerical Personnel 49,883
Social Security 5,219
State Retirement 9,085
Life Insurance 104
Medical Insurance 13,864
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Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)

Support Services (Cont.)
Attendance (Cont.)
Employer Medicare
Travel

Other Supplies and Materials

Attendance Equipment
Total Attendance

Health Services
Medical Personnel
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Employer Medicare
Travel

Drugs and Medical Supplies
Other Supplies and Materials

Other Charges
Total Health Services

Other Student Support
Career Ladder Program
Guidance Personnel
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Employer Medicare
Communication
Evaluation and Testing
Travel
Other Charges

Total Other Student Support

Regular Instruction Program
Supervisor/Director
Career Ladder Program
Librarians
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1,221
1,081
3,057
1,188

308,727
43,384
23,046
45,298

518
66,654
5,390
5,511
5,000
23,034
199

10,000
1,118,168
179,351
78,179
94,914
1,214
145,573
18,313
1,092
80,203
1,623
104

160,915
12,500
721,250

$

123,417

526,761

1,728,734
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Regular Instruction Program (Cont.)

Materials Supervisor $ 24,044
Secretary(ies) 49,042
Educational Assistants 161,418
Other Salaries and Wages 140,850
Social Security 76,096
State Retirement 86,852
Life Insurance 1,133
Medical Insurance 154,159
Employer Medicare 17,911
Communication 235
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 1,088
Travel 19,556
Library Books/Media 259,102
In Service/Staff Development 2,100
Total Regular Instruction Program $ 1,888,251
Special Education Program
Supervisor/Director $ 79,343
Career Ladder Program 12,500
Psychological Personnel 201,189
Secretary(ies) 32,695
Other Salaries and Wages 132,989
Social Security 26,230
State Retirement 30,993
Life Insurance 302
Medical Insurance 34,197
Employer Medicare 6,610
Operating Lease Payments 11,973
Other Supplies and Materials 41,404
In Service/Staff Development 13,132
Other Equipment 4,344
Total Special Education Program 627,901

Vocational Education Program

Supervisor/Director $ 61,483
Secretary(ies) 23,965
Social Security 5,161
State Retirement 7,143
Life Insurance 86
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Vocational Education Program (Cont.)

Medical Insurance $ 11,274
Employer Medicare 1,207
Travel 4,072
Other Supplies and Materials 1,082
Other Charges 667
Total Vocational Education Program $ 116,140

Other Programs

On-Behalf Payments to OPEB $ 447,294
Remittance of Revenue Collected 358,024
Total Other Programs 805,318
Board of Education
Board and Committee Members Fees $ 20,400
Social Security 1,066
State Retirement 1,799
Unemployment Compensation 53,237
Employer Medicare 296
Audit Services 25,460
Dues and Memberships 7,897
Legal Services 27,230
Travel 8,315
Other Contracted Services 3,630
Liability Insurance 87,836
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 4,376
Trustee's Commission 326,357
Workers' Compensation Insurance 163,079
Criminal Investigation of Applicants - TBI 9,376
Refund to Applicant for Criminal Investigation 3,224
Other Charges 425
Total Board of Education 744,003

Director of Schools

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 112,587
Career Ladder Program 1,000
Secretary(ies) 72,675
Other Salaries and Wages 5,336
Social Security 11,447
State Retirement 23,951
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Director of Schools (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 823
Medical Insurance 23,228
Employer Medicare 2,927
Other Fringe Benefits 14,098
Communication 40,425
Dues and Memberships 1,427
Postal Charges 4,500
Travel 5,515
Office Supplies 2,921
Other Charges 14,789
Administration Equipment 385
Total Director of Schools $ 338,034

Office of the Principal

Principals $ 1,187,225
Career Ladder Program 17,500
Assistant Principals 743,293
Secretary(ies) 646,378
Social Security 153,295
State Retirement 211,205
Life Insurance 2,374
Medical Insurance 331,787
Employer Medicare 35,851
Dues and Memberships 8,800
Travel 1,583
Total Office of the Principal 3,339,291

Fiscal Services

Supervisor/Director $ 79,343
Career Ladder Program 3,000
Accountants/Bookkeepers 158,025
Social Security 13,645
State Retirement 30,089
Life Insurance 216
Medical Insurance 20,665
Employer Medicare 3,375
Data Processing Services 8,480
Dues and Memberships 320
Travel 1,601
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Fiscal Services (Cont.)

Other Contracted Services $ 4,647
Data Processing Supplies 4,038
Office Supplies 3,634
Administration Equipment 1,408
Total Fiscal Services 3 332,386
Operation of Plant
Supervisor/Director $ 66,187
Guards 10,204
Custodial Personnel 514,179
Social Security 36,083
State Retirement 70,225
Life Insurance 1,078
Medical Insurance 127,105
Employer Medicare 8,439
Janitorial Services 558,868
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 15,216
Rentals 1,853
Travel 5,826
Disposal Fees 29,830
Other Contracted Services 24,901
Custodial Supplies 105,215
Electricity 1,695,922
Fuel Oil 158,133
Natural Gas 255,455
Water and Sewer 235,727
Boiler Insurance 14,004
Building and Contents Insurance 247,307
Other Charges 7,042
Principal on Notes 47,380
Principal on Capital Leases 74,262
Interest on Capital Leases 19,618
Total Operation of Plant 4,330,059
Maintenance of Plant
Supervisor/Director $ 57,372
Maintenance Personnel 448,868
Other Salaries and Wages 15,064
Social Security 31,896
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Maintenance of Plant (Cont.)

State Retirement $ 67,746
Life Insurance 600
Medical Insurance 64,445
Employer Medicare 7,460
Other Contracted Services 29,040
Other Supplies and Materials 334,754
Other Charges 10,812
Other Capital Outlay 418,656
Total Maintenance of Plant $ 1,486,713

Transportation

Supervisor/Director $ 37,715
Clerical Personnel 31,800
Social Security 3,975
State Retirement 6,629
Life Insurance 65
Medical Insurance 8,906
Employer Medicare 930
Communication 8,946
Contracts with Vehicle Owners 1,752,883
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 78,073
Medical and Dental Services 2,996
Travel 685
Gasoline 58,323
Other Supplies and Materials 1,977
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance 78,772
Other Charges 1,033
Transportation Equipment 7,920
Total Transportation 2,081,628

Central and Other

Supervisor/Director $ 75,431
Data Processing Personnel 166,740
Social Security 14,491
State Retirement 26,902
Life Insurance 259
Medical Insurance 34,934
Employer Medicare 3,389
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 64,338
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Central and Other (Cont.)

Travel $ 3,976
Other Contracted Services 189,359
Other Supplies and Materials 1,067
Other Charges 3,498
Total Central and Other $ 584,384

Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Food Service

Supervisor/Director $ 48,276
Social Security 2,979
State Retirement 6,387
Life Insurance 3,278
Medical Insurance 5,166
Employer Medicare 697
Travel 2,711
Other Contracted Services 1,800
Other Supplies and Materials 1,748
Other Charges 105
Total Food Service 73,147

Community Services

Other Salaries and Wages $ 279,297
Social Security 17,250
State Retirement 10,286
Employer Medicare 4,034
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 3,723
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 4,080
Travel 2,937
Other Contracted Services 42,964
Instructional Supplies and Materials 34,817
Utilities 13,000
Other Charges 9,536
Total Community Services 421,924

Early Childhood Education
Contracts with Other Public Agencies $ 1,266,847
Total Early Childhood Education 1,266,847

(Continued)

213



Exhibit J-10

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)

Capital Outlay
Regular Capital Outlay

Building Construction $ 137,297
Building Improvements 200,360

Total Regular Capital Outlay 3 337,657

Total General Purpose School Fund $ 61,561,891
School Federal Projects Fund
Instruction

Regular Instruction Program
Teachers $ 544,204
Educational Assistants 219,388
Non-certified Substitute Teachers 15,260
Social Security 46,740
State Retirement 34,938
Life Insurance 570
Medical Insurance 63,702
Employer Medicare 11,058
Other Contracted Services 2,604
Instructional Supplies and Materials 118,143
Other Charges 16,966
Regular Instruction Equipment 908,678

Total Regular Instruction Program $ 1,982,251

Special Education Program

Teachers $ 1,301,734
Educational Assistants 364,945
Other Salaries and Wages 20
Social Security 24,910
State Retirement 48,884
Life Insurance 1,020
Medical Insurance 109,874
Employer Medicare 6,420
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 487
Other Contracted Services 243,417
Instructional Supplies and Materials 223,992
Other Supplies and Materials 179,397
Special Education Equipment 459,407
Total Special Education Program 2,964,507
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Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

School Federal Projects Fund (Cont.)
Instruction (Cont.)

Vocational Education Program
Other Supplies and Materials
Vocational Instruction Equipment

Total Vocational Education Program

Support Services

Other Student Support
Evaluation and Testing
Travel
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
In Service/Staff Development
Other Charges

Total Other Student Support

Regular Instruction Program
Supervisor/Director
Secretary(ies)

Educational Assistants
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Employer Medicare
Travel
Other Supplies and Materials
In Service/Staff Development
Other Charges
Other Equipment
Total Regular Instruction Program

Special Education Program
Psychological Personnel
Secretary(ies)

Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security

State Retirement

Life Insurance

Medical Insurance

215

11,000
82,540

1,061
38,335
100
3,481
3,263
37,562

56,103
16,347
12,325

399,393
24,526
29,228

419
53,874
6,409
19,234
1,389

142,277

114,988
36,544

161,378
89,219
412,597
35,585
44,513
622
71,112

$

93,540

83,802

913,056

(Continued)



Exhibit J-10

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

School Federal Projects Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Special Education Program (Cont.)

Employer Medicare $ 9,271
Travel 76,737
Other Supplies and Materials 2,375
In Service/Staff Development 108,807
Total Special Education Program $ 1,012,216

Transportation

Bus Drivers $ 79,804
Social Security 4,283
State Retirement 1,115
Employer Medicare 1,157
Other Supplies and Materials 548
Transportation Equipment 19,746
Total Transportation 106,653
Total School Federal Projects Fund $ 17,156,025

Central Cafeteria Fund
Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Food Service

Cafeteria Personnel $ 1,744,812
Social Security 106,049
State Retirement 164,176
Medical Insurance 323,131
Unemployment Compensation 4,329
Employer Medicare 24,826
Communication 2,776
Dues and Memberships 739
Freight Expenses 509
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 47,820
Pest Control 3,820
Travel 4,259
Permits 1,280
Other Contracted Services 123,328
Food Preparation Supplies 9,706
Food Supplies 1,773,755
Ice 33,771
Uniforms 1,779
Other Supplies and Materials 137,591

(Continued)
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Exhibit J-10

Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Bradley County School Department (Cont.)

Central Cafeteria Fund (Cont.)
Operation of Non-Instructional Services (Cont.)
Food Service (Cont.)
Refunds $
Criminal Investigation of Applicants - TBI
Refund to Applicant for Criminal Investigation
Other Charges
Food Service Equipment
Total Food Service

Total Central Cafeteria Fund

Education Capital Projects Fund
Capital Projects

Education Capital Projects
Architects 3
Engineering Services
Other Contracted Services
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Building Construction
Other Equipment
Other Capital Outlay

Total Education Capital Projects

Total Education Capital Projects Fund

Total Governmental Funds - Bradley County School Department
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1,545
1,728
432
8,824
121,573

176,166
65,106
3,707

153
24,454
8,282,796
31,473
48,044

$

$

4,642,558

8,631,899

$ 4,642,558
8,631,899
$ 81,992,373
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Bradley County’s comprehensive annual report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
government’s overall financial health.

Tables Pages
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the government’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time. 1-5 220-227

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government’s most significant local revenue source, the property
tax. 6-9 228-231

Debt Capacity:

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt
and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
The tables on legal debt margin information and pledged-revenue
coverage are not applicable to counties in Tennessee. 10-14 232-236

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help

the reader understand the environment within which the

government’s financial activities take place. 15-16 237-238
Operating Information:

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the

reader understand how the information in the government’s

financial report relates to the services the government provides

and the activities it performs. 17-19 239-241

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived
from the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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Table 12

Bradley County, Tennessee
Direct and Overlapping Debt
General Obligation Bonds, Notes and Other Loans
As of June 30, 2010

Direct Debt

General Bonded Debt (1) $ 17,550,000
Note Payable 611,193
Public Building Authority Loan Agreements 62,645,000
Less: General Debt Service Fund (16,403,302)
Total Direct Debt $ 64,402,891
Overlapping Debt
City of Cleveland (2) $ 71,313,271
Total Overlapping Debt 71,313,271
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $135,716,162

(1) Amount includes Primary Government and discretely presented Bradley County School
Department debt.

(2) Sources: Cumberland Securities, Division of Morgan Keegan & Company, Inc.,
Financial Advisor for Bradley County and the City of Cleveland.
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Table 13

Bradley County, Tennessee
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2010

Not Applicable to Bradley County, Tennessee

Note: Section 9-21-103 of the laws of the State of Tennessee provides
that bonds or notes may be issued without regard to any limit
on indebtedness for Tennessee counties.
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Table 14

Bradley County, Tennessee
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Not Applicable to Bradley County, Tennessee
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Table 15

Bradley County, Tennessee
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(@) 3)
(1) (1) Education Level @) Average

Fiscal Year (1) Personal Per Capita Median in Years of County School Unemployment
Ending June 30 Population Income Income Age  Formal Schooling Enrollment Rate
2001 87,965 $ 2,132,535495 $ 24,243 35.5 14.4 10,793 4.9%
2002 87,965 2,132,5635,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 10,865 5.5%
2003 87,965 2,132,5635,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 10,860 5.1%
2004 87,965 2,132,535,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 11,014 5.3%
2005 87,965 2,132,535,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 11,171 5.8%
2006 87,965 2,132,5635,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 11,663 5.1%
2007 87,965 2,132,5635,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 11,840 6.9%
2008 87,965 2,132,535,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 12,087 8.7%
2009 87,965 2,132,535,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 12,190 9.9%
2010 87,965 2,132,535,495 24,243  35.5 14.4 12,190 9.0%

(1) U.S. Census Bureau.
(2) Weighted Full-time Equivalent Average Daily Attendance - Bradley County Schools.
(3) Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development.
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF COUNTY AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

October 28, 2010

Bradley County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Bradley County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Bradley County, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010,
which collectively comprise Bradley County’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated October 28, 2010. Our report includes a reference to other
auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the auditing standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the discretely presented
Bradley Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center as described in our report on Bradley
County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’
testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are
reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Bradley County’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
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an opinion on the effectiveness of Bradley County’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Bradley County’s internal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there
1s a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs that
we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting: 10.02,
10.03, and 10.06. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bradley County's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 10.01, 10.04, and 10.05.

We also noted certain matters that we reported to management of Bradley County in
separate communications.

Bradley County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the

accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit Bradley
County’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the county
mayor, County Commission, road superintendent, director of schools, Board of Education,
others within Bradley County, and federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Very truly yours,
%,4/ .

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury

JPW/yu
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF COUNTY AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMESK. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

October 28, 2010

Bradley County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Bradley County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Bradley County with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2010. Bradley County’s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Bradley
County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Bradley County’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Bradley County’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
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our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Bradley County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Bradley County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year

ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Bradley County is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit,
we considered Bradley County’s internal control over compliance with the requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Bradley County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control as described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 10.03 and 10.07. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Bradley County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued
our report thereon dated October 28, 2010. Our audit was performed for the purpose of
forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Bradley
County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
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Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Bradley County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit Bradley
County’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the county
mayor, County Commission, road superintendent, director of schools, Board of Education,
others within Bradley County, and federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities

and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Yours very truly,
%,4/4///#

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury

JPW/yu
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Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Grants (1)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Pass-through
Federal/Pass-through Agency/State CFDA Entity Identifying
Grantor Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed-through State Department of Agriculture:
National School Lunch Program (Commodities - Noncash Assistance) 10.555 N/A $ 232,023
Passed-through State Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 713,083
National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 2,110,809

Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants Limited Availability (ARRA) 10.579 5TN340330 15,793

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 N/A 6,160
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 3,077,868
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Passed-through State Department of Economic and Community Development:

Community Development Block Grants/State's Program 14.228 GG-07-20745-00 $ 66,141
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 66,141
U.S. Department of Justice:

Direct Programs:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 N/A $ 35,137
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program/
Grants to Units of Local Government (ARRA) 16.804 N/A 144,432
Passed-through City of Knoxville, Tennessee:

Missing Children's Assistance (ARRA) 16.543 2009-SN-B9-K052 34,044
Passed-through State Commission on Children and Youth:

Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program 16.727 7-09-073513-00 11,116
Passed-through State Office of Criminal Justice Programs:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program/

Grants to States and Territories (ARRA) 16.803 2009-SU-B9-0002 74,899
Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 299,628
U.S. Department of Transportation:

Passed-through State Department of Transportation:

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 3) $ 50,449
Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ 50,449
U.S. Department of Education:

Direct Program:
Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities - National Programs 84.184 N/A $ 369,958
Passed-through State Department of Education:

Title I Cluster:

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 N/A 1,567,482
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 84.389 S389A090042 943,184

Special Education Cluster:

Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 N/A 2,625,479
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 N/A 60,667
Special Education - Grants to States, Recovery Act 84.391 H391A090052 1,502,679

Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 N/A 136,532

Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities - State Grants 84.186 2) 26,174

Twenty-first Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 192-10-1-002 385,000

Educational Technology State Grants Cluster:

Education Technology State Grants 84.318 2) 77,715
Education Technology State Grants, Recovery Act 84.386 S386A090042 30,478

English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 2) 22,257

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 N/A 356,618

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Cluster:

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Education

State Grants, Recovery Act 84.394 S394A090043 1,833,100

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Government Services, Recovery Act 84.397 S397A090043 329,130
(Continued)
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Bradley County, Tennessee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Grants (1) (Cont.)

Federal Pass-through

Federal/Pass-through Agency/State CFDA Entity Identifying
Grantor Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education (Cont.):

Passed-through State Department of Labor and Workforce

Development:

Adult Education - State Grant Program 84.002 7-10-218490-00 132,004

Passed-through Bradley/Cleveland Public Education Foundation:

Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities - National Programs 84.184 Q1841050439 11,934
Total U.S. Department of Education 10,410,391
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:

Passed-through State Department of Military:

State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Support Programs 97.004 4) 42,070

Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 34101-0000003983 44,540

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 5) 379,477
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 466,087
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 14,370,564

Contract

State Grants Number
State Reappraisal Program - Comptroller of the Treasury N/A 2) 22,651
Local Health Services - State Department of Health N/A (6) 1,115,354
Child Safety Seat Grant - State Department of Health N/A 2) 8,922
3-Star Education Grant - State Department of Economic and
Community Development N/A 7-09-217113-00 487
Custody Prevention Services - State Department of Children's Services N/A GG-10-28317-00 54,004
Family/Friends - State Children's Services Commission N/A GG-09-26240-00 4,182
Juvenile Services Youth Services Officer - State Commission on
Children and Youth N/A GG-10-30113-00 9,000
Community Corrections Program - State Board of Probation and Patrol N/A 7-08-021324-00 294,241
Adult Drug Court - State Department of Finance and Administration N/A 7-05-025530-00 34,616
Juvenile Drug Court - State Department of Finance and Administration N/A 7-05-025536-00 75,728
Tire Recycling Grant - State Department of Environment and Conservation N/A 7-08-212969-00 47,308
Litter Program - State Department of Transportation N/A 7-10-220306-00 46,708
Early Childhood Education Pilot/State - Lottery Commission N/A 2) 1,266,847
ConnecTN - State Department of Education N/A 2) 6,910
FastTrack Infrastructure Development Program - State Department of
Economic and Community Development N/A GG-08-24948-00 83,776

Total State Grants 3,070,734

CFDA - Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
N/A - Not Applicable

(1) Presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

(2) Information not available.
(3) Z-09-214271-00: $23,665; Z-10-219948-00: $26,784.
(4) GG-06-12181-00: $13,785; GG-10-30965-00: $28,285.

(5) GG-08-24131-00: $44,141; 34101-000000467: $81,001; 34101-0000002550: $254,335.

(6) 7Z-09-213785-00: $132,383: Z-10-219776-00: $982,971.
(7) The total for CFDA No. 10.555 is $2,342,832.
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Bradley County, Tennessee

Schedule of Audit Findings Not Corrected
June 30, 2010

Government Auditing Standards require auditors to report the status of uncorrected
findings from prior audits. Presented below are findings from the Annual Financial Report
for Bradley County, Tennessee, for the year ended June 30, 2009, which have not been
corrected.

OTHER FINDINGS

Finding Page

Number Number Subject

09.01 276 The software used by the Probation Office did
not have adequate application controls

09.04 278 Duties were not segregated adequately at the

Ambulance Service and Probation Service and
in the Offices of Road Superintendent, Clerk
and Master, Register, and Sheriff
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BRADLEY COUNTY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

PART I, SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Our report on the financial statements of Bradley County is unqualified.
The audit of the financial statements of Bradley County disclosed significant
deficiencies in internal control. None of these deficiencies was considered to be a

material weakness.

The audit disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is material to the financial
statements of Bradley County.

The audit disclosed no significant deficiencies in internal control over major
programs.

An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance for major programs.

The audit revealed one finding that is required to be reported under Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133.

The Child Nutrition Cluster: School Breakfast Program and National School Lunch
Program (CFDA Nos. 10.553 and 10.555); the Title I Cluster: Title I Grants to Local
Educational Agencies and Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery
Act (CFDA Nos. 84.010 and 84.389); the Special Education Cluster: Special
Education — Grants to States, Special Education — Preschool Grants, and Special
Education — Grants to States, Recovery Act (CFDA Nos. 84.027, 84.173, and 84.391);
and the State Fiscal Stabilization Cluster: State Fiscal Stabilization Funds (SFSF)
— Education State Grants, Recovery Act and State Fiscal Stabilization Funds (SFSF)
— Governmental Services, Recovery Act (CFDA Nos. 84.394 and 84.397) were
determined to be major programs.

A $431,117 threshold was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal
programs.

Bradley County qualified as a low-risk auditee.
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PART II, FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Findings and recommendations, as a result of our examination, are presented below. We
reviewed these findings and recommendations with management to provide an opportunity
for their response. The county mayor, road superintendent, and director of schools provided
written responses on certain findings, which are paraphrased in this report.

OFFICE OF COUNTY MAYOR

FINDING 10.01 A CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE WAS NOT ISSUED IN COMPLIANCE
WITH STATE STATUTES
(Material Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

County officials issued a $240,000 capital outlay note to purchase land, a small building,
and two radio towers for emergency management. County officials did not obtain the
approval of the state Comptroller’s Office for the issuance of this note as required by
Section 9-21-601, Tennessee Code Annotated. This deficiency resulted from a lack of
oversight by management.

RECOMMENDATION

County officials should obtain the approval of the state Comptroller’s Office for the issuance
of all capital outlay notes as required by state statute.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — COUNTY MAYOR

This note was originally approved for the Emergency Management Agency to purchase the
towers. Sometime during the process, the purchaser was changed to Bradley County, and
procedures were not followed due to a lack of communication between the parties involved.
As soon as the oversight was discovered, we contacted the State Comptroller’s Office. We
have taken steps to assure that any future debt obligations will be handled in compliance
with state statutes. This note was paid off in August 2010, as appropriated in the county’s
budget.

FINDING 10.02 THE SOFTWARE USED BY THE PROBATION OFFICE DID
NOT HAVE ADEQUATE APPLICATION CONTROLS
(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government Auditing

Standards)

Users could delete cases and case history at any time, and an audit trial of the deleted
information was not maintained. Without an audit trial of system activity, errors, and
improper changes can occur and go undetected. Sound business practices dictate that
proper application controls be implemented. Since the vendor did not design the system
with these controls, inappropriate system activity could occur. The capability to delete
cases and case history was removed from the application by the vendor in September 2010.
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OFFICE OF DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

FINDING 10.03 AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT GRANT
FUNDS WERE USED TO PURCHASE AN OVEN BASED ON AN
EXPIRED BID

(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government Auditing
Standards and OMB Circular A-133)

Bradley County utilized an expired bid to purchase one combi-oven. Bradley County
piggy-backed their purchase off of a bid solicited by the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County (Metro) in May 2006; however, according to Metro, the bid
lapsed December 31, 2006. The oven was purchased on September 23, 2009, with American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act funds under a Child Nutrition Discretionary Grant, CFDA
No. 10.579, for $16,174. Grant administrators failed to confirm the validity of the bid prior
to purchasing the equipment, which indicates a significant deficiency in internal controls.
In effect, this internal control deficiency allowed the purchase of the equipment without
accepting a valid bid and creates a situation that could result in the United States
Department of Agriculture requesting repayment for the purchase price of the equipment.
Section 49-2-203, Tennessee Code Annotated, requires competitive bids for purchases over
$10,000. It was not possible to determine the amount, if any, that the actual purchase price
exceeded (or was less than) the amount that would have been paid had a current bid been
accepted.

RECOMMENDATION

Grant administrators should not piggy-back their purchases off of bids solicited by other
governments without confirming the validity of the bid. Grant administrators should
contact the Tennessee Department of Education School Nutrition Program to determine
whether further action is required.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

Bradley County Schools will refrain from making purchases from any expired bids in the
future. We will take all necessary steps to inquire about the current status of any bids from
other governmental agencies from this day forward.

OFFICE OF SHERIFF

FINDING 10.04 THE OFFICE DID NOT DEPOSIT SOME FUNDS WITHIN
THREE DAYS OF COLLECTION
(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

In some instances, the office did not deposit funds within three days of collection. Section
5-8-207, Tennessee Code Annotated, requires county officials to deposit public funds to the
office bank account within three days of collection. This deficiency is the result of a lack of
management oversight. The delay in depositing funds increases the risks of fraud and
misappropriation.
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RECOMMENDATION

The sheriff should ensure that all funds are deposited to the office bank account within
three days of collection as required by state statute.

FINDING 10.05 ARRESTEE FILES DID NOT INCLUDE FINGERPRINT
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS FROM THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF
INVESTIGATION
(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

The Sheriff’s Department uses an electronic imaging fingerprint machine to fingerprint
arrestees at the time of their arrest. This machine is designed to electronically store the
fingerprint images, generate records of the images taken, and transmit the images to the
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation (TBI). Section 8-4-115, Tennessee Code Annotated,
states that “If fingerprints are transmitted to the TBI electronically, the booking agency
shall maintain with the arrest report one (1) hard copy of the fingerprints along with an
acknowledgment from the TBI that a copy of the fingerprints has been received and
accepted.” During our examination of arrestee files, we found several instances where
there was no acknowledgment from the TBI that a copy of the fingerprints had been
received and accepted. This deficiency can be attributed to the lack of management
oversight.

RECOMMENDATION

An acknowledgment from the TBI that a copy of the fingerprints has been received and
accepted should be maintained for all arrestees as required by state statute.

OTHER FINDING AND RECOMMENDATION

FINDING 10.06 DUTIES WERE NOT SEGREGATED ADEQUATELY AT THE
AMBULANCE SERVICE, PROBATION SERVICE, SCHOOL
FOOD SERVICE DEPARTMENT, AND IN THE OFFICES OF
ROAD SUPERINTENDENT, CLERK AND MASTER, REGISTER,
AND SHERIFF
(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government Auditing

Standards)

Duties were not segregated adequately among the officials and employees at the Ambulance
Service, Probation Service, School Food Service Department, and in the Offices of Road
Superintendent, Clerk and Master, Register, and Sheriff. Officials and employees
responsible for maintaining accounting records were also involved in receipting, depositing,
and/or disbursing funds. Accounting standards provide that internal controls be designed
to give reasonable assurance of the reliability of financial reporting and of the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations. This lack of segregation of duties is the result of
management’s decisions based on the availability of financial resources and is a significant
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deficiency in internal controls that increases the risk of unauthorized transactions. Also,
this deficiency is the result of management’s failure to correct the finding noted in the
prior-year audit report.

RECOMMENDATION

Officials should segregate duties to the extent possible using available resources.

BEST PRACTICE

A CENTRAL SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING, BUDGETING, AND
PURCHASING HAS NOT BEEN ADOPTED

Bradley County does not have a central system of accounting, budgeting, and purchasing.
Sound business practices dictate that establishing a central system would significantly
improve internal controls over the accounting, budgeting, and purchasing processes. The
absence of a central system of accounting, budgeting, and purchasing has been a
management decision by the County Commission resulting in decentralization and some
duplication of effort. The Division of County Audit strongly believes that the adoption of a
central system of accounting, budgeting, and purchasing is a best practice that would
significantly improve accountability and the quality of services provided to the citizens of
Bradley County. Therefore, we recommend the adoption of the County Financial
Management System of 1981 or a private act, which would provide for a central system of
accounting, budgeting, and purchasing covering all county departments.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSES — COUNTY MAYOR, ROAD SUPERINTENDENT, AND
DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

As county mayor, road superintendent, and director of schools, we understand this
recommendation has been included in our audit for many years, and our County
Commission has reviewed this recommendation and considered its implementation;
however, the County Commission voted to keep the current accounting structure. We
believe that the commissioners realize that the current accounting method works best for
the citizens of Bradley County. Bradley County meets the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, receives excellent bond ratings from both
Moody’s and Standard and Poors, and is one of only a few counties in Tennessee to have, in
prior years, received the prestigious Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting. It is
obvious that Bradley County’s system is operating efficiently and effectively. We see no
reason to change.

AUDITOR’S REBUTTAL

The Comptroller’s Office has consistently recommended a central system of accounting,
budgeting, and purchasing for all counties in the State of Tennessee to improve internal
controls over the accounting, budgeting, and purchasing processes. The absence of a
central system results in decentralization and some duplication of effort.
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BRADLEY COUNTY, TENNESSEE
AUDITEE REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

There were no audit findings relative to federal awards presented in the prior-year’s
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. There were audit findings relative to federal
awards presented in the current-year’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Office of Director of Schools — Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year’s Findings

FINDINGS 10.03 and 10.07

Contact person: Johnny McDaniel

Corrective action planned: Bradley County School will refrain from making
purchases from any expired bids in the future.
We will take all necessary steps to inquire about
the current status of any bids from other
governmental agencies from this day forward.

Anticipated completion date: 2010-11
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